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We hereby submit the Directors' Report of Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – "Shufersal" or "the Company") for
the year 2019 (hereinafter – "2019" or "the reporting period")1, in accordance with the Securities Regulations
(Periodic and Immediate Reports), 1970 (hereinafter –"the reporting regulations"). Shufersal together with its
subsidiaries and associate companies are hereinafter called “the Shufersal Group” or “the Group”.

1.

Explanations of the Board to the State of the Company's Affairs

1.1

Principal data regarding the business affairs of the Company

Shufersal is the owner of the largest supermarket chain in Israel. The Group operates 378 branches throughout
Israel, of which 295 are Shufersal branches and 83 are branches of Be Drugstores Ltd.2 (formerly: New Pharm
Drugstores Ltd.) (hereinafter – "Be"). The Shufersal branches operate in several formats. The Group’s total
commercial space encompasses approximately 541 thousand square meters, of which 510 thousand square
meters are Shufersal branches and 31 thousand square meters are Be branches, and the Company has 6 hand
delivery centers3 encompassing 16 thousand square meters. The Group employs about 15.8 thousand employees
(about 14 thousand calculated positions) and has annual revenues of about NIS 13.4 billion.
As at December 31, 2019 and the date of issuing this report, the Company has no controlling shareholder. See
Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2019 (hereinafter – “the
financial statements”).
1.1.1

Description of operating segments reported as business segments in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company

The Company operates in three operating segments that are reported as business segments in its financial
statements: the retail segment, the real estate segment and the Be segment. Until the date of this report the
Company presented the operations of the loyalty club credit card management segment as a separate segment in
addition to presenting it as part of the retail segment. As from this report, the loyalty club credit card
management segment does not constitute a reportable segment in the financial statements (or an area of
operation) and the data regarding the credit card operations of the Company are presented only as part of the
retail segment. For details regarding the aforesaid operating segments, see Note 32 to the financial statements.
1.1.2

Management’s discussion of principal results for 2019
The Company’s results for 2019 were affected by several matters:
 The Company continued the development of its digital platforms, mainly the “Shufersal Online”
system, which included continuing the construction of automated delivery centers for this
distribution channel. In 2019, the significant growth of retail sales through Shufersal Online
continued, constituting about 15% of the total sales of Shufersal's branches (compared with 13.6%
in the same period last year).
 Continued development and strengthening of the private label including launching products in
existing and new categories. In 2019, the private label accounted for 25.2% of the total sales of
Shufersal's branches, which is an increase relative to that metric in 2018 (which was 24%).

1

For purposes of this report, “the reporting date” or “the date of the report” is the date of the statement of financial position
(December 31, 2019) unless stated otherwise or implied otherwise by the context of the matter.
2
The branches of Be include one branch of Bela Online Ltd., of which the Company acquired 51% of its share capital in
November 2019.
3
Dedicated centers for the online marketing of products through the Company’s website.
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1.1.3

Continued development and growing the customer base of the Be chain, including rebranding,
expansion of the range of products, opening concept branches, strengthening the private label,
expansion of the chain and operational synergies including development of the digital platform. As
a part of strengthening the online operation of Be pursuant to the Company's strategy, in November
2019 Be completed the acquisition of 51% of the share capital of Bela Online Ltd., which operates
in the area of pharma and personal care products.
Continued strengthening and expansion of the customer loyalty credit card club. As at December
31, 2019, 591 thousand credit cards have been issued as part of the new credit card club, compared
with 510 thousand credit cards as at December 31, 2018.
On December 17, 2019 the Company's Board of Directors decided that the Company would merge
with Be. In the framework of the merger the Company will absorb (by way of a statutory merger)
all the operations, liabilities and assets of Be, for no consideration, and Be will be dissolved without
liquidation
Continuation of the strengthening of the Group’s income-producing real estate activity.

Dividend
On April 8, 2019, the Company distributed a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million. On March 19,
2020, subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position, the Company’s Board of Directors
declared the distribution of a cash dividend in the total amount of NIS 80 million. The said dividend did
not require court approval, and as at the date of this report it has not yet been paid. See Note 34.B to the
financial statements for details.
As at December 31, 2019, the Company’s “profits” for purposes of the profit test pursuant to
Section 302 of the Companies Law, 1999 (“the Companies Law”) amounted to about NIS 612 million,
where a dividend distribution by the Company, to the extent the Company’s Board of Directors decides
to make such a distribution, will be in accordance with the Companies Law and subject to the
distribution conditions provided therein, to the restrictions provided in the terms of the bonds that were
issued by the Company and the binding credit facilities (see Section 5 hereunder and Note 17 to the
financial statements) and to all other provisions of law.
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1.2

Analysis of the Results of Operations

1.2.1

Analysis of the results for 2019 as compared to 2018
Results of operations
2019
2018
%
NIS millions
% NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating profit before
other income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment
property, net
Other expenses, net
Operating profit after
other income (expenses)

27.0%

13,360
3,609

26.8%

128847
38441

23.1%

(3,088)

23.3%

(2,988)

3.9%

521

5.3%

335

43
)27(

39
(3)
4.2%

557

3.7%

364

(259)

)116(

8
306

6
359

Taxes on income

(38)

)94(

Profit for the year

268

563

Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 12,603 million in 2019, compared with NIS 12,246 million in the
previous year, an increase of 2.9%. Store sales in 2019 increased by 3.5% compared with the previous year.
The difference between the increase in the Company's revenues and the increase in the Company's sales is
mainly attributable to the continued increase in the activities of franchisees and a decrease in the gift granted to
new members that join the credit card club compared with last year.
Same store4 sales increased by 0.2% in 2019 compared with the previous year.
The per square meter sales5 in Company stores were NIS 24,819 in 2019, compared with NIS 24,735 in the
previous year, an increase of 0.3%.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 182 million in 2019, compared with NIS 177 million in the
previous year, an increase of 2.8% that is due mainly to the occupancy of vacant space.
The Be segment’s revenues totaled NIS 708 million in 2019, compared with NIS 552 million in the previous
year, an increase of 28.3% that is due to the opening of new stores and an increase in same-store sales. Samestore Be sales4 increased by 6.1% compared with last year. The sales per square meter of Be stores6 amounted to
NIS 23,331 in 2019, compared with NIS 24,317 last year, a decrease of 4.1%, due mainly to the opening of new
branches and the upgrading of stores.

4

Same store sales – gross sales of stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas. It is noted that in 2019 the sales per square meter include
the Marketplace sales, meaning on the expanded shopping site for online selling of non-food products.
6
The area of the branch is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas.
6
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The Group’s revenues amounted to NIS 13,360 million in 2019 compared with NIS 12,847 million in the
previous year, an increase of 4% that is attributable to the aforesaid. The Group's same store sales4 increased by
0.5% compared with the previous year.
Gross profit amounted to NIS 3,609 million in 2019 compared with NIS 3,441 million in the previous year, an
increase of NIS 168 million. The gross margin was 27.0% compared with 26.8% in the previous year. The
increase in gross profit is mainly due to an increase in the Group's revenues.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 3,088 million in 2019, compared
with NIS 2,988 million in the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues was 23.1% compared with 23.3%
in the previous year. The increase in expenses is mainly due to an increase in the number of stores, and on the
other hand a decrease in the costs of launching the ICC credit card and the initial application of IFRS 16.
The operating profit before other expenses in the retail segment amounted to NIS 397 million in 2019 and a
rate of 3.2% from the revenues in the retail segment, compared with NIS 360 million and a rate of 2.9% from
the retail segment revenues in the previous year, an increase of NIS 37 million, which was driven by the
aforesaid.
The operating profit before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 150 million in 2019,
compared with NIS 144 million in the previous year, an increase of NIS 6 million which was driven by the
aforesaid.
The operating loss before other expenses of the Be segment amounted to NIS 70 million in 2019, compared
with NIS 29 million in the previous year. The increase in the loss is due to the continued rollout and growing of
the customer base of the Be chain, rebranding, expanding the range of products, opening concept stores, the
costs of closing branches and upgrading the chain's stores.
The Group’s operating profit after other income amounted to NIS 557 million in 2019 and to a rate of 4.2%
of revenue, compared with NIS 469 million and 3.7% of revenue in the previous year, an increase of NIS 88
million that is mainly due to an increase in the operating profit for the period as a result of the initial application
of IFRS 16 this year and recording other expenses in the Be segment last year.
The operating profit before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 1,266 million and to
a rate of 9.5% of revenue in 2019, compared with NIS 786 million and a rate of 6.1% of revenue in the previous
year. The increase is mainly due to the initial application of IFRS 16 this year.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 259 million in 2019, compared with NIS 116 million in the previous
year. The increase in expenses is mainly due to the initial application of IFRS 16 and the effect on forward
transactions of the decrease in the exchanges rates of the dollar and euro (compared with an increase in those
exchange rates last year).
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 38 million in 2019, compared with NIS 94 million in the previous year. The
decrease in the tax expenses is mainly due to recording deferred tax income for losses of the Be segment.
The net profit amounted to NIS 268 million in 2019, compared with NIS 265 million in the previous year, an
increase of NIS 3 million that is mainly due to the aforesaid.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 1.13 in 2019, compared with
NIS 1.12 in the previous year.
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1.2.2

Analysis of the results for 2018 as compared to 2017
Results of operations
2018
%
NIS millions

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating profit before
other income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment
property, net
Other expenses, net
Operating profit after
other income (expenses)

2017
% NIS millions

26.8%

128847
38441

25.8%

11,852
3,059

23.3%

(2,988)

21.9%

(2,596)

5.3%

335

3.9%

463

43
)27(
3.7%

364

36
(20)
4.0%

479

)116(

(124)

6
359

5
360

Taxes on income

)94(

(85)

Profit for the year

563

275

Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 12,246 million in 2018, compared with NIS 11,809 million in 2017,
an increase of 3.7%. Store sales in 2018 increased by 3.6% compared with 2017.
Same store7 sales in 2018 increased by 1.7% compared with 2017, due mainly to the growth of the food
industry.
The per square meter sales8 in Company stores were NIS 24,7359 in 2018, compared with NIS 24,177 in 2017,
an increase of 2.3% that is mainly due to an increase in same store sales.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 177 million in 2018, compared with NIS 168 million in 2017,
an increase of 5.4%, due mainly to the occupancy of vacant space and new income producing property.
The Be segment’s revenues totaled NIS 552 million in 2018. Per square meter sales in Be stores in this period
amounted to NIS 24,31710.
The Group’s revenues amounted to NIS 12,847 million in 2018 compared with NIS 11,852 million in 2017, an
increase of 8.4%, attributable mainly to the retail segment and consolidation of the Be segment, which
commenced operations in 2018. The Group's same store sales7 increased by 1.7% compared with the previous
year.

7

Same store sales – gross sales of stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the branch
is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas.
9
As from the financial statements as at June 30, 2017, the Company includes it sales through hand delivery centers in the
same store sales and in the calculation of the sales per square meter, and includes the areas of the hand delivery centers in
the calculation of the sales per square meter, including the comparative data.
10
The gross area of the branch includes selling space and other operating areas. As aforesaid, the data for the Be segment
do not include comparative figures for 2017.
8
8
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Gross profit amounted to NIS 3,441 million in 2018 compared with NIS 3,059 million in 2017, an increase of
NIS 382 million. The gross margin was 26.8% compared with 25.8% in 2017. The increase in gross profit and
gross margin is mainly due to an improvement in trade terms, growth of the private label segment, special offers
mix and the streamlining of the logistics center and distribution chain, as well as consolidation of the Be
segment.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 2,988 million in 2018, compared
with NIS 2,596 million in 2017. The ratio of expenses to revenues was 23.3% compared with 21.9% in 2017.
The increase in expenses was mainly driven by the consolidation of the Be segment’s operations, costs of
launching the ICC credit card and an increase in payroll expenses, including minimum wages (see Paragraph 7.8
of Part A (Description of Business Affairs) in the periodic report).
The operating profit before other expenses in the retail segment amounted to NIS 360 million in 2018 and a
rate of 2.9% from the revenue in the retail segment, compared with NIS 350 million and a rate of 3.0% from the
retail segment revenues in 2017, an increase of NIS 10 million, which was driven by all the aforesaid.
The operating profit before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 144 million in 2018,
compared with NIS 136 million in 2017, which was driven by the aforesaid.
The operating loss before other expenses in the Be segment amounted to NIS 29 million in 2018.
The Group’s operating profit after other income amounted to NIS 469 million in 2018 and to a rate of 3.7%
of revenue, compared with NIS 479 million and 4.0% of revenue in 2017, a decrease of NIS 10 million that is
due mainly to rebranding expenses of the Be chain and the aforesaid, and on the other hand a change in the fair
value of investment property.
The operating profit before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 786 million and to a
rate of 6.1% of revenue in 2018, compared with NIS 770 million and a rate of 6.5% of revenue in 2017. The
increase is mainly due to the aforesaid.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 116 million in 2018, compared with NIS 124 million in 2017. The
decrease in financing expenses is mainly due to the decrease in net hedging expenses. Additionally, the
Company recognized financing expenses from the revaluation of an option in 2017, whereas such expenses were
not incurred in 2018. Contrarily, interest expenses on bonds increased and income was recognized in 2017 from
reversal of impairment on a loan to an associate company of NIS 14 million.
Tax expenses amounted to NIS 94 million in 2018, compared with NIS 85 million in 2017. The increase is
mainly due to an increase in profit before tax neutralized by the effect of the consolidation of the Be chain.
The net profit amounted to NIS 265 million in 2018, compared with NIS 275 million in 2017, a decrease due to
the aforesaid.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 1.12 in 2018, compared with
NIS 1.22 in 2017, a decrease due mainly to the decrease in net profit and the issuance of the Company’s shares
in 2017.
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1.2.3

Analysis of the results for the three months ended December 31, 2019 compared with the
corresponding period of the previous year

%

Results of operations
Q4 2019
Q4 2018
%
NIS millions
NIS millions
38227

3,339

Revenues
Gross profit

26.9%

898

2667%

863

Selling, marketing, administrative and
general expenses

23.4%

(782)

23.6%

(760)

Operating profit before other income
(expenses)

3.5%

116

5.5%

103

Increase in fair value of investment
property, net
Other expenses, net
Operating profit after other income
(expenses)
Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income
Taxes on income
Profit for the period

27
)26(

39
(2)
4.6%

153

3.2%

104

(57)
4

)33(
3

100

74

17

)25(

117

34

Retail segment revenues amounted to NIS 3,147 million in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 3,073 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of about 2.4%. Sales in the Company’s stores in Q4 of
the year increased by 3% compared with the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The difference
between the increase in the Company's revenues and the increase in the Company's sales is mainly attributable
to the continued increase in the activities of franchisees.
Same store11 sales in Q4/2019 increased by 0.9% over the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The
increase is attributable mainly to an increase in the Company's operations.
The stores’ sales per square meter12 amounted to NIS 6,154 in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 6,123 in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 0.5%.
Real estate segment revenues amounted to NIS 45 million in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 46 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year.

11

Same store sales – gross sales of stores that were active in corresponding periods of the two comparison years.
The areas of the new branches are calculated proportionately from the date the branch was opened. The area of the
branch is the gross area including selling areas and additional operating areas. The sales per square meter include the
Marketplace sales, meaning on the expanded shopping site for online selling of non-food products.
11
12
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The revenues of the Be segment amounted to NIS 180 million in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 141 million in
the corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 27.7% that was due to opening new branches and
an increase in same store sales. Same-store Be sales11 increased by 7.4% compared with last year. The sales per
square meter of Be stores13 amounted to NIS 5,586 in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 5,790 in the corresponding
quarter of the previous year, a decrease of 3.5% that is mainly due to the opening of new branches and the
upgrading of stores.
The Group’s revenues amounted to NIS 3,339 million in Q4/2019 compared with NIS 3,227 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of 3.5% that is due mainly to the aforesaid. Same store4
sales increased by 1.2% in Q4/2019 compared with the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The gross profit amounted to NIS 898 million in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 863 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 35 million. The gross profit rate was 26.9% in
Q4/2019, compared with 26.7% in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase in the amount of
the gross profit is mainly due to the increase in the Group's revenues.
Selling, marketing, administrative and general expenses amounted to NIS 782 million in Q4/2019, compared
with NIS 760 million in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The ratio of expenses to revenues was
23.4% compared with 23.6% in the corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase in expenses is
mainly due to an increase in the number of stores, and on the other hand a decrease in the costs of launching the
ICC credit card and the initial application of IFRS 16.
The operating profit before other expenses in the retail segment amounted to NIS 99 million in Q4/2019 and
a rate of 3.1% of retail segment revenues, compared with NIS 83 million and a rate of 2.7% of retail segment
revenues in the corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 16 million that is due to the
aforesaid.
The operating profit before other income in the real estate segment amounted to NIS 37 million in Q4/2019,
compared with NIS 38 million in the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
The operating loss of the Be segment amounted to NIS 30 million in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 13 million
in the corresponding period of the previous year. The increase in the loss is due to the continued rollout and
growing of the customer base of the Be chain, rebranding, expanding the range of products, opening concept
stores, the costs of closing branches and upgrading the chain's stores.
The Group’s operating profit after other income amounted to NIS 153 million and a rate of 4.6% in
Q4/2019, compared with NIS 104 million and a rate of 3.2% of revenue in the corresponding quarter of the
previous year. The increase of NIS 49 million was due mainly to the initial application of IFRS 16 this year, an
increase in the value of investment property and recording other expenses in the Be segment in the previous
year.
The operating profit before depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) amounted to NIS 322 million and a
rate of 9.6% of revenue in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 199 million and a rate of 6.2% of revenue in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase is mainly due to the initial application of IFRS 16 this
year.
Financing expenses net, amounted to NIS 57 million in Q4/2019, compared with NIS 33 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year. The increase in financing expenses is mainly due to the initial
application of IFRS 16 this year.

13

The area of the branch is the gross area including selling areas and other operating areas.
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Tax Income amounted to NIS 17 million in Q4/2019, compared with Tax expenses of NIS 25 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year. The change is mainly due to recording deferred tax income for
losses of the Be segment.
The profit for the period amounted to NIS 117 million in Q4/2019 compared with NIS 49 million in the
corresponding quarter of the previous year, an increase of NIS 68 million that is due to the aforesaid.
The Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to NIS 0.5 in Q4/2019, compared with
NIS 0.21 in the corresponding quarter of the previous year.
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1.2.4

Condensed consolidated income statement and consolidated statements of comprehensive income
for 2019 by quarters and for the fourth quarter of 2018 (in NIS millions)
Total for
the year

Fourth
quarter

2019
Third
quarter

Second
quarter

First
quarter

2018
Fourth
quarter

Revenues
Gross profit
Selling, marketing, administrative
and general expenses
Operating profit before other
income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of
investment property, net
Other expenses, net
Operating profit after other
income (expenses)

13,360
3,609

3,339
898

3,443
931

3,429
920

3,149
860

3,227
863

(3,088)

(782)

(793)

(782)

(731)

(760)

521

116

138

138

129

103

39
(3)

39
(2)

-

-

(1)

27
(26)

557

153

138

138

128

104

Financing expenses, net
Share in profit of equity-accounted
investee
Profit before taxes on income

(259)

(57)

(65)

(73)

(64)

(33)

8
306

4
100

1
74

2
67

1
65

3
74

Taxes on income

(38)

17

(19)

(19)

(17)

(25)

Profit for the period

268

117

55

48

48

49
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Total for
the year

Other comprehensive income (loss)
items that were initially recognized
in comprehensive income and were
or will be transferred to profit or loss
The effective portion of the change in
fair value of instruments used for
cash flow hedging
Taxes on other comprehensive income
items that were initially recognized in
comprehensive income and will be
transferred to profit or loss
Net change in fair value included in
cost of hedging reserve
Total other comprehensive income
(loss) for the period that after
initial recognition in comprehensive
income was or will be transferred to
profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss)
items not transferred to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit
plan
Taxes on items of other
comprehensive income that will not
be transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive loss for
the period not transferred to profit
or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss)
for the period, net of tax
Total comprehensive income
for the period

2019
Third
quarter

Fourth
quarter

Second
quarter

2018
Fourth
quarter

First
quarter

(7)

3

(19)

-

9

-

2

(1)

5

-

(2)

-

(1)

-

(1)

-

-

-

(6)

2

(15)

-

7

-

(39)

(6)

(13)

(20)

-

(13)

9

2

3

4

-

3

(30)

(4)

(10)

(16)

-

(10)

(36)

(2)

(25)

(16)

7

(10)

232

115

30

32

55

39

Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

233
(1)

116
(1)

30
-

32
-

55
-

39
-

Total comprehensive income for the
period

232

115

30

32

55

39
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1.3

Financial Position, Liquidity and Sources of Finance

1.3.1

Cash flow – Analysis of the results for 2019 as compared to 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities amounted to NIS 1,035 million in 2019, compared with NIS 548 million in
the previous year. The increase in cash flow from operating activities is mainly due to the initial application of
IFRS 16 this year and changes in working capital items (refer to the consolidated statements of cash flows in the
financial statements for additional information).
Cash flow used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to NIS 863 million in 2019, compared with NIS 702 million in
the previous year. Cash used in investing activities in 2019 included mainly investments in property, plant and
equipment in the amount of NIS 518 million, an investment in a short-term deposit in the amount of NIS 150
million, investments in intangible assets and deferred expenses in the amount of NIS 102 million and an
investment in debt instruments at amortized cost in the amount of NIS 98 million.
The cash used in investing activities in 2018 included mainly investments in property, plant and equipment in
the amount of NIS 568 million and investments in intangible assets and deferred expenses in the amount of
NIS 73 million.
The investments in property, plant and equipment included mainly current investments in Shufersal and Be and
establishment of automated operations for the new automated delivery centers in Modi’in and Kadima, that the
Company is establishing, to be used for online operations.
Cash flow used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to NIS 279 million in 2019, compared with NIS 56 million in the
previous year. The net cash used in financing activities in 2019 included mainly the repayment of bonds and
interest in the amount of NIS 313 million, the payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million and the
repayment of principal and interest of a lease liability (standard IFRS 16) in the amount of NIS 437 million,
offset by net proceeds from the issuance of bonds in the amount of NIS 549 million.
Net cash used in financing activities in 2018 included mainly the repayment of bonds and interest in the amount
of NIS 310 million, the payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million and payments from the exercise
of an option to acquire partnership rights in the amount of NIS 146 million, offset by net proceeds from the
issuance of bonds in the amount of NIS 563 million.
1.3.2

Cash flow – Analysis of the results for 2018 as compared to 2017

Cash flow from operating activities
Net cash from operating activities amounted to NIS 548 million in 2018, compared with NIS 751 million in
2017. The decrease in cash flow from operating activities was mainly due to changes in working capital items.
Cash flow used in investing activities
Net cash used in investing activities amounted to NIS 702 million in 2018, compared with NIS 541 million in
2017.
Cash used in investing activities in 2018 included mainly investment in property, plant and equipment in the
amount of NIS 568 million (current investments in Shufersal and Be and establishment of automated operations
for the new automated delivery centers in Modi’in and Kadima, that the Company is establishing, to be used for
online operations).
The cash used in investing activities in 2017 included mainly investments in property, plant and equipment in
the amount of NIS 364 million and the acquisition of the Be chain for NIS 121 million.
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Cash flow used in financing activities
Net cash used in financing activities amounted to NIS 56 million in 2018, compared with NIS 222 million in
2017. The net cash used in financing activities in 2018 included mainly the net proceeds from issuance of bonds
in the amount of NIS 563 million, against the repayment of bonds and interest totaling NIS 310 million, a
dividend of NIS 160 million and payments from the exercise of an option to acquire partnership rights in the
amount of 146 million.
The net cash used in financing activities in 2017 included mainly repayment of bonds and interest payments in
the amount of NIS 373 million and the payment of a dividend in the amount of NIS 160 million, offset by
proceeds from the issuance of share capital (net) of NIS 348 million.
1.3.3

Balances of liquid assets and financial ratios

As at the end of 2019, the net liquid assets (cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities and short-term
deposits less credit from banks) amounted to NIS 262 million, compared with NIS 337 at the end of 2018.
As at the end of 2019, the liabilities to the holders of bonds and to banks, including interest payable
(hereinafter – “the financial debt”) amounted to NIS 2,981 million, compared with NIS 2,534 million at the
end of 2018 (for additional information, see Note 17 to the financial statements).
The ratio of the Company’s financial debt to its total assets was approximately 24.9% at the end of 2019,
compared with 32.9% at the end of 2018.
As at the end of 2019 the Company's total assets are NIS 4,249 million higher than at the end of 2018, mainly as
a result of the initial application of IFRS 16 this year.
As at the end of 2019 the trade payable balances amounted to NIS 2,055 million, compared with NIS 2,014
million as at the end of 2018 (ranging between NIS 1.9 billion and NIS 2.1 billion in 2019).
As at the end of 2019 the net financial debt (the financial debt net of cash and cash equivalents, marketable
securities and short-term deposits) amounted to NIS 2,626 million, compared with NIS 2,197 million as at the
end of 2018.
As at the end of 2019, the Company’s total equity was NIS 1,914 million, compared with NIS 1,956 million as
at the end of 2018.
The ratio of the Company’s equity to its total assets is 16% in 2019, compared with 25.4% at the end of 2018.
1.3.4

Board of Directors’ discussion of the Company’s liquidity in view of the working capital deficit as
at December 31, 2019

As at December 31, 2019, the Company has a working capital deficit (on a consolidated basis) of NIS 898
million, compared with a working capital deficit of NIS 532 million as at December 31, 2018, and it has a
working capital deficit (on a stand-alone basis) of NIS 1,068 million as at December 31, 2019, compared with a
working capital deficit of NIS 656 million as at December 31, 2018. The mainly increase in the working capital
deficit as at December 31, 2019 compared with December 31, 2018, of NIS 325 million on a consolidated basis
and NIS 283 million on a stand-alone basis, is due to the effect of the initial application of IFRS 16.
The Company ended the quarter with a positive cash flow from operating activities (see paragraph 1.3.1 above).
The Company entered into agreements with three banking institutions (with each one separately) to provide to
the Company a guaranteed credit facility for two-year periods ending between March and May 2021, of up to
NIS 100 million from each banking institution that may be utilized by short-term credit withdrawals. As at
December 31, 2019, NIS 93 million of these credit facilities have been utilized. As at the date of issuing this
report, these credit facilities are not utilized.
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As at the date of approval of this directors' report, the Board of Directors gave management of the Company
approval to increase the Company's secured credit facilities so that they would amount to a total of NIS 800
million. Actual execution of the increase is subject to approvals by the authorized bodies of the relevant bank
entities (which have already approved in principle) and the parties signing the appropriate agreements. In this
context it is noted that the aforesaid credit facilities may serve the Company as an appropriate financing tool if
following the coronavirus crisis (see paragraph 4.1 of this report) the conditions for raising capital on the market
are not suitable.
It is further noted that in January 2019, the Company issued a new series of bonds (Series G), to be repaid
(principal) commencing from February 2022 until August 2030, against net proceeds of NIS 549 million (for
additional information, see Note 17(3) to the financial statements).
In view of all the aforesaid, and taking into account the Company’s access to additional sources of credit and
financing, and in view of the Group’s balances of cash and cash equivalents and the Group’s cash flow forecast
for the two year period beginning December 31, 2019, the Board of Directors decided that notwithstanding the
working capital deficit as at December 31, 2019 the Company does not have a liquidity problem.
The assessment of the Company’s access to sources of credit (including issuing additional bonds, insofar as
needed) and the assessment of the Company’s accessibility to possible additional sources of financing, took note
of the yield to maturity at which the Company’s bonds are traded, the Company’s rating, the Company’s past
experience in raising capital, raising debt and refinancing, the Company's aforesaid credit facilities, the
Company’s ability to realize real estate and the fact that the Company and its subsidiaries own significant
unencumbered real estate properties and debt instruments measured at amortized cost. It is noted that as at the
date of issuing this report, there is only a small number of liens of an insignificant amount on the assets of the
Company and its subsidiaries.
It is emphasized that the information on the Company’s accessibility to sources of financing is forwardlooking information, within its meaning in the Securities Law – 1968, which is mainly based on the
Company’s forecasts. This assessment may not be realized or may be realized in a different manner than
was assessed, including materially different, as a result of market behavior and realization of the risk
factors mentioned in Paragraph 18 of Part A to the periodic report.

2.

Market Risk Exposure and Management

2.1

Company officer responsible for market risk management

The Company’s CFO, Ms. Talya Huber, is responsible for the management of market risks in the Company,
who is also assisted by outside consultants. See Regulation 26A of Part D of the periodic report (additional
information on the corporation) for details regarding the education, skills and professional experience of Ms.
Talya Huber.

2.2

Supervision over market risk management policy and its implementation

The Company closely follows developments in interest rates, in the Consumer Price Index and in the yield to
maturity of bonds. The Investments Committee of the Board is in charge of dealing with financial exposures;
management of surplus cash; development of hedge strategies, monitoring the performance of and providing
immediate response to exceptional developments in the various markets.
Other relevant Company officials also participate in the meetings of the Committee. The Committee is assisted
by capital market consultants and convenes as necessary. Additionally meetings of the internal investments
committee are convened, with the participation of the CFO, the Finance Director, the Chief Economist, other
relevant persons and consultants, as noted.
For further details, see Note 23 to the financial statements regarding management of financial risks.
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2.3

Description of market risks

Market risks comprise the changes in the value of financial instruments caused by fluctuations in interest rates,
the Consumer Price Index, foreign currency exchange rates and prices of securities.
In 2019 most of the Company’s exposure was due to changes in the CPI. In order to reduce the exposure the
Company entered into interest rate swap transactions, see Section 2.3.1. The Company also has an insignificant
exposure to changes in the exchange rates of the dollar and euro. See Section 2.3.2 hereunder. See Section 2.6
hereunder regarding sensitivity tests for sensitive instruments, according to changes in market factors as at
December 31, 2019.
Bonds
Presented hereunder is a breakdown of repayments of bonds by principal and interest based on repayment years
(in NIS millions):
Year
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
Total

Principal*
235
235
258
258
258
269
302
313
335
233
111
2,807

Interest*
121
110
99
88
77
65
53
40
27
13
3
696

Total**
356
345
357
346
335
334
355
353
362
246
114
3,503

Repayment of bonds (principal + interest) is not discounted – part is linked to the Consumer Price Index
and part is unlinked.
** In January 2019, the Company completed the issuance of a new series of bonds (Series G) of the Company,
for net proceeds of NIS 549 million.
*

Investments in securities
As at the reporting date, the securities portfolio of the Company includes held-to-maturity corporate bonds that
are rated at least -AA.
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The Company’s investment policy, as was approved by the Company’s Investments Committee in January
2018, is as follows: [a] money intended for the repayment of bonds, investments and current payments within a
period of 6 months will be invested in bank deposits according to cash flow needs; [b] money intended for such
needs after more than 6 months will be invested according to a revised investment policy that mainly provides
as follows: up to 15% of the Company’s investment portfolio (but no more than NIS 30 million) may be
invested in shares tracks, such as exchange traded notes/funds that track share indices (the TA 35 index, the TA
90 index and the TA 125 index) (it is noted that the policy allows an investment of up to 20% of the shares
tracks in the investment portfolio in ETF’s in the US and Europe); at least 55% of the investments portfolio will
be invested in government bonds, bank deposits and short-term bills, with the balance (up to 30% of the
portfolio) being invested in corporate bonds rated at least “A”.
Investments in investment property
As at December 31, 2019, the Group has investment property in the amount of NIS 721 million. The value of
the investment property is calculated based on a pre-tax discount rate of between 7% and 8.75% (mainly
between 7% and 8%).
This rate takes into account the risk based on the different periods of the lease agreements and the quality of the
tenants. The Group leases out investment property to a large number of lessees, regarding most of which there
were no material changes in the lease agreements.
In the reporting period the change in the fair value of investment property amounted to an increase of NIS 39
million, which is mainly due to the realization of building rights, progress in projects under construction, real
estate improvements, the signing of new agreements, an improvement in revenues and a cutback in the operating
costs of the properties. The change in fair value was recognized in the statement of income under increase in fair
value of investment property, net.
In addition, the Group has investment property that the Company uses for purposes of its retail segment activity,
which its fair value is NIS 1,819 million as at December 31, 2019, and is classified in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements as property, plant and equipment (in the amount of NIS 986 million, and
therefore is not presented at its fair value).
The Group will continue to monitor developments on the financial markets and their effects on the Israeli
economy, and it is possible that the developments will lead to a change in the value of the Company’s securities
portfolio and the value of its investment property.
2.3.1

Consumer Price Index risks

The Company is exposed to changes in the Consumer Price Index (“the CPI”) mainly in respect of CPI-linked
bonds issued by the Company that amount to NIS 1.2 billion as at December 31, 2019 (compared with NIS 1.3
billion as at December 31, 2018), and in respect of CPI-linked payments in the annual amount of NIS 447
million.
As at December 31, 2019, the Company has swap transactions for exchanging CPI-linked NIS cash flows with
fixed NIS cash flows in respect of the expansion of the Series F bonds of the Company. The amount of the
hedging and hedged instruments is NIS 600 million. The transactions are accounted for as accounting hedges.
In 2019, the Company incurred financing expenses in relation to those contracts in the amount of NIS 8 million,
compared with NIS 9 million in the previous year.
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2.3.2

Foreign currency risks

The Company’s policy is to hedge the currency exchange rates in respect of import of goods from outside of
Israel.
As at December 31, 2019, the Company has forward contracts on the rate of the dollar in the amount of US$26
million for settlement until November 2020 and cylinder trades on the dollar exchange rate totaling US$4
million for settlement until November 2020. Additionally, there are forward contracts on the exchange rate of
the euro in the amount of €72 million for settlement until July 2022 and cylinder transactions on the exchange
rate of the euro in the amount of €3 million for settlement until November 2020.
In 2019, the Company incurred financing expenses in the amount of NIS 18 million in respect of those
contracts, compared with financing income of NIS 10 million in the previous year.
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risks is immaterial.
2.3.3

Interest risks

The Company is exposed to changes in interest rates on its deposits and short-term investments.
2.3.4

Israeli capital market risks

The Company is exposed to changes in prices of securities in Israel since part of the Company’s monetary
balances is invested in securities. As at the date of the statement of financial position, the securities portfolio of
the Company includes held-to-maturity corporate bonds that are rated at least -AA. As of the date of the
statement of financial position, this exposure is immaterial.

2.4

Company policy regarding market risk management

The Company invests its surplus liquidity with a view of obtaining a fair return while maintaining an
appropriate return/risk balance. See Section 2.3 above regarding the Company’s investment policy. In 2019, the
Company made use of derivative financial instruments with a view of matching, to the extent possible, the
linkage bases of its financial assets and liabilities (hedge transactions). The Company examines on a regular
basis the need to acquire hedges in order to deal with its economic exposures. The Company does not invest in
entities that primarily engage in derivatives and short selling.

2.5

Linkage bases report

See Note 23.B(3) to the financial statements for details on the Company’s linkage bases report as at December
31, 2019.
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2.6

Sensitivity tests

Sensitivity tests for sensitive instruments, according to changes in market factors as at December 31, 2019
in NIS millions:

Sensitive instruments

Total bonds
Issuance of Series D
Issuance of Series E
Issuance of Series F
Issuance of Series G
Deposits
*

Market
interest
rate at
reporting
date

*0.91%
0.25%
1.38%
0.1%
1.77%
*0.71%

Interest rate sensitivity
Gain (loss) from changes
10%
5%
2%
Fair value
increase
increase
increase
as at
in
in
in
December
interest
interest
interest
31, 2019
NIS millions

16.01
0.43
7.61
0.5
7.47
(0.02)

7.8
0.21
3.6
0.25
3.73
(0.01)

2.84
0.08
1.18
0.1
1.48
(0.6)

(3,326)
(341)
(1,236)
(1,116)
(633)
306

Gain (loss) from changes
2%
5%
10%
decrease decrease decrease
in
in
in
interest
interest
interest

(3.79)
(0.09)
(2.05)
(0.1)
(1.54)
0.6

(8.78)
(0.22)
(4.48)
(0.26)
(3.82)
0.01

(17.14)
(0.43)
(8.55)
(0.51)
(7.65)
0.02

Weighted average

Sensitive instruments

Bonds
Swap – interest rate
exchange
Financial assets
measured at
amortized cost

Sensitive instruments

Financial assets
measured at
amortized cost

CPI sensitivity
Fair value as at
December 31,
2019
NIS millions

Gain (loss) from changes
10% increase
5% increase
in CPI
CPI

Gain (loss) from changes
5% decrease
10% decrease
in CPI
inCPI

(145.8)

(72.9)

(1,457)

72.9

145.8

74.6

37.3

9

(37.4)

(74.8)

4.7

2.3

47

(2.3)

(4.7)

Gain from changes
10% increase
5% increase
in market price
in market price

9.9

Market price sensitivity
Fair value as at
Loss from changes
December 31,
5% decrease
10% decrease
2019
in market price
in market price
NIS millions

5

21

99

(5)

(9.9)
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3.

Corporate Governance

3.1

Composition of the Board of Directors, its activities and committees
On August 12, 2018, after the Company no longer had a controlling shareholder, the Company’s board
of directors resolved to appoint a special board of directors’ committee that was comprised of most of
the external directors and headed by an external director and was empowered to serve as a
recommending committee in connection with the mix and composition of the Company’s Board of
Directors, while taking into account the Company’s new shareholding structure, as a company without a
controlling shareholder, and in connection with the identity of the directors who will be included on the
list of candidates to serve in the general meeting held in November 2018 ("the Special Committee").
Within the scope of the Special Committee’s work, it hired Entropy Corporate Government Advisors
Ltd. (“Entropy”) for consultancy, formulation and guidance for the process of arranging the
appointment of directors, and regarding the worthy and correct composition of the Company’s Board of
Directors. Upon completion of its meetings and the process with Entropy and its interactions with
institutional bodies, the Special Committee recommended to the Company’s Board of Directors to adopt
a policy for the mix and composition of its directors, relating, among others, to the size of the Board of
Directors, proper shareholder representation on the Board of Directors, the professional experience and
capabilities required of the Company’s directors, the independence of the Board of Directors and the
percentage of external and independent directors serving on the Board, the diversity of the Board
members with regard to age, gender and professional background, as well as the characteristics for the
position of Chairman of the Board and how he should be elected. Likewise, the Special Committee also
addressed the worthy process of identifying candidates to serve in their first term as external and
independent directors, On October 18, 2018, the Company’s Board of Directors discussed the
recommendations of the Special Committee and adopted its recommendations in full ("the policy on
the mix and composition of the board").
As at the reporting date, there are four external directors on the Company's Board, Messrs. Michael Bar
Haim, Gideon Schurr, Eldad Avraham and Michal Kamir as well as an independent director – Dr.
Ayelet Ben Ezer. The Company's articles of association do not include an instruction regarding the
number of independent directors, but the policy on the mix and composition of the board provides, inter
alia, that the Company will continue to aim to have a majority of independent directors.
Enforcement plan and procedures in the area of securities
In February 2013, the Company’s Board of Directors adopted, after approval thereof by the Audit
Committee, an internal enforcement plan in the area of securities laws (that is, the provisions of the
Securities Law and the Regulations promulgated thereunder, along with related laws), the purpose of
which is to verify and enforce compliance by the Company, its officers and employees with the
requirements of law in the area of securities, including on the basis of procedures that were adopted by
the Company, and/or that it will adopt, from time to time, in this area. The plan provides arrangements,
among other things, related to the manner of assimilating procedures in the Company, existence of
supervision and reporting mechanisms, and ways of handling and reaching conclusions in connection
with breakdowns (if any are found). The plan was formulated on the basis of the Company’s unique
characteristics and working environment, based on a compliance survey in the area of securities and
criteria for an efficient enforcement plan that were published by the Securities Authority.

22

Board of Directors' Report on the State of the Company's Affairs for the Year Ended December 31, 2019
Shufersal Ltd.

The Company’s Board of Directors appointed Mr. Eran Meiri, the Company’s General Counsel, as the
person responsible for enforcement in the Company. The job of the person responsible for enforcement
is to ascertain (by himself or through other position holders in the Company) that the enforcement plan
is efficiently and effectively executed, including by means of monitoring, and holding training sessions
and assimilations, as well as by updating Company management regarding operation of the plan and
special events.
As part of the enforcement plan, procedures were adopted that among other things relate to the manner
of issuing immediate reports, to the identification, approval and reporting of transactions that raise
concerns regarding a personal interest of officers or controlling shareholders, benchmarks for
classifying transactions and activities as non-extraordinary transactions, and classifying transactions as
insignificant transactions, a competitive process procedure, a procedure regarding prohibition of use and
transfer of inside information, capital market activity and connection with the Securities Authority and
others. The procedures provide rules of action and conduct along with work processes the goal of which
is to provide a response to and controls over central processes with respect to matters arranged in the
framework thereof.
In 2019, along with the current execution of the enforcement plan, the Company carried out an internal
updating and examination process of testing that the target population of the plan is familiar with the
plan and the people who are responsible for its execution.
For details on the Company’s criteria for classifying transactions as non-extraordinary transactions, and
for classifying non-extraordinary transactions as insignificant transactions and regarding a competitive
process or other process, see Regulation 22 of Part D (Additional Details on the Corporation) of the
periodic report.
For information on the number of meetings that were held by the Board of Directors and its committees,
see the attached corporate governance questionnaire in Part E of the periodic report.

3.2

Directors having accounting and financial expertise

After evaluating the education, experience, qualifications and knowledge of the members of the Board of
Directors relating to business/accounting matters and to financial statements, the members of the Board
considered by the Board as having accounting and financial expertise are: Mauricio Wior , Michael Bar Haim,
Gideon Schurr, Eldad Avraham, Ran Gottfried and Eran Saar (for details with respect to the experience and
education of the said directors, see Regulation 26 in Part D (Additional Details on the Corporation) of the
Company’s periodic report).
For details regarding the minimum number of directors with accounting and financial expertise that is
appropriate for the Company, see the corporate governance questionnaire that is attached in Part E of the
periodic report.

3.3

Process of approval of the financial statements

For details regarding the process of approval of the Company’s financial statements, see the corporate
governance questionnaire that is attached in Part E of the periodic report.

3.4

Disclosure regarding the internal auditor of the Company

Particulars of the internal auditor
1.

The Company’s internal auditor - Levi Steinbaum.
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2.

First date of service: October 1, 1997.

3.

The internal auditor complies with the conditions provided in Section 3(a) of the Internal Audit Law –
1992 (hereinafter – “the Internal Audit Law”).

4.

The internal auditor complies with the provisions of Section 146(b) of the Companies Law and the
provisions of Section 8 of the Internal Audit Law.

5.

The internal auditor is not an interested party of the Company and is not related to an interested party or
an officer of the Company, and does not serve as the Company’s external auditor or on its behalf. The
internal auditor does not fill any other position in the Company besides internal auditor. In addition the
internal auditor does not hold any securities of the Company.

6.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, other than the employment of the internal auditor and his staff
as described hereunder, the internal auditor and his staff do not have material business connections or
any other material connections with the Company or a related party of the Company.

7.

The internal auditor is an employee of the Company and serves as a senior officer in accordance with
the law.

Appointment of the internal auditor
The internal auditor was appointed to his position at the Board of Directors’ meeting on August 10, 1997
according to the provisions of the Internal Audit Law. The internal auditor is a CPA, holds a B.A. in economics,
statistics and accounting and is an International Certified Internal Auditor (CIA) since 1994. It was determined
that the internal auditor would act according to the provisions of the Law to perform an internal audit in
Shufersal, taking note of, inter alia, its size, its volume of activity and the complexity of its activity.
Identity of the organizational function in charge of the internal auditor
The internal auditor reports to the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors.
The work plan and the considerations it is based on
The annual work plan is submitted by the Internal Auditor and is approved by the Company’s Audit Committee.
The work plan for 2019 has been derived from the multi-year work plan for 2010-2023 (inclusive). In 2017 a
risks’ survey was presented and the 21 issues in the survey were reflected in the multi-year work plan. Issues
that arose in the risk surveys over the years serve as basis for preparing the multi-year work plan. The annual
work plan for 2019 was updated according to the matters that arose in the risk assessment survey that the
Company’s internal auditor performs every year with senior executives of the Company including the Chairman
of the Board, CEO, VPs and additional managers and with the participation of the Company’s independent
auditors. In the Audit Committee’s meeting on December 16, 2018 the work plan and the necessary audit
resources were presented by the Internal Auditor to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee approved the
work plan in accordance with Section 7 of the Internal Audit Law.
The Internal Auditor has discretion to deviate from the determined work plan subject to approval of the Audit
Committee. Compliance with the work plan is presented once a year to the Audit Committee.
The work plan includes: coverage of all important issues in all units of the Company, putting special emphasis
on subjects that had been examined in the past and found to be highly exposed to risk, providing a response to
items brought up in risks’ surveys that were performed in the Company and performance of an audit in fixed
areas at reasonable intervals (once a year for important and material issues and once every three to four years for
other matters).
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During the reporting period, the Internal Auditor examined the manner of approval of certain material
transactions (as defined in Section 5(f) to the fourth addendum to the reporting regulations) and examined
non-extraordinary transactions with interested parties. The Internal Auditor was invited and was present at all
the meetings of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee, including meetings at which material
transactions were discussed.
Audit of material investee companies of the Company
The internal audit plan includes audits of wholly owned investees of the companies controlled by the Company.
Manner and scope of employment of the Internal Auditor and his staff and their remuneration
In 2019, the Company employed a staff of five full time employees (including the Internal Auditor) engaged in
internal audit (hereinafter – "the internal audit department") and was also assisted by external parties for
purposes of implementation of the work plan. In 2019, the Internal Audit department engaged external
consultants to work on the issues of revenue assurance, cash flow, Shufersal Business, Shufersal Finance,
marketing and advertising and consumer laws.
Number of hours invested in the
internal audit of the Company in
2019
6,000

Number of hours invested in the
internal audit of investee
companies in 2019
900

Number of hours invested by
external consultants in 2019
1,200

The work plan derives from a multi-year plan, and in the opinion of the Company’s Board of Directors the
number of hours provides a response to this plan and includes reference to the risks’ surveys performed in the
Company.
Professional standards according to which the Internal Auditor performs the audit
According to information provided to management of the Company by the Internal Auditor, the internal audit is
performed according to generally accepted professional internal auditing standards published by the
international Institute of Internal Auditors (IIA) and according to the Internal Audit Law. The Board of
Directors relied upon the reports of the Internal Auditor with respect to his compliance with the requirements of
the said professional standards, according to which he performs the audit. In 2019 an internal audit quality
assessment was performed by an external company which concluded that the internal audit in Shufersal
generally complies with the guidelines of the IIA.
Access to information
Documents and information in the possession of the Company have been provided to the Internal Auditor for
performance of his duty, as stated in Section 9 of the Internal Audit Law. Furthermore, free, constant and direct
access to the information systems of the Company and of its principal investees, including the financial data, is
provided to the Internal Auditor for performance of his work. The information systems of Shufersal serve also
its investee companies, and the Internal Auditor is authorized to inspect all data managed by the information
systems including that of the principal investees.
Report of the Internal Auditor
Reports on the findings of the Internal Auditor are submitted regularly in writing to the Chairman of the Board,
to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, to the members of the Audit Committee, to the CEO and to the
Company’s independent auditors. In 2019, the Audit Committee met to discuss the internal audit reports
submitted for this year (about 32 reports) on the following dates: January 15, February 26, March 10, April 7,
June 18, July 15, September 1, November 4, December 9 and December 23.
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Board of Directors' assessment of the Internal Auditor's activities
According to the Board of Director's assessment, the scope, nature and continuity of the Internal Auditor’s
activities and work plan are reasonable in the circumstances and should achieve the Company’s internal audit
goals.
Remuneration of the Internal Auditor
The remuneration costs of the Internal Auditor for 2019 was NIS 1,372 thousand.
The total remuneration paid in 2019 to the staff of the internal audit department (excluding the Internal Auditor
himself) amounted to NIS 879 thousand.
The remuneration to the Internal Auditor and to the staff of the internal audit department is not dependent on the
results of the audit work. Accordingly, the Board of Directors believes that this matter has no effect upon the
professional judgment of the Internal Auditor and on the results of the audit.

3.5

Disclosure regarding the fees of the independent auditors

Kesselman & Kesselman CPAs serve as the auditors of the Company and of material entities of the Company
and the subsidiaries.
Presented hereunder is the overall fee of the Company and the subsidiaries’ auditors in 2019 and 2018:
2019
NIS thousands

Hours

2018
NIS thousands

Hours

Auditing and tax services to the Company*
Auditing and tax services to subsidiaries*
Other services to the Company

1,202
376
31

8,580
2,686
104

18141
314
157

78599
2,216
455

Total

1,609

11,370

1,502

10,270

* The tax services received by the Company from the independent auditors are immaterial compared with the
audit services.
In negotiations held between the auditors and the highest ranking financial officer a fixed amount was set for the
fee payable to the auditors for auditing services in 2019 (a fixed amount). The fee was determined with
reference to the number of audit hours expected for the current year, and was approved by the Company’s Board
of Directors after receiving the recommendations of the Audit Committee. Regarding non-audit work, the fee
was determined separately according to the amount of work required.

3.6

Contribution to the community

A.

Donation of funds or products in 2019

Shufersal views itself as committed to active and ongoing involvement in contribution to the community.
Within the framework of contributing to the community, Shufersal gives preference to donations of aid to
underprivileged populations in Israel. Accordingly, at every holiday Shufersal distributes gift cards for
purchasing food to thousands of families and children throughout Israel.
The total amount of monetary contributions and gift cards was NIS 5 million this year.
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B.

Contribution activities in 2019

As part of Shufersal’s contribution to the community, the Company, among other things, conducts fundraising
campaigns involving customers at the checkout counters of stores all over the country. Each fundraising
campaign relates to a specific association and the funds raised are transferred to that association for its current
operations in health, education, welfare and other fields.
As part of the overall contribution activities, cash or cash equivalent (foodstuffs) in the amount of about NIS 5
million was donated to the various societies and organizations.

4.

Directives regarding disclosures pertaining to the financial reporting of the
Company

4.1

Disclosure regarding events subsequent to the date of the statement of financial position
•

For details regarding provisions for claims and legal proceedings subsequent to the date of the
Company’s statement of financial position, see Note 16(2).d to the financial statements.

•

As at the date of this report, Israel, like all the other countries in the world, is experiencing a
deep crisis following the outbreak of the coronavirus (COVID-19). At the date of this report,
the outbreak of the virus in Israel is still an "ongoing" event, and every few days the authorities
in Israel are imposing more and more severe restrictions on gatherings of people (as at the date
of this report gatherings of more than 10 people are prohibited), shutting down cultural and
recreational activities, activity of restaurants and so forth. Many work places have changed their
work format to working from home, insofar as possible, companies in certain sectors have
stopped their operations or have reduced them almost completely, and there is considerable
uncertainty regarding the duration of these restrictions and their severity as well as their effect
on the economy and growth, but it can be assumed that the "coronavirus crisis" will impair
growth in Israel and will have many effects on the economy. The coronavirus outbreak may
have an adverse effect on the Group's operations and financial results because of, inter alia,
problems in the supply of products, in providing service to the Group's customers and in the
operations at the Group's stores. The Company is regularly monitoring the developments
concerning the coronavirus outbreak and performing regular assessments of the situation and
preparing for a range of various scenarios in order to provide solutions for such scenarios (such
as working with suppliers on the supply of products to the stores, ordering stocks, contracting
alternative suppliers, and so forth). Concurrently, in the period from the beginning of the
coronavirus outbreak until the date of this report, there has been an increase in the Company's
sales in general and in the online activity in particular, as a result of the public stocking up with
food products and various hygiene products, and the Company is preparing for this in various
ways. Even so, the outbreak of the coronavirus may have adverse indirect effects on the Group's
operations because of the possibility of the economy entering a slowdown and recession. As
aforesaid, as at the date of this report, the coronavirus is still an "ongoing" event and it is hard
to predict its effects on the Group, but at this time, the Company assesses that the direct effects
of the crisis on the Group will be immaterial, but it is difficult to assess the overall extent of the
effects also because of the indirect effects of the crisis on the world's economy, the Israeli
economy and growth and naturally also on the Group.
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The information regarding the effects of the coronavirus outbreak on the Group is
forward looking information within its meaning in the Securities Law. This information is
based on the Company's assessments and initial data received by the Company regarding
the extent of sales as at the date of this report. The actual effects may be materially
different from that forecasted as aforesaid, as a result of various reasons and mainly the
coronavirus outbreak exacerbating, more rigorous restrictions, the length of time the
restrictions are in effect, the intensity of the indirect effects on the Group as a result of the
possibility of damage to growth and the economy entering a recession, and so forth.
•

For details regarding events subsequent to the date of the Company’s statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2019, see Note 34 to the financial statements.
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5.

Specific disclosure for holders of bonds

Data as at December 31, 2019
Series

Date of
issuance

Par value
on date of
issuance
(NIS
millions)

Proceeds on
date of
issuance net
of issuance
expenses
(NIS
millions)

Carrying
amount (NIS
millions)*

Balance of
par value
(NIS
millions)

Balance of
par value,
including
linkage (NIS
millions)

Accumulated
interest
(NIS millions)

Stock
market/fair
value (NIS
millions)

Type of
interest

Effective
interest
rate on
date of
issuance

Stated
interest

Payment date of
principal

First
date

Last
date

Interest
payment dates

Type of
linkage

Series D

Oct. 2013

472

468

297

295

296

2

341

Fixed

3.12%

2.99%

Oct. 8,
2014

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2014 and
2029

CPI

Series E

Oct. 2013

448

444

281

280

280

3

335

Fixed

5.23%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2014

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2014 and
2029

Unlinked

Nov.2016

463

**473

369

356

356

4

426

Fixed

4.5%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2017

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2017 and
2029

Unlinked

Jan. 2018

476

568

459

396

396

5

475

Fixed

2.12%

5.09%

Oct. 8,
2018

Oct. 8,
2029

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2018 and
2029

Unlinked
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Series

Series F

Series G

*
**

Date of
issuance

Par value
on date of
issuance
(NIS
millions)

Proceeds on
date of
issuance net
of issuance
expenses
(NIS
millions)

Carrying
amount (NIS
millions)*

Balance of
par value
(NIS
millions)

Balance of
par value,
including
linkage (NIS
millions)

Accumulated
interest
(NIS millions)

Stock
market/fair
value (NIS
millions)

Type of
interest

Effective
interest
rate on
date of
issuance

Stated
interest

Payment date of
principal

First
date

Last
date

Interest
payment dates

Type of
linkage

Sep. 2015

317

313

320

317

319

3

385

Fixed

4.44%

4.3%

Oct. 8,
2020

Oct. 8,
2028

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2016 and
2028

CPI

Jul.2016

601

**643

605

601

605

6

731

Fixed

4.5 %

4.3%

Oct. 8,
2020

Oct. 8,
2028

Annual
interest on
Oct. 8 of each
year between
2016 and
2028

CPI

Jan. 2019

555

549

557

555

555

7

633

Fixed

3.69%

3.52%

Feb. 20,
2022

Aug.
20,
2030

Semi-annual
interest on
Aug. 20 and
Feb. 20 of
each year
between
2019-2030

Unlinked

3,332

3,458

2,888

2,800

2,807

30

3,326

Carrying amount – The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest rate on the date of issuance and linked to the CPI at the
reporting date (Series E and G bonds are not linked to the CPI).
No cash consideration was received in respect of those issues, which were performed as part of an exchange offer for Series B bonds of the Company as discussed in Notes 17
to the Company’s consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2017. The considerations above refer to the par value of Series B bonds exchanged in the purchase offer
(including accrued interest).
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Notes:
1.

In January 2019, the Company completed the issuance of a new series of bonds (Series G), in
consideration for NIS 555 million (net proceeds of NIS 549 million).

2.

On March 31, 2019, the Company repaid the entire balance of Series B bonds (principal and interest) in
the total amount of NIS 62 million.

3.

On August 20, 2019 the Company paid interest on the Series G bonds in the total amount of NIS 11
million.

4.

On October 8, 2019 the Company paid principal and interest on the Series D bonds in the total amount
of NIS 39 million, on the Series E bonds in the total amount of NIS 161 million and on the Series F
bonds in the total amount of NIS 40 million.

5.

Payments on account of bond principal in Series D, E and F are annual payments. The principal
payments on account of the Series G bonds are 18 semi-annual unequal payments to be paid on
February 20 and August 20 of each of the years 2022 through 2030 (inclusive) (six are payments of 2%
of the principal, two payments are 3% of the principal, two payments are 6% of the principal, two
payments are 7% of the principal, four are 9% of the principal and two are 10% of principal).

6.

The trustee of the Series D bonds and Series E bonds is Reznik Paz Nevo Trustees Ltd., from 14 Yad
Haroutzim St., Tel-Aviv (tel. 03-6389200, fax. 03-6389222). The contact person at the trustee for the
Series D bonds and Series E bonds is Mr. Yossi Reznik, CPA, e-mail: Trust@rpn.co.il
The trustee of the Series F bonds is Strauss Lazar Trust Company (1992) Ltd., from 17 Yitzhak Sadeh
St., Tel Aviv (tel. 03-6237777, fax. 03-5613824). The contact person at the trustee for the Series F
bonds is Mr. Ori Lazer, CPA and Adv., e-mail: ori@slcpa.co.il
The trustee of the Series G bonds is Hermetic Trust (1975) Ltd., 30 Sheshet Hayamim Road, Bnei Braq
(tel: 03-5544553, fax. 03-5271736). The contact person at the trustee for the Series G bonds is Ms.
Merav Ofer-Oren and/or Mr. Dan Avnon, e-mail: hermetic@hermetic.co.il.

7.

In 2019 and up to the date of this report, the Company is in compliance with all the conditions and
liabilities under the trust deeds of the outstanding bonds and there is no cause for demanding immediate
repayment of the Company’s outstanding bonds.

8.

All the Company’s outstanding Series D, E, F and G bonds are material. All the series of bonds are
listed for trade on the Tel Aviv Stock Exchange.

9.

Among the causes for immediate repayment of the Series D, E, F and G bonds is also the event of
another debt of the Company to a bank and/or other financial institution being called for immediate
repayment, providing that the total amount called for immediate repayment is higher than NIS 300
million, or another outstanding series of the Company’s bonds being called for immediate repayment
(not initiated by the Company) (in Series D and E, the cause of cross-default of other bonds series was
conditioned on the amount of the other series called for immediate repayment being at least NIS 40
million); all according to the terms provided in the trust deeds under which the relevant bond series
were issued.
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10.

In accordance with the terms of the trust deeds of the Company’s Series D, E, F and G bonds, the
Company is permitted to early redeem (fully or partially) the Series D, E, F and G bonds. For additional
details, see Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series D bonds and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of
the Series E bonds (as detailed in the trust deed’s annex of the Company’s shelf prospectus dated
May 30, 2012 and as amended on September 30, 2013) and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series
F bonds as detailed in the trust deed’s annex of the Company’s shelf registration statement dated
September 3, 2015 that was issued in accordance with the Company’s shelf prospectus dated June 25,
2015, and Paragraph 9.2 of the trust deed of the Series G bonds, as detailed in the trust deed’s annex of
the Company’s shelf registration statement dated January 16, 2019.

11.

The Series D, E, F and G bonds include financial covenants. See Note 17 to the financial statements as
at December 31, 2019, which are a part of the periodic report, for further details regarding the terms of
the Company’s Series D, E, F and G bonds, including a commitment to comply with financial
covenants, a commitment to not create a current pledge, and restrictions relating to dividend
distribution.
Presented hereunder are the results of calculating the financial covenants committed to by the Company
in accordance with the terms of the Series D, E, F and G bonds (and in accordance with the terms of the
Company’s credit facilities) as at December 31, 2019:

Financial covenant
Ratio of net (financial) debt to total balance sheet
shall not exceed 60%
The Company’s total equity (including noncontrolling interests) shall not fall below NIS 550
million (with respect to Series D, E and F bonds) and
NIS 800 million (with respect to Series G bonds)

Calculation results as at
December 31, 2019
22%
NIS 1,914 million

Presented hereunder are the results of calculating the dividend distribution restrictions that apply to the
Company in accordance with the terms of the Series D, E, F and G bonds (and according to the terms of
the Company’s credit facilities) as at December 31, 2019 (and at that date taking into account a dividend
in the amount of NIS 80 million that was declared by the Company along with the approval of the
financial statements):
Restriction

The Company’s total equity (including
non-controlling interests) shall not fall
below NIS 750 million (with respect to
Series D, E and F bonds) and NIS 1,000
million (with respect to Series G bonds)
Ratio of the Company’s net (financial)
debt to EBITDA shall not exceed 7
(with respect to Series D, E and F
bonds) and 5 (with respect to Series G
bonds)

Calculation results as
at December 31, 2019

NIS 1,914 million

Calculation results as at
December 31, 2019 taking
into account a dividend that
was declared along with the
approval of the financial
statements (i.e. net of the
amount of the declared but
undistributed dividend)
NIS 1,834 million

2.1

2.1
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12.

Details regarding the credit rating of the Company
As at the reporting date the Company is rated (AA-) Stable and its bonds are rated (AA), according to
the rating affirmation of the Company by Ma’alot in October 2019. For details regarding the rating
affirmation of the Company and its bonds, see the Company's immediate report dated October 6, 2019
(reference no.: 2019-01-101776).
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13.

Information on the rating of outstanding bonds

Series

Series D – Bonds listed
for trade

Series E – Bonds listed
for trade

Name of rating
company

Ma’alot

Ma’alot

Current rating and
current outlook

ilAA

ilAA

Rating on
date of
issuance

ilA+
Negative

ilA+
Negative
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Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and the reporting date

Date

Rating

October 3, 2013 (initial rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and affirmation of rating outlook)

ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA Positive

September 20, 2016 (raising of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA+ Stable

May 28, 2017 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA+ Positive

January 15, 2018 (raising of rating and update of rating outlook)

ilAA- Stable

March 19, 2018 (raising of rating)

ilAA

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA

October 3, 2013 (initial rating)

ilA+ Negative

April 23, 2014 (affirmation of rating)

ilA+ Stable

May 6, 2015 (lowering of rating and affirmation of rating outlook)

ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)
September 20, 2016 (raising of rating and affirmation of rating
outlook)
November 15, 2016 (initial rating for expansion of series)

ilA Positive

May 28, 2017 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA+ Positive

January 15, 2018 (raising of rating and update of rating outlook)

ilAA- Stable

January 21, 2018 (expansion of series)

ilAA- Stable

March 19, 2018 (raising of rating)

ilAA

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA

ilA+ Stable
ilA+ Stable
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Series

Series F – Bonds listed
for trade

Series G – Bonds listed
for trade

Name of rating
company

Ma’alot

Ma’alot

Current rating and
current outlook

ilAA

ilAA

Rating on
date of
issuance

ilA Stable

ilA Stable
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Additional ratings between the original date of issuance and the reporting date

Date

Rating

September 2, 2015 (initial rating)

ilA Stable

May 26, 2016 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA Positive

July 11, 2016 (initial rating for expansion of the series)
September 20, 2016 (raising of rating and affirmation of rating
outlook)
May 28, 2017 (affirmation of rating and raising of rating outlook)

ilA

ilA+ Positive

January 15, 2018 (raising of rating and update of rating outlook)

ilAA- Stable

March 19, 2018 (raising of rating)

ilAA

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA

January 16, 2019 (initial rating)

ilAA

October 6, 2019 (affirmation of rating)

ilAA

ilA+ Stable
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Annual report of outstanding liabilities by maturity dates
For data regarding the outstanding liabilities of the Company, see the immediate report on outstanding liabilities
by maturity dates that was issued by the Company on the date of issuing the financial statements, which the
information included in it is presented in this report by way of reference.

The Company’s Board of Directors and Management wish to express their appreciation and thanks to the
managers and employees of the Company for their professional work and their cooperation and contribution to
the Company throughout the year.

Mauricio Wior
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
CEO

March 19, 2020
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Annex A
Information regarding a material valuation in accordance with Regulation 8B(i) of the Reporting Regulations
Identification of valuation subject:
Date of valuation:
Value of valuation subject immediately prior to
the date of the valuation (including depreciation
and amortization) if generally accepted
accounting principles did not require it being
changed according to the valuation:
Value of valuation subject:
Identification and nature of the valuer:
Name and education of the valuer:

The recoverable amount of the retail segment.
December 31, 2019.
NIS 2,501 million

An average of NIS 5,265 million (and in the range of
NIS 5,025-5,510 million).
Prof. Hadas Glender, Partner, Head of Valuations
and Business Models Department.

Prof. Glender has a BA in Accounting from the
Academic Faculty of the College of Management, an
MBA from Hebrew University, PhD from Ben
Gurion University.
She is a Certified Public
Accountant.
Experience in performing valuations for Prof. Hadas Glender heads projects of leading
accounting purposes in reporting entities and at companies in Israel and the world, in various areas of
an extent similar to or higher than that of the operations and industries such as: retail, technology,
finance, pharmaceuticals, energy, infrastructures, real
reported valuation:
estate and industry.
Throughout the years, she has accompanied and
advised companies with respect to valuations for
business purposes (valuations and fairness opinions)
and for accounting purposes (purchase price
allocation, intangible assets, employee options, etc.)
and has provided economic opinions as an expert
witness and as a court appointed expert.
From 1990 until present she serves as a senior
lecturer at the academic faculty of the College of
Management. Between 2010 and 2015 she served as
the head of the accounting department, and until
present serves as a member of the College of
Management academic studies staff council. She
lectures in courses for directors and in classes for
senior officers in the private, public and government
sectors.
None.
Dependence on the requester of the valuation:
None.
Indemnification agreements with the valuer:
The fair value less costs to sell of the retail segment
The valuation model that was used by the valuer:
operation was measured according to the market
approach, the EV/EBITDA multiple method
The principal assumptions applied by the valuer in the valuation: The fair value of the retail segment
operation was estimated as the multiple of the representative EBITDA of this segment in the amount of
NIS 675 million based on the Company’s assumption, and a representative EV/EBITDA multiple (average)
of 8 that is derived from the market value of similar public companies that operate in the retail industry.
From the fair value of this segment’s operation an amount equaling 2.5% was deducted in respect of costs to
sell that the Company would incur upon the sale of this segment.
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It is noted that the carrying amount of the goodwill compared to total assets of the entity is higher than 5% but
lower than 10%, whereas according to the valuation the value of the cash-generating unit compared to total
assets of the entity is higher than 10%. Since there are no indications of impairment of the said unit, only
disclosure is provided and the valuation was not attached.
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Annex B
Information regarding a material valuation in accordance with Regulation 8B(i) of the Reporting Regulations
Actuarial valuation to determine the present value of
the Group's liabilities in respect of long-term
employee benefits and determine the fair value of
plan assets (hereinafter together – net liabilities for
employee benefits)
December 31, 2019
Date of valuation:
Value of valuation subject immediately prior to NIS 260 million
the date of the valuation (including depreciation
and amortization) if generally accepted
accounting principles did not require it being
changed according to the valuation:
NIS 248 million
Value of valuation subject:
Identification and nature of the valuer:
Ogen Actuarial, Financial and Business Consulting
Name and education of the valuer:
Ltd. (hereinafter – "the valuer"). The calculation was
performed by Dr. Boaz Yam, an actuary and other
employees of the valuer's actuary department. Dr.
Boaz Yam has a BA in Economics and Accounting
and an MA in Business Administration – Finance
from the Bar Ilan University. He also has an M.A.S
in Actuarial Science and a Ph.D. in Risk
Management and Insurance from Georgia State
University in the USA. Dr. Boaz Yam is an expert
with 12 years of professional experience, including
performance of actuarial assessments in respect of
employee benefits similar to those of the Group.
None
Dependence on the requester of the valuation:
None
Indemnification agreements with the valuer:
The present value of the liabilities was calculated
The valuation model that was used by the valuer:
using the projected unit credit method and the assets
were calculated according to their fair value as
required in IAS 19.
The principal assumptions applied by the valuer in the valuation:
The actuarial assumptions underlying the calculations are the best estimate (and not conservative).
Identification of valuation subject:

An average real interest rate of 0.5%, forecasted inflation of 1.4%, salary increase rate of up to 3% in
accordance with the forecast of management of the Company, employee turnover rate of 2%-14.3%, mortality
and disability rates according to the mortality tables published by the Capital Market, Insurance and Savings
Commissioner at the Ministry of Finance in pension circular 2017-3-6, including table update P-1b, including
improved mortality rates updates in circular 10-1-2019, retirement age of men and women according to law.
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Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Inventory
Other investments

Note

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018*
NIS millions

4
6
7.A
7.B
8
9

55
300
1,373
160
910
9

161
151
15
141,,
1,1
811
-

2,807

145,1

64
30
116
96
3,101
721
1,310
113
3,596
9,147

56
31
16
9
3411,
66,
14168
5
5416,

11,954

74715

Total current assets
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other receivables
Other investments
Property, plant and equipment
Investment property
Intangible assets and deferred expenses
Deferred taxes
Right-of-use asset
Total non-current assets

5.A
5.B
7.C
9
10
11
12
28
29

Total assets

*

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.

Mauricio Wior
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Itzik Abercohen
Chief Executive Officer

Talya Huber
CFO

Date of approval: March 19, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

Note

Liabilities
Credit from banks
Current maturities in respect of bonds
Current maturities of lease liability
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for acquisition of partnership interests
Provisions
Total current liabilities

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018*
NIS millions

17
17
29
13
14
15
16

93
267
342
2,055
832
73
43
3,705

119
1411,
779
11
51
34173

Bonds
Employee benefits, net
Provisions
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes
Lease liability
Total non-current liabilities

17
18
16
19
28
29

2,621
248
56
132
3,278
6,335

14315
199
1
,3
117
14676

Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Reserves
Treasury shares
Retained earnings
Total equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity

20
242
963
17
(85)
778
1,915
(1)
1,914

1,1
963
13
)85(
813
14956
1,956

11,954

74715

Total liabilities and equity

*

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Year Ended December 31

Note

Revenues and rental fees
Cost of sales and services
Gross profit
Selling and marketing expenses
General and administrative expenses
Total selling, marketing, general and
administrative expenses

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

2017*
NIS millions

24

13,360
9,751
3,609

1148,7
94,16
34,,1

114851
84793
34159

25.A
25.B

2,884
204

14816
181

14,31
166

3,088

14988

14596

521

,53

,63

Operating profit before other income (expenses)
Increase in fair value of investment property, net

11

39

,3

36

Other expenses, net

26

(3)

)17(

)11(

36

16

16

557

,69

,79

27
27

(279)
20
(259)

)131(
1,
)116(

)151(
18
)11,(

5.A

8

6

5

306

359

361

(38)

)9,(

)85(

Profit for the year

268

165

175

Profit (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

269
(1)

265
-

275
-

Profit for the year

268

265

275

1.13

1211

1211

Total other income, net
Operating profit after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Financing expenses, net

Share in profits of equity-accounted investee
Profit before taxes on income
Taxes on income

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in NIS)

28

21

*

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended December 31

Note

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

2017*
NIS millions

268

265

175

(7)

13

)8(

(1)

-

-

2

(3)

1

(6)

10

)6(

18

(39)

(19)

)16(

10

-

6

-

28

9

3

,

(30)

(10)

)11(

Other comprehensive loss for the year

(36)

-

)18(

Total comprehensive income for the year

232

265

157

Total comprehensive income (loss) attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

233
(1)

265
-

257
-

Total comprehensive income for the year

232

265

257

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) that after
initial recognition in comprehensive income
was or will be transferred to profit or loss
Effective portion of the change in fair value of
cash flow hedges
Net change in fair value included
in cost of hedging reserve
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
were initially recognized in comprehensive
income and will be transferred to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for
the year that after initial recognition in
comprehensive income was or
will be transferred to profit or loss, net of tax
Other comprehensive income (loss) items
that will not be transferred to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Revaluation reserve for fixed assets classified
as investment property
Taxes on other comprehensive income items that
will not be transferred to profit or loss
Other comprehensive loss for the year that will
not be transferred to profit or loss, net of tax

*

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended December 31

Attributable to owners of the Company
Noncontrolling
interests
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

1,956
(122)

-

1,956
(122)

691
8
(160)
269
(30)
778

1,834
8
(160)
269
(36)
1,915

(1)
(1)

1,834
8
(160)
268
(36)
1,914

(85)
-

698
13

1,808
13

-

1,808
13

)85(
)85(

711
1
)161(
11
165
)15(
813

14811
1
18
)161(
11
165
14956

-

14811
1
18
)161(
11
165
14956

Share
capital
NIS millions

Share
premium
NIS millions

Capital
reserves
NIS millions

Treasury
shares
NIS millions

Retained
earnings
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1, 2019
Initial adoption of IFRS 16 (1)
Balance as at January 1, 2019 after adoption
of IFRS 16
Share based payment
Dividends to shareholders
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019

242
-

963
-

23
-

(85)
-

813
(122)

242
242

963
963

23
(6)
17

(85)
(85)

Balance as at January 1, 2018
Initial adoption of IFRS 9 (3)
Balance as at January 1, 2018 after adoption
of IFRS 9
Share based payment
Exercise of employee options (2)
Dividends to shareholders
Expired rights for declared dividends not exercised
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2018

242
-

945
-

8
-

1,1
*1,1

9,5
18
963

8
15
13

Total
NIS millions

-

*
Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
(1)
See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method elected, comparative figures have not been restated.
(2)
See Note 22
(3)
See Note 2.G.2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
7

Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended December 31

Attributable to owners of the Company

Balance as at January 1, 2017
Initial adoption of IFRS 15
Balance as at January 1, 2017 after adoption
of IFRS 15
Share based payment
Exercise of employee options (1)
Dividends to shareholders
Issuance of shares, net
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2017
*
(1)

Share
capital
NIS millions

Share
premium
NIS millions

Capital
reserves
NIS millions

Treasury
shares
NIS millions

1,1
-

561
-

1,
-

)85(
-

1,1
*1
1,1

561
39
3,6
9,5

1,
)6(
8

)85(
)85(

Total
NIS millions

Noncontrolling
interests
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

586
5

14315
5

-

14315
5

591
,
)161(
175
)11(
698

14311
,
39
)161(
3,8
175
)18(
14818

-

14311
,
39
)161(
3,8
175
)18(
14818

Retained
earnings
NIS millions

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
See Note 22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31

2019
NIS millions

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year

2018*
NIS millions

2017*
NIS millions

268

265

175

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of right-of-use assets
Losses from impairment (gains from reversal of
impairment) on property, plant and equipment
Amortization of intangible assets and deferred expenses
Taxes on income
Income taxes paid, net
Financing expenses, net
Share in profits of equity-accounted investees
Change in fair value of investment property, net
Change in employee benefits
Loss (gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Share-based payment
Change in provision for onerous contracts
Change in trade receivables
Change in other receivables
Change in inventory
Change in trade payables
Change in other payables, provisions and other
Net cash from operating activities

347
359

319
-

185
-

39
38
(82)
259
(8)
(39)
3
1
8
4
(128)
(20)
(88)
41
33
1,035

),(
31
9,
)66(
116
)6(
),3(
14
3
1
)19(
(146)
)13(
)111(
83
19
5,8

15
3,
85
)17(
11,
)5(
)36(
)6(
)1(
,
)16(
18
(26)
3,
)59(
63
751

Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Investment in deferred expenses and intangible assets
Business combinations, net of cash acquired
Investment in investment property
Change in pledged deposit
Change in cash in respect of futures contracts, net
Realization of (investment in) marketable securities, net
Investment in debt instruments at amortized cost, net
Repayment (grant) of long-term loans, net
Investment in deposits, net
Interest and dividend received
Net cash used in investing activities

(518)
1
(102)
**(18)
(10)
26
(98)
3
(150)
3
(863)

)568(
1
)73(
)19(
6
6
)16(
3
(49)
7
)711(

)36,(
8
),7(
(121)
)16(
(2)
1
(2)
2
)541(

*
**

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.
Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million. See Note 5.D.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Year Ended December 31

2019
NIS millions

2018*
NIS millions

2017*
NIS millions

Cash flows used in financing activities
Short-term credit
Exercise of option to acquire partnership interests
Proceeds from issuance of bonds, net
Repayment of bonds
Interest paid
Repayment of lease liability principal and interest
Dividend paid
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Repayment of long-term loans from banks
Payments in respect of hedging transactions
Partners‟ withdrawals from partnership

93
549
(192)
(121)
(437)
(160)
(10)
(1)

(146)
563
)191(
)119(
)161(
18
)11(
)11(

)51(
)165(
)118(
)161(
3,8
39
)1(
)11(
)11(

Net cash used in financing activities

(279)

)56(

)111(

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

(107)

(210)

)11(

162

371

38,

55

162

371

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
*

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 1 - General
A.

The reporting entity

Shufersal Ltd. (hereinafter – the “Company” and/or “Shufersal”) is an Israeli resident company
incorporated in Israel. The address of the Company‟s registered office is 30 Benjamin Shmotkin Street,
Rishon-Le-Zion. The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at December 31, 2019 comprise
the Company, its subsidiaries (hereinafter together – “the Group”) and the Company‟s rights in an
associate company and in joint arrangements. The Company is a company without a controlling
shareholder, as the term “control” is defined in Section 1 of the Securities Law, 1968.
The Group is involved in three areas of activity: [1] Retail activity – retail marketing of food and other
products in the Company's branches, management of a customer loyalty program (also by means of
managing a credit card loyalty program) and the manufacture of frozen and fresh baked products that
are sold mainly in the Company's branches, [2] Real estate activity (by means of Shufersal Real Estate
Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) – upgrading and leasing out various types of real
estate including commercial centers and other properties. The real estate includes also leasing out to
external parties and the activity of the branches leased out to the Company by Shufersal Real Estate
Ltd., [3] Be activity – activity by means of a wholly owned subsidiary (Be Drugstores Ltd.) that
engages in pharma activities, in which the subsidiary markets and sells pharmaceuticals, natural
products and cosmetics. The securities of the Company are registered for trade on the Tel Aviv Stock
Exchange.
B.

Material events in the reporting period

(1)

In the reporting period the Company and a wholly owned subsidiary, Be Drugstores Ltd.
(hereinafter – "Be") entered into an agreement to merge Be with and into the Company.
According to the agreement, the Company will absorb by way of a statutory merger all the
operations, liabilities and assets of Be, in accordance with the provisions of the first chapter of
part eight of the Companies Law – 1999 ("the Companies Law") and the regulations
promulgated thereunder, for no consideration, and Be will be dissolved without liquidation and
be removed from the records of the Registrar of Companies, subject to completion of the
merger that will be executed with effect from December 31, 2019. On December 11, 2019 the
approval of the tax authority was received to the execution of a tax exempt merger in
accordance with the provisions of Section 103.B of the Income Tax Ordinance (New Version) –
1961 ("the Ordinance"). Furthermore, the tax authority allowed an offset of the operating losses
of Be from the Company's operating results over 7 years (subject to a maximum offset
limitation of 50% from the taxable income of the Company for that tax year, in each one of the
years). On December 17, 2019 the boards of directors of the Company and Be approved the
merger. Completion of the merger is subject to completing an additional procedural process of
the companies with the pharmaceutical division of the Ministry of Health and the Registrar of
Companies. In view of the aforesaid and based on the Company's expectation to utilize the
losses of Be, the Company recognized deferred tax income in the amount of NIS 53 million in
these financial statements.

(2)

See Note 7.B for details regarding developments in the Company's objection to a monetary
demand and assessment of the Israel Land Authority.

(3)

See Note 12 for details regarding the examination of the recoverable amount of the Company‟s
business segments.

(4)

See Note 16(2) for details regarding developments relating to legal claims.

(5)

See Note 17 for details regarding the issuance of bonds.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 1 - General (cont’d)
B.

Material events in the reporting period (cont'd)

(6)

See Note 20B regarding the resolution by the Company‟s board of directors on a dividend
distribution.

(7)

See Note 22 for details regarding an equity compensation plan for the Company's CEO,
Chairman of the Board and another 7 officers.

C.

Definitions

In these financial statements –
1.

The Company – Shufersal Ltd.

2.

The Group – The Company and its investee companies.

3.

Consolidated companies/Subsidiaries – Companies, including a partnership, the financial
statements of which are fully consolidated, directly or indirectly, with the financial statements
of the Company.

4.

Investee companies – Consolidated companies, including partnerships or joint ventures, the
Company's investment in which is stated in these financial statements, directly or indirectly, on
the equity basis or on a proportionate consolidation basis.

5.

Related party – Within its meaning in IAS 24 (2009), “Related Party Disclosures”.

6.

Interested parties – Within their meaning in Paragraph (1) of the definition of an “interested
party” in Section 1 of the Securities Law - 1968.

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation
A.

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs).
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Securities Regulations (Preparation
of Annual Financial Statements) - 2010.
The consolidated statements were authorized for issue by the Company‟s Board of Directors on March
19, 2020.
B.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in NIS, which is the Group‟s functional currency,
and have been rounded to the nearest million, unless stated otherwise.
The NIS is the currency that represents the principal economic environment in which the Group operates.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
C.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets
and liabilities:
*
*
*
*
*
*

Financial instruments, derivatives and other assets and liabilities measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
Investment in associate companies and joint ventures.
Investment property measured at fair value.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Assets and liabilities for employee benefits.
Provisions.

For further information regarding the measurement of these assets and liabilities, see Note 3 regarding
significant accounting policies.
D.

Operating cycle

The Group's operating cycle is one year.
E.

Use of significant estimates and judgments

Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The preparation of accounting estimates used in the preparation of the Group‟s financial statements
requires management to make assumptions regarding circumstances and events that involve considerable
uncertainty. Management of the Company prepares the estimates on the basis of past experience, various
facts, external circumstances, and reasonable assumptions according to the pertinent circumstances of
each estimate. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future
periods affected.
Information about assumptions made by the Group with respect to the future and other reasons for
uncertainty with respect to estimates that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year are included in the following notes:


Recoverable amount of cash generating units – see Note 3.G(2) regarding impairment testing
and Note 12 regarding goodwill.



Fair value measurement of investment property – See Note 11 regarding investment
property.



Post-employment employee benefits – See Note 3.I regarding measurement of the defined
benefit liability and Note 18.



Assessment of probability of contingent liabilities and measurement of provisions – See
Note 3.J(2) regarding provisions and Note 16(2).



Recognition of deferred tax asset in respect of tax losses – See Note 3.N and Note 28.
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Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
E.

Use of significant estimates and judgments (cont'd)



Determining the lease term – see Note 3.R and Note 29.



Determining the discount rate of lease liabilities – see Note 3.R and Note 29.

F.

Determination of fair value

Preparation of the financial statements requires the Group to determine the fair value of certain assets and
liabilities. Further information about the assumptions that were used to determine fair value is included in
the following notes:
•
Note 11, on investment property;
•
Note 12, on intangible assets;
•
Note 22, on share-based payments; and
•
Note 23, on financial instruments;
When determining the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group uses observable market data as much
as possible. There are three levels of fair value measurements in the fair value hierarchy that are based on
the data used in the measurement, as follows:
•
•
•

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, either directly
or indirectly
Level 3: inputs that are not based on observable market data.

G.

Initial application of new standards

1.

IFRS 16, Leases

As from January 1, 2019 (hereinafter: “the date of initial application”) the Group applies International
Financial Reporting Standard 16, Leases (hereinafter: “IFRS 16” or “the standard”), which replaced
International Accounting Standard 17, Leases (hereinafter: "IAS 17" or "the previous standard").
The main effect of the standard‟s application is reflected in annulment of the existing requirement from
lessees to classify leases as operating (off-balance sheet) or finance leases and the presentation of a
unified model for lessees to account for all leases similarly to the accounting treatment of finance leases
in the previous standard. Until the date of application of IFRS 16, the Group classified most of the
leases in which it is the lessee as operating leases, since it did not substantially bear all the risks and
rewards from the assets. Assets leased under a finance lease included mainly buildings.
In accordance with IFRS 16, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the
inception of the lease contract for all the leases in which the Group has a right to control identified
assets for a specified period of time, other than exceptions specified in the standard. Therefore, as from
the date of initial application of IFRS 16, instead of recording lease payments, which were presented as
part of cost of sales and selling and marketing expenses in the income statement, the Group recognizes
depreciation and amortization expenses on right-of-use assets and financing expenses on lease
liabilities. Furthermore, the Group tests a right-of-use asset for impairment in accordance with IAS 36.

1,

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
G.

Initial application of new standards (cont'd)

1.

IFRS 16, Leases (cont'd)

The Group elected to apply the standard using the modified retrospective approach, with an adjustment
to the balance of retained earnings as at January 1, 2019 and without a restatement of comparative data.
The Group elected to apply the transitional provisions such that on the date of initial application it
recognized a lease liability at the present value of the balance of future lease payments, discounted at
the interest rate as at the date of initial application, calculated according to the average duration of the
remaining lease period. Concurrently, the Group recognized right-of-use assets for some of the lease
agreements, as though IFRS 16 had been applied from the commencement date of the lease, discounted
at the interest rate as at the date of initial application. For the remaining leases, the Group recognized
right-of-use assets in an amount identical to the lease liability. The difference between the liabilities
amount and the right-of-use assets amount recognized as at the initial date of recognition, considering
the tax effect, was recognized in retained earnings.
Regarding assets that the Group leases to third parties (in a sublease), that the Group itself leases (in a
head lease), the Group examines these subleases with respect to the right-of-use asset from the head
lease. In all the Group‟s subleases that were classified as finance leases, the right-of-use assets in
respect of the head leases were derecognized and recognized as receivables for the sublease.
The discount rate used for calculation and measurement was calculated using the nominal interest rate
as at January 1, 2019 in a range of 1%-4.6%.
As part of the initial application of the standard, the Group has chosen to apply the following expedients
for leases in which it is the lessee:
 To use a single discount rate for a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.
 To not reassess whether a contract contains a lease at the date of initial application. The Group
applies the standard to contracts that were already identified as leases in accordance with IAS 17.
 To rely on the assessment of whether the leases are onerous, when applying IAS 37 immediately
before the initial application date of IFRS 16, as an alternative to examining for impairment.
 Not to apply IFRS 16 for leases with less than 12 months remaining as at the initial application date
and to leases where the underlying asset has a low value.
 To use “hindsight” for the purpose of determining the lease period in a situation in which the
contract includes options to extend or cancel the lease.
 Not to include the initial direct costs in the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the time of
initial application.
Likewise, it is noted that within the scope of the liability‟s measurement, the Group elected not to
include the amounts related to non-lease components.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
G.

Initial application of new standards (cont'd)

1.

IFRS 16, Leases (cont'd)

The effects of the initial application of IFRS 16 on the Group's statement of financial position as at
January 1, 2019:
According to the
previous policy

Current assets
Other receivables
Non-current assets
Other receivables
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use asset
Deferred tax assets

Current liabilities
Current maturities of lease liability
Provisions

Non-current liabilities
Lease liability
Provisions

Equity
Retained earnings

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

041

01

051

16
3,214
5
13215

71
(274)
3,578
37
13401

88
2,940
34578
,1
63648

)51(
)51(

)3,5(
,
)140(

)3,5(
),6(
)190(

)1(
)2(

)34119(
1
)13217(

)34119(
)13219(

)801(

022

)690(
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
G.

Initial application of new standards (cont'd)

1.

IFRS 16, Leases (cont'd)

The effects of the initial application of IFRS 16 on the Group's results
For the year ended December 31, 2019:
According to the
previous policy

Cost of sales and services

According to
the present
policy

(9,755)

4

(9,751)

3,605

4

3,609

Selling and marketing expenses

(2,947)

63

(2,884)

Operating profit before other
income (expenses)*

454

67

521

(153)

(106)

(259)

Profit before taxes on income

345

(39)

306

Taxes on income

(48)

10

(38)

Profit for the year

297

(29)

268

Gross profit

Financing expenses, net

*

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

An increase of NIS 355 million in depreciation expenses against a decrease of NIS 422 million
in rental expenses.

The effects of the initial application of IFRS 16 on the Group's cash flows
For the year ended December 31, 2019:
According to the
previous policy

Effect of
application of
IFRS 16
NIS millions

According to
the present
policy

Cash flows from operating activities

598

437

1,035

Cash flows from financing activities

158

(437)

(279)
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Note 2 - Basis of Preparation (cont’d)
G.

Initial application of new standards (cont'd)

2.

Hedge accounting IFRS 9 (2014), Financial Instruments

As from June 30, 2019 (hereinafter: “the date of initial application”) the Group elected to apply the new
hedge accounting model of IFRS 9 (in this section "IFRS 9" or "the standard"), which replaced the
provisions of IAS 39 regarding hedge accounting (in this section "IAS 39" or "the previous standard").
Accordingly, the Group examined whether its hedge accounting relationships are consistent with its risk
management purposes and strategy, and modified the manner by which it examines hedge effectiveness
in accordance with the new standard.
Just before the date of initial application, the hedging relationships designated for hedge accounting
under the previous standard qualify for hedge accounting under IFRS 9, and are therefore considered
continuing hedge relationships.
The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge the changes in cash flows that derive from changes
in foreign currency exchange rates, with respect to purchases of property, plant and equipment that are
highly probable and denominated in foreign currency, and interest rate swap contracts to hedge changes
in cash flows that derive from changes in interest rates with respect to existing loans. The Group
designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of the forward exchange contract („spot
element‟) as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The effective portion of the said
change in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate item
within equity as a hedging reserve.
In accordance with IAS 39 the Group recognized the change in fair value of the future price element of
forward exchange contracts („forward element‟) immediately in profit or loss. Conversely, in accordance
with IFRS 9, the change in fair value that is attributed to the forward element is accounted for as a cost of
hedging, and accordingly is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated as a separate
item within equity as a cost of hedging reserve.
See Note 3.B(4) for further information regarding the Group's hedge accounting policies in accordance
with IFRS 9.
The standard's hedge accounting requirements were applied on a prospective basis.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently for all periods presented in these
consolidated financial statements, and have been applied consistently by Group entities, including an
associate, except as described in Note 2.G above regarding the initial application of new standards.
A.

Basis of consolidation

(1)

Business combinations

(a)

General

The acquisition method is applied in business combinations. The acquisition date is the date on which
the Group obtains control over the acquiree. Control exists when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the acquiree and it has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the acquiree. Substantive rights held by the Group and others are taking into
account when assessing control.
The Group recognizes goodwill on acquisition according to the fair value of the consideration
transferred including any amounts recognized in respect of rights that do not confer control in the
acquiree as well as the fair value at the acquisition date of any pre-existing equity right of the Group in
the acquiree, less the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is not adjusted in respect of the utilization of carry-forward tax losses that existed on the date
of the business combination.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of the assets transferred to the previous owners of
the acquiree and the liabilities incurred by the Group to the previous owners of the acquiree.
Transaction costs directly related to the business combination, such as advisory fees, broker fees, legal
fees, valuation costs, are expensed in the period the services are received.
(b)

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests comprise the equity of a subsidiary that cannot be attributed, directly or
indirectly, to the Company.
Profit or loss and any part of other comprehensive income are allocated to the owners of the Company
and the non-controlling interests. Total profit or loss and other comprehensive income is allocated to the
owners of the Company and the non-controlling interests even if the result is a negative balance of noncontrolling interests.
Transactions with non-controlling interests while retaining control are accounted for as equity
transactions. Any difference between the consideration paid or received and the change in noncontrolling interests is included in the owners‟ share in equity of the Company directly in retained
earnings. The amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests is calculated as follows:
For an increase in the holding rate, according to the proportionate share acquired from the balance of
non-controlling interests in the consolidated financial statements prior to the transaction.
For a decrease in the holding rate, according to the proportionate share realized by the owners of the
subsidiary in the net assets of the subsidiary, including goodwill.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
A.

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(1)

Business combinations (cont'd)

(b)

Non-controlling interests (cont'd)

Furthermore, when the holding rate of the subsidiary changes, while retaining control, the Company reattributes the accumulated amounts that were recognized in other comprehensive income to the owners
of the Company and the non-controlling interests.
(c)

Issuance of put option to non-controlling interests

A put option issued by the Group to non-controlling interests that is settled in cash is recognized as a
liability at the present value of the exercise price. In subsequent periods, revaluation of the liability in
respect of the time factor is recognized as a financing expense. Changes in the value of the liability in
respect of business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2010 are recognized in goodwill.
Changes in the value of the liability in respect of business combination that occurred after January 1,
2010, are recognized in profit or loss according to the effective interest method. The Group‟s share of a
subsidiary‟s profits includes the share of the non-controlling interests to which the Group issued a put
option.
(2)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date
that control is lost.
(3)

Investment in an associate accounted for by the equity method

An associate is any entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control,
over the financial and operating policies. There is a rebuttable presumption that significant influence
exists when the Group holds between 20% and 50% of another entity. In assessing significant influence,
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible into shares of the investee are taken
into account.
The investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method and is recognized initially at
cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The consolidated financial statements
include the Group‟s share of the income and expenses in profit or loss and of other comprehensive
income of an equity accounted investee, after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of
the Group, from the date that significant influence or joint control commences until the date that
significant influence or joint control ceases.
When the Group‟s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity accounted associate, the carrying
amount of that interest is reduced to zero. The recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has an obligation to support the investee or has made payments on behalf of the
investee.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
A.

Basis of consolidation (cont’d)

(3)

Investment in an associate accounted for by the equity method (cont'd)

Long-term interests that in substance form part of the net investment, such as long-term loans that their
repayment is not expected and is unlikely to occur in the foreseeable future, are first accounted for in
accordance with the guidance of IFRS 9 and then the equity method is applied in accordance with the
guidance of IAS 28.
(4)

Joint arrangements

When the Group has rights in the assets and obligations to the liabilities attributed to joint arrangements,
it recognizes the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint arrangement based on its rights in
these items, including its share of the items held or incurred jointly. Gains or losses from transactions
with joint operations are recognized only at the amount of the share of the other parties in the joint
operation. When these transactions provide evidence of impairment of those assets, such losses are fully
recognized by the Group.
(5)

Transactions eliminated upon consolidation

Intra-group balances and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized gains arising from transactions
with subsidiaries are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
B.

Financial instruments

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
The Group initially recognizes trade receivables and issued debt instruments on the date that
they are created. All other financial assets are recognized initially on the trade date when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the instrument. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
creation of the financial asset, except for financial assets measured at either fair value or
through profit or loss, which are recognized initially at their fair value, and transaction expenses
thereon are recognized in profit or loss, and except for trade receivables that do not include a
significant financing component, which are initially measured at their transaction price.
Derecognition of financial assets
Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights of the Group to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or the Group transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on
the financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset were transferred.
Classification of financial assets into categories and the accounting treatment thereof
On the initial recognition date, financial assets are classified to one of the following
measurement categories: amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income –
investment in debt instruments; fair value through other comprehensive income – investments
in equity instruments; or fair value through profit or loss.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont'd)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
Classification of financial assets into categories and the accounting treatment thereof
(cont'd)
Financial assets are not reclassified in subsequent periods unless, and only when, the Group
changes its business model for management of financial debt assets and in the event, as
aforesaid, the affected financial debt assets are reclassified at the beginning of the period
subsequent to the change in the business model.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated at fair value through profit or loss:
It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets so as to collect
contractual cash flows; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified
dates.
A debt instrument is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it meets
both of the following conditions and is not designated at fair value through profit or loss:
It is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
The contractual terms of the debt instrument give rise to cash flows representing solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding on specified
dates.
All financial assets that are not classified for measurement at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as aforesaid, and financial assets designated for fair value
through profit or loss, as measured at fair value through profit or loss. On the initial recognition
date, the Group designates the financial assets for fair value through profit or loss, when such
designation cancels or significantly reduces the accounting mismatch.
The Group has other trade receivable and deposits held within a business model with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows. The contractual cash flows in respect of
these financial assets include only payments of principal and interest that reflect consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. Accordingly, these financial assets are measured at
amortized cost.
Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purpose of assessing whether the cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest, „principal‟ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
„Interest‟ is defined as consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated
with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin.
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Group considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.
11

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont'd)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont'd)
Assessment whether cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest (cont'd)
In making this assessment, the Group considers:
Contingent events that would change the timing or amount of the cash flows;
Terms that may change the stated interest rate, including variable interest;
Extension or prepayment features; and
A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation, received or paid,
for early termination of the contract.
Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant premium or discount compared to its
contractual stated value, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual stated value plus accrued (but unpaid) interest (which
may also include reasonable additional compensation, received or paid, for early termination),
is treated as consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the fair
value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest income or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss (other than certain
derivatives designated as hedging instruments).
Investments in equity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in
profit or loss, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are
never reclassified to profit or loss.
Financial assets at amortized cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
recognized in profit or loss.
Investment in debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont'd)

(2)

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities include: bonds issued by the Company, credit from banks,
lease liabilities, trade and other payables.
Initial recognition of financial liabilities
The Group initially recognizes debt instruments on the date that they are created. All other
financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date when the Group becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
recognized initially at fair value less any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Financial liabilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss if the
Group manages such liabilities and their performance is assessed based on their fair value in
accordance with the Group‟s documented risk management strategy, providing that the
designation is intended to prevent an accounting mismatch, or the liability is a combined
instrument including an embedded derivative.
Transaction costs directly attributable to an expected issuance of an instrument that will be
classified as a financial liability are recognized as an asset in the framework of deferred
expenses in the statement of financial position. These transaction costs are deducted from the
financial liability upon its initial recognition, or are amortized as financing expenses in the
statement of income when the issuance is no longer expected to occur.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation of the Group, as specified in the
agreement, expires or when it is discharged or cancelled.
Substantial modification in terms of debt instruments
An exchange of debt instruments having substantially different terms, between an existing
borrower and lender, is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial liability at fair value.
In such cases the entire difference between the amortized cost of the original financial liability
and the fair value of the new financial liability is recognized in profit or loss as financing
income or expense.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows according
to the new terms, including any commissions paid, less any commissions received and
discounted using the original effective interest rate, is different by at least ten percent from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
In addition to the aforesaid quantitative criterion, the Group examines, inter alia, whether there
have also been changes in various economic parameters inherent in the exchanged debt
instruments, therefore, as a rule, exchanges of CPI-linked debt instruments with unlinked
instruments are considered exchanges with substantially different terms even if they do not
meet the aforementioned quantitative criterion.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(2)

Non-derivative financial liabilities (cont’d)
Non-substantial modification in terms of debt instruments - policy applicable after
January 1, 2018
In a non-substantial modification in terms (or exchange) of debt instruments, the new cash
flows are discounted using the original effective interest rate, and the difference between the
present value of the new financial liability and the present value of the original financial
liability is recognized in profit or loss. See Paragraph S below regarding the manner in which
the policy is adopted initially and its effect on the Company‟s financial statements.
Offset of financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legal right to offset the
amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(3)

Derivative financial instruments
The Group holds derivative financial instruments for the purpose of economically hedging its
linkage and foreign currency exposures, and hedge accounting is not applied in their respect.
These derivatives are recognized initially at fair value. Attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, the derivatives are
measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognized in profit or loss as financing income
or financing expenses.

(4)

Accounting hedge
Derivative financial instruments that are designated as hedging items are initially recognized at
fair value on the date of engaging in the derivative contract, and remeasured in subsequent
periods at fair value.
The Group documents at inception of the transaction the relationship between the hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for
undertaking hedging transactions. The Group also documents the economic connection between
the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including whether the changes in cash flows of the
hedged item and the hedging instrument are expected to offset each other.
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify
as cash flow hedges is recognized in other comprehensive income, directly within a hedging
reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in the
income statement within "financing expenses (income), net".
The Group designates only the change in fair value of the spot element of forward contracts
(„spot element‟) as the hedging instrument in cash flow hedging relationships. The change in
fair value of the future price element of forward exchange contracts („forward element‟) is not
included as part of the hedging relationships and is accounted for as a cost of hedging, with the
change being recognized as a cost of hedging reserve.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

(4)

Accounting hedge (cont'd)
If the result of a forecasted transaction is recognition of a non-financial asset, the amounts that
were accumulated in the hedging reserve and the cost of hedging reserve are included in the
initial cost of the non-financial item upon its recognition. For all other hedged forecasted
transactions, the amounts accumulated in the hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve are
reclassified to profit or loss in the same period, or periods, in which the hedged forecasted
future cash flows affect profit or loss.
If the hedge no longer qualifies as an accounting hedge, or the hedging instrument is sold,
expires, is terminated or exercised, hedge accounting is discontinued on a prospective basis.
When hedge accounting is discontinued, the amounts accumulated in the past in the hedging
reserve and cost of hedging reserve remain in the reserve, until such time as they are included in
the initial cost of the non-financial item (for hedged transactions whose result is recognition of a
non-financial item), or until such time as they are reclassified to profit or loss in the period, or
periods, in which the hedged forecasted future cash flows affect profit or loss (for other cash
flows hedges).
If the hedged future cash flows are no longer expected to occur, the amounts accumulated in the
past in the hedging reserve and cost of hedging reserve are immediately reclassified to profit or
loss.

(5)

Economic hedges
Hedge accounting is not applied to derivative instruments that economically hedge financial
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Changes in the fair value of such
derivatives are recognized in profit or loss under financing income or expenses.

(6)

CPI-linked assets and liabilities that are not measured at fair value
The value of CPI-linked financial assets and liabilities, which are not measured at fair value, is
remeasured every period in accordance with the actual change in the CPI.

(7)

Share capital
Ordinary shares – Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Treasury shares - When share capital recognized as equity is repurchased by the Group, the
amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax
effects, is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares are classified as treasury
shares and deducted from equity.

C.

Property, plant and equipment

(1)

Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment items are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
C.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

(1)

Recognition and measurement (cont'd)
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, as well as any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended
use, an estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located (when the Group has an obligation to dismantle and remove the asset or
to restore the site), and capitalized borrowing costs.
Spare parts, servicing equipment and stand-by equipment are to be classified as property, plant
and equipment when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment in IAS 16, and
are otherwise to be classified as inventory.
Gains and losses on disposal of a fixed asset item are determined by comparing the net proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized within “other income”
or “other expenses”, as relevant, in profit or loss.

(2)

Subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of a fixed asset item and other subsequent expenses are capitalized if
it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with them will flow to the Group and
their cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part of a fixed asset
item is derecognized. The costs of day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(3)

Reclassification to investment property
See Section E hereunder.

(4)

Determination of fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized in business
combinations
The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognized as a result of a business combination
is based on market values. The market value of property, plant and equipment is the estimated
amount for which a fixed asset could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing
buyer and a willing seller in an arm‟s length transaction wherein the parties each acted
knowledgeably.

(5)

Depreciation
Depreciation is a systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
The depreciable amount is the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its
residual value.
An asset is depreciated from the date it is ready for use, meaning the date it reaches the location
and condition required for it to operate in the manner intended by management. Depreciation is
recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of
the fixed asset item, since this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption
of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Freehold land is not depreciated.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
C.

Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

(5)

Depreciation (cont'd)
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Buildings
50 years
Leasehold improvements
3-25 years
Equipment and installations
3-24 years (mainly between10 and 14 years)
Motor vehicles
5-7 years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at least at the end of each
reporting year and adjusted if appropriate.

D.

Intangible assets

(1)

Goodwill
Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries and goodwill that arises upon the
recognition of a liability from a put option issued by the Group to non-controlling interests, is
included in intangible assets. For information on measurement of goodwill at initial recognition,
see Paragraph A (1) of this note. In subsequent periods goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortized systematically but at least once a
year is tested for possible impairment.

(2)

Fair value of intangible assets created in business combinations
The fair value of intangible assets created in business combinations (including customer
relations and non-competition agreements) is based on the discounted value of cash flows
expected to be derived from the use of these assets and their sale. This method required
determination of an appropriate discount rate for the type of asset and its risk level.

(3)

Customer acquisition
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are capitalized when the Group is likely to recover
these costs, instead of the recognition of an expense as incurred. Accordingly, fees to agents for
obtaining transactions with customers will be recognized as an intangible asset and amortized in
the income statements over the expected economic life of the customer.

(4)

Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group, which have finite useful lives, are
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

(5)

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.

(6)

Amortization
Amortization is a systematic allocation of the amortizable amount of an intangible asset over its
useful life. The amortizable amount is the cost of the asset less its residual value. Amortization
is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis, over the estimated useful lives of the
intangible assets from the date they are available for use, since this method most closely reflects
the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in each asset.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
D.

Intangible assets (cont'd)

(6)

Amortization (cont'd)
Internally generated intangible assets (such as cost of software) are not systematically amortized
so long as they are not available for use, namely, so long as they are not in the working
condition for their intended use. Accordingly, these intangible assets are tested for impairment
at least once a year, until such date as they are available for use.
The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Software
3-7 years
Concession arrangement, non-competition agreements
and customer relationships
2-10 years
Lease agreements
3-21 years
Cost of obtaining contract
4 years
Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting year
and adjusted if appropriate.

E.

Investment property

Investment property is property (land or building – or part of a building – or both) held by the Group as
owner, or under a finance lease (until December 31, 2018) or as a right-of-use asset (as from January 1,
2019), either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for:
1.
Use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes; or
2.
Sale in the ordinary course of business.
Investment property is initially measured at cost including costs directly attributable to its acquisition. In
subsequent periods the investment property is measured at fair value with any changes therein recognized
in profit or loss. The cost of self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct
labor, and any other costs directly attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition
for their intended use (hereinafter: the fair value model). The Group applies the fair value model also to
right-of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property.
Investment property under construction is measured at fair value when its value can be reliably
determined. When the fair value cannot be reliably determined, investment property under construction is
measured at cost during the construction period until either construction is completed or its fair value
becomes reliably determinable, whichever occurs earlier. Borrowing costs are not capitalized to
investment property measured at fair value.
A liability for the payment of a betterment levy on investment property is recognized when the rights are
exercised, as defined in the provisions of the Law. Accordingly, the negative cash flows in respect of the
levy are included in the fair value measurement of investment property before recognition of the liability
for payment of a betterment levy.
Any gain or loss on sale of an investment property (calculated as the difference between the net proceeds
from the sale and the carrying amount of the item at the last financial reporting date) is recognized in
profit or loss under increase in fair value and gain on sale of investment property, net.

19

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
E.

Investment property (cont'd)

Reclassification to investment property
When there is evidence that the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property,
which is measured at fair value, the property is remeasured to fair value and reclassified as investment
property. Any gain arising on remeasurement is recognized in other comprehensive income and
presented within equity in a revaluation reserve, unless the gain reverses a previous impairment loss on
the specific property, in which case the gain is first recognized in profit or loss. Any loss is recognized
directly in profit or loss. When an investment property that was previously classified as a fixed asset is
sold, any related amount included in the revaluation reserve, net of tax, is transferred directly to retained
earnings.
F.

Inventories

Inventories constitute mainly goods at the Company's stores and warehouses. The cost of inventories is
based on the “moving average” method. Cost includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories
and the costs incurred in bringing them to their existing location and condition. In the case of work in
progress and manufactured inventories, cost includes an appropriate share of production overheads based
on normal operating capacity. The value of inventories is measured as the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
The net realizable value as above is tested on an ongoing basis taking into consideration the type of
product and its age, in accordance with past experience of the Company regarding the life of the product.
G.

Impairment

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets
The Group recognizes an impairment provision for expected credit losses on financial assets that
are debt instruments measured at amortized cost. On every statement of financial position date,
the Group examines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk of the financial
asset since the initial recognition date, on an individual or group basis. To this end, the Group
compares the risk for occurrence of a default in the financial instrument on the reporting date with
the risk for occurrence of default in the financial instrument on the initial recognition date, taking
into account all reasonable, verifiable information, including forward-looking information.
For financial assets in which a significant increase in credit risk has occurred since the initial
recognition date, the Group measures the provision for impairment loss at the amount equal to the
expected credit losses over the entire life of the instrument. Otherwise, the provision for
impairment loss will be measured at an amount equal to the expected credit losses in a 12-month
period. The losses are recognized in profit or loss and are presented as a provision for impairment
loss against the financial asset measured at amortized cost.
For financial instruments with low credit risk, the Group assumes that the credit risk has not
increased significantly since the date of initial recognition.

31

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Impairment (cont’d)

(1)

Non-derivative financial assets (cont’d)
An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset‟s original effective interest rate.
For significant financial assets measured at amortized cost, the need for an impairment provision
is examined separately for each asset. For the remaining financial assets measured at amortized
cost, the need for an impairment provision is examined collectively, according to groups having
the same credit risk characteristics.
An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be attributed objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognized. For financial assets measured at amortized cost, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss.

(2)

Non-financial assets
Timing of impairment testing
The carrying amounts of the Group‟s non-financial assets (other than investment property,
inventories and deferred tax assets) are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If there are indications of impairment, then the asset‟s
recoverable amount is estimated. Once a year and on the same date, or more frequently if there are
indications of impairment, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of each cash generating
unit that contains goodwill.
Measurement of recoverable amount
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit, for
which the estimated future cash flows from the cash generating unit were not adjusted.
Determining cash-generating units
For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. For the purpose of
impairment testing of goodwill acquired in a business combination, cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which impairment testing is
performed reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes,
and which is not greater than the segment of operation prior to aggregation.
The Company‟s corporate assets
The Company‟s corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows and are utilized by more
than one cash-generating unit. Certain corporate assets are allocated to cash-generating units on a
reasonable and consistent basis and tested for impairment as part of testing of the cash-generating
units to which the corporate assets are allocated. Other corporate assets that cannot be allocated
reasonably and consistently to cash-generating units are tested for impairment as part of the retail
segment as a whole.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Impairment (cont’d)

(2)

Non-financial assets (cont’d)
The impairment testing process in the Group with respect to "cash generating units" is conducted
in three stages:
Stage one – at the end of each reporting period, the Group examines each of its stores for signs
indicating impairment of the store. If there are signs indicating impairment the second stage is
conducted.
Stage two – stores with a discounted cash inflow that does not exceed the amortized cost of the
store's assets are tested as part of a cash generating unit that constitutes a geographic unit, when
the positive cash inflows of one store depend on the cash inflows of another store located in the
same geographic area. A cash generating unit is a group of stores operating in the same
geographic area, this in view of the Group‟s strategy, according to which closing a losing store in
an area where other branches are located might reduce the profitability of other stores located in
that same geographic area.
Stage three – The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the identified cash generating unit,
as above, which includes the store that has a discounted cash inflow that does not exceed the
amortized cost of the assets of the store. If this amount is lower than the carrying amortized cost,
an impairment of the cash generating unit is recognized.
In determining the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit, the Group uses forecasts of cash
inflows that reflect the present condition of the asset and represent the best estimate of the
economic conditions that will prevail during the remaining useful life of the asset.
An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. The
Company tests impairment of branches it decided to close separately from their respective cash
generating units and calculates recoverable amounts for each branch individually.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect of other assets, impairment
losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to
the extent that the asset‟s carrying amount, after reversal of the impairment loss, does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

(3)

Investments in an associate accounted for by the equity method
An investment in an associate is tested for impairment when objective evidence indicates there
has been impairment
If objective evidence indicates that the value of the investment may have been impaired, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the investment, which is the greater of its value in use
and its net selling price.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
G.

Impairment (cont’d)

(3)

Investments in an associate accounted for by the equity method (cont’d)
An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the investment, after applying the
equity method, exceeds its recoverable amount, and it is recognized in the statement of income
under other expenses if it relates to an investment in shares and in financing expenses if it relates
to the component of loans.
An impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of the investment after the impairment loss was recognized, and only to
the extent that the investment‟s carrying amount, after the reversal of the impairment loss, does
not exceed the carrying amount of the investment that would have been determined by the equity
method if no impairment loss had been recognized.

H.

Capitalization of borrowing costs

Non-specific credit costs are capitalized to qualifying assets throughout the period required for completion
and construction until they are ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets in respect of which
a significant period of time is required to make them ready for their intended use or sale.
The Group capitalized non-specific credit costs to real estate and buildings. In this respect, a period of one
year or over is recognized by the Group as a significant period of time.
I.

Employee benefits

(1)

Post-employment benefits
The Group has a number of post-employment benefit plans. The plans are usually financed by
deposits with insurance companies and they are classified as defined contribution plans and as
defined benefit plans.
(a)

Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity
pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution
pension plans are recognized as an expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
related services are rendered by employees.

(b)

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Group‟s net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods.
That benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan
assets is deducted. The Group determines the net interest expense (income) on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then33
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
I.

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(1)

Post-employment benefits (cont’d)
(b)

Defined benefit plans (cont'd)
net defined benefit liability (asset). The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date
on NIS-denominated high-quality corporate bonds that have a maturity date
approximating the terms of the Group‟s obligations at that date. The calculation is
performed ever year by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating
to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss upon amendment of the
plan.
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset) comprise actuarial gains
and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are
recognized immediately directly in retained earnings through other comprehensive
income. Interest costs on a defined benefit obligation and interest income on plan assets
are presented under financing expenses and financing income, respectively.
The Group has a small and immaterial number of executive insurance policies that were
issued before 2004, according to which the profit in real terms accumulated on the
severance pay component will be paid to the employees upon their retirement. In
respect of such policies, plan assets include both the balance of the severance pay
component and the balance of the profit in real terms (if any) on the severance pay
deposits that accumulated until the reporting date, and are presented at fair value. These
plan assets are for a defined benefit plan that includes two liability components: a
defined benefit plan component for severance pay, which is calculated on an actuarial
basis as aforementioned, and another component that is the obligation to pay the
accumulated profit in real terms (if any) upon the retirement of the employee. This
component is measured at the balance of the actual profit in real terms that accumulated
at the reporting date.

(2)

Other long-term employee benefits
The Group‟s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than postemployment benefit plans is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its
present value. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on NIS-denominated highquality corporate bonds that have a maturity date approximating the terms of the Group‟s
obligations at that date. The calculation is performed using the projected unit credit method.

(3)

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Group is committed demonstrably,
without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to terminate employment
before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are
recognized as an expense if the Group has made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probable
that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can be estimated reliably.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
I.

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(4)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided or upon the actual absence of the employee when the
benefit is not accumulated (such as maternity leave). A liability is recognized for the amount
expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided
by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(5)

Share-based payment transactions
The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognized as
a salary expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the awards. The amount recognized as an expense in respect
of share-based payment awards that are conditional upon meeting service terms, is adjusted to
reflect the number of awards that are expected to vest. For share-based payment awards with
market performance vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment
awards is measured to reflect such conditions, and therefore the Company recognizes an
expense in respect of the awards whether or not the conditions have been met.

J.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability without adjustment for the Company‟s credit risk. The carrying amount of the
provision is adjusted each period to reflect the time that has passed and the amount of the adjustment is
recognized as a financing expense.
(1)

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when the expected benefits to be derived from a
contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract. The
provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the
contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is
established, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract.

(2)

Legal claims
A provision for claims is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present
legal or constructive obligation and it is more likely than not that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and the amount of obligation can be estimated
reliably. When the value of time is material, the provision is measured at its present value.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
K.

Revenue

The Group recognizes revenues from its various operations as described hereunder:
(1)

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business is measured at amounts that
reflect the consideration the Group is entitled to receive, net of estimated returns and trade
discounts granted to the customer at date of the transaction. When the difference between the
date of receiving the payment and the date of delivering the goods to the customer is more than
one year, the Group recognizes the future consideration discounted to its present value using a
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer on the date of entering into the contract. The difference between the discounted
consideration as aforesaid and the consideration the Group is entitled to receive is recognized as
interest revenue over the excess credit period. In cases where the difference in time is one year
or less, the Group separates a significant financing component. Revenue is recognized upon the
transfer of control over the goods to the customer.

(2)

Commissions and membership fees
Revenues received from commissions are recognized according to the transactions that used
Shufersal credit cards, in accordance with the rates and dates on which the businesses are
credited. Revenues from commissions in respect of credit spreads are recognized on the date of
entitlement to interest, and revenues from membership fees are recognized on a monthly basis.
The Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the primary supplier in a transaction,
and accordingly the revenue recognized is the net amount of commission made by the Group.

(3)

Customer loyalty program
As part of product sale transactions, the Group grants its customers a loyalty award by way of
points which may be redeemed by future purchases of goods in its stores. A part of the proceeds
from the sale of products entitling the customer to an award is allocated between the award
credits and the other components of the sale, on the basis of the relative standalone selling
prices. Revenue in respect of the award credits is recognized by the Group based on the
anticipated future use of the points at its stores.

(4)

Rental income and management fees
Rental income from investment property is recognized in profit or loss in accordance with IFRS
16 (until December 31, 2018 in accordance with IAS 17, Leases) on a straight-line basis over
the term of the lease. Revenue from management fees used for the current operation of the
property is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
K.

Revenue (cont’d)

(5)

Recognition of revenue on a gross basis or net basis
In transactions in which the Group controls the goods promised in the contract before their
transfer to the customer (and therefore the Group is a principal), the revenues are presented on a
gross basis. In transactions in which the Group does not control the goods promised in the
contract before their transfer to the customer (and therefore the Group is an agent), the revenues
are presented on a net basis.

L.

Cost of sales

(1)

With respect to the retail activity, cost of sales includes the cost of purchase of retail
inventories, net of supplier rebates, as stated below, and expenses with respect to the loss and
amortization of goods, shelf stocking, storage costs and transportation to the final point of sale,
as well as additional expenses related to the online operations.

(2)

Supplier rebates are recorded as a deduction from the cost of purchases. Accordingly the part of
rebates in respect of goods remaining in the closing inventory is attributed to the inventory and
only the other part of rebates reduces the cost of sales. Some of the said rebates comprise fixed
rate rebates that are not dependent on the volume of purchases (the rebate is computed as a
fixed percentage of turnover of purchases from the supplier, or as a fixed annual amount
regardless of the volume of purchases) and some are variable rate rebates, which are recognized
in the financial statements relatively to the purchases entitling the Company to the rebate.
Further to the Food Law coming into effect, as from 2015, with respect to products the Food
Law applies to, supplier rebates are given as part of the purchase price per unit of the product,
other than rebates given according to the Sales Law.

(3)

Cost of services and management: Costs applying to the operation and management of
commercial centers held by the Group as part of investment property, are recognized in profit or
loss as part of cost of sales and services.

M.

Financing income and expenses

Financing expenses comprise interest expense on bonds issued by the Company, interest expense on
borrowings, change in the time value of lease liabilities, changes in the time value of provisions and a
liability in respect of a put option granted to non-controlling interests, changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses recognized on financial assets
(other than losses on trade receivables that are presented under general and administrative expenses),
and losses on derivatives.
Financing income comprises interest income and linkage differences on financial assets, change in the
time value of lease receivables, income from dividends, marketable securities, changes in the fair value
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and gains from derivatives. Interest income is
recognized as it accrues. Dividend income is recognized on the date that the Group‟s right to receive
payment is established, which, in the case of quoted securities, is the ex-dividend date. Foreign currency
gains and losses are reported on a net basis. Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss also include income from dividends and interest.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
M.

Financing income and expenses (cont’d)

In the statements of cash flows, interest received and dividends received are presented as part of cash
flows from investing activities. Interest paid and dividends paid are presented as part of cash flows from
financing activities. Accordingly, financing costs that were capitalized to qualifying assets are presented
together with interest paid as part of cash flows from financing activities.
N.

Income tax expense

Taxes on income are comprised of current and deferred tax. Current taxes and deferred taxes are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or to a
transaction or event that are recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. In such
cases, the income tax expense is recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.
Current tax is the expected tax payable (or receivable) on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current taxes also include taxes in respect of
prior years.
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax
is not recognized for the following temporary differences: the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates, to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, either by way of selling the investment or by way of distributing dividends in respect of the
investment.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.
A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax benefits and deductible temporary
differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.
Deferred tax assets that were not recognized are reevaluated at each reporting date and recognized if it
has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.
A provision for uncertain tax positions, including additional tax and interest expenses, is recognized
when it is more likely than not that the Group will have to use its economic resources to pay the
obligation.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
O.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for treasury shares. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, after adjustment for treasury shares, for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares, which comprise share options.
P.

Transactions with controlling shareholder

Assets and liabilities included in a transaction with a controlling shareholder are measured at fair value
on the date of the transaction. As the transaction is on the equity level, the Company includes the
difference between the fair value and the consideration from the transaction in its equity.
Q.

Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currency are translated to the Group‟s functional currency according to the
exchange rate in effect on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currency on the reporting date are translated to the functional currency according to the exchange rate in
effect on such date. Exchange rate differentials resulting from translation to the functional currency of
monetary items are recognized in profit or loss.
R.

Leases

Policy applicable as from January 1, 2019
Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
On the inception date of the lease, the Group determines whether the arrangement is a lease or contains
a lease, while examining if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. In its assessment of whether an arrangement conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether it has the following two rights
throughout the lease term:
(a)
The right to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and
(b)
The right to direct the identified asset‟s use.
For contracts that are a lease or that contain a lease, the Group elected to account for all the lease
components separately from the non-lease components.
Leased assets and lease liabilities
Contracts that award the Group control over the use of a leased asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration, are accounted for as leases. Upon initial recognition, the Group recognizes a liability
at the present value of the balance of future lease payments and concurrently recognizes a right-of-use
asset at the same amount of the lease liability, adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease payments, plus
initial direct costs incurred in respect of the lease. Subsequent to initial recognition, the right-of-use
asset is accounted for using the cost model, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or useful
life of the asset.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.

Leases (cont'd)

Leased assets and lease liabilities (cont'd)
The Group has elected to apply the practical expedient by which short-term leases of up to one year
and/or leases in which the underlying asset has a low value, are accounted for such that lease payments
are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis, over the lease term, without recognizing an asset
and/or liability in the statement of financial position.
Discount rate
Since the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, the incremental borrowing rate of
the Group is used. This interest rate is the rate that the Group would have had to pay on amounts
borrowed for a similar period and similar security in order to obtain an asset whose value is similar to
the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The lease term
The lease term is the non-cancellable period of the lease plus periods covered by an extension or
termination option if it is reasonably certain that the lessee will or will not exercise the option,
respectively.
Variable lease payments
Variable lease payments that depend on an index that is supposed to reflect changes in market lease
rates, are initially measured using the index existing at the commencement of the lease and are included
in the measurement of the lease liability. When the cash flows of future lease payments change as the
result of a change in an index, the balance of the liability is adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
Other variable lease payments that are not included in the measurement of the lease liability are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the conditions that trigger these payments occur.
Depreciation of right-of-use asset
After lease commencement, a right-of-use asset is measured on a cost basis less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and is adjusted for re-measurements of the lease
liability. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful life or contractual lease
period, whichever earlier.
Reassessment of lease liability
Upon the occurrence of a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is under the
control of the Group and had an effect on the decision whether it is reasonably certain that the Group
will exercise an option, which was not included before in the lease term, or will not exercise an option,
which was previously included in the lease term, the Group re-measures the lease liability according to
the revised leased payments using a new discount rate. The change in the carrying amount of the
liability is recognized against the right-of-use asset, or recognized in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset was reduced to zero.
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Note 3 - Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
R.

Leases (cont'd)

Lease modifications
When a lease modification increases the scope of the lease by adding a right to use one or more
underlying assets, and the consideration for the lease increased by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone price to
reflect the contract‟s circumstances, the Group accounts for the modification as a separate lease.
In all other cases, on the initial date of the lease modification, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to the contract components, determines the revised lease term and measures the
lease liability by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.
For lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group recognizes a decrease in the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset in order to reflect the partial or full cancellation of the lease,
and recognizes in profit or loss a profit (or loss) that equals the difference between the decrease in the
right-of-use asset and re-measurement of the lease liability.
For other lease modifications, the Group re-measures the lease liability against the right-of-use asset.
Subleases
In leases where the Group subleases the underlying asset, the Group examines whether the sublease is a
finance lease or operating lease with respect to the right-of-use received from the head lease. The Group
examined the subleases existing on the date of initial application based on the remaining contractual
terms at that date.
Policy applicable before January 1, 2019
Leased assets and lease liabilities
Leases, including leases of lands from the Israel Lands Administration or from other third parties, where
the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Upon initial recognition the leased assets are measured and a liability is recognized at an amount equal
to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.
When a lease includes both a land component and a buildings component, each component is
considered separately for the purpose of classifying the lease, with the principal consideration regarding
the classification of land being the fact that land normally has an indefinite useful life.
The Group leases lands from the Israel Lands Administration (hereinafter – "the Administration") in
capitalized and non-capitalized leases for a period of 49 years with an option for additional 49 years.
Within the framework of non-capitalized leases, the Group recognized a liability in respect of minimum
future lease payments, discounted at a real interest rate of 5% as of date of engagement with the
Administration, based on an interest rate used by the Administration at that date. The minimum lease
payments paid under a finance lease are divided between financing expenses and the amortization of the
balance of liability.
The Group did not recognize an asset and liability in respect of future payments for exercising an option
to extend the lease period since these payments constitute contingent lease payments that are derived
from the fair value of the land on the future date of exercising the option.
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Note 4 - Short-Term Deposits
Interest rate at
December 31
2019
%

Unlinked deposits

0.65-0.71

December 31
2019
NIS millions

300

December 31
2018
NIS millions

150

Note 5 - Investment in investees
A.

Investment in an associate:
December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

Original cost
Capital notes (1)
Benefit component in loan (B)
Share in accrued profits

8
37
8
11

8
37
8
3

Investment in associate, net

64

56

The Group holds 37% of the share capital of the company Lev Hamifratz (hereinafter - “the associate”).
During the period, the Group recognized its share in the profits of the associate of NIS 8 million (in
2018 – NIS 6 million).
(1)

On September 30, 2017, a shareholders‟ loan in the amount of NIS 100 million (Group‟s
share – NIS 37 million) was converted to a non-interest-bearing unlinked capital note, to be
repaid subject exclusively to a decision of the associate‟s board of directors, after at least five
years have elapsed since its date of issuance. Accordingly, this balance is presented as part of
the investment.

B.

Loan to an associate

In 2017 a loan agreement was signed between the associate‟s shareholders and the associate, which
arranges the terms of the balance of loans that had granted in prior years by the shareholders (which
does not include the maturity date) in the total amount of NIS 119 million (the Group‟s share – NIS 44
million).
Pursuant to the agreement, the loan will be paid in 68 equal quarterly payments, commencing January 1,
2018 until October 1, 2034, and bear annual interest at the minimum rate required in the Income Tax
Ordinance (New Version) and the regulations issued under it (Section 3(j) of the Ordinance) to be paid
quarterly. The fair value of the loan at the date of signing the agreement is NIS 36 million, which was
determined on the basis of the customary interest rate for loans having similar characteristics (December
31, 2017 – 5%). The difference between the loan value and its stated value, NIS 8 million, was
recognized in the balance of the investment in the associate as a shareholders‟ benefit. In the statement
of financial position, the loan balance is presented separately from the investment in associate, as a loan
to an associate.
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Note 5 - Investment in investees (cont’d)
B.

Loan to an associate (cont'd)

Current maturities in the amount of NIS 3 million are included in the item of other receivables and debit
balances.
C.

Details of dividends and profit distributions received from investee companies and
partnerships
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Dividend and profits received
D.

51

10

42

Additional details

On November 26, 2019 Be Drugstores Ltd. completed a transaction for the acquisition of 51% of the
share capital of Bela Online Ltd. (hereinafter – "Bela"). The agreement also included arrangements
regarding a put option and call option on the holdings of the existing shareholders, which will be
exercisable for the first time on April 1, 2022 and every six months thereafter. Bela engages in the
online sale of pharma products and operates a pharmacy. The acquisition of Bela did not have a material
effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
Presented hereunder are the main details of the transaction:
NIS millions

Consideration transferred
Liability in respect of option to acquire non-controlling
interests in subsidiary
Plus acquired deficiency in equity
Excess cost – attributed to goodwill*
*

1
6
5
12

The purchase consideration, the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the
goodwill are subject to completion of a purchase price allocation which as at the date of
approval of the financial statements has not yet been completed.
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Note 6 - Marketable Securities
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss:
December 31
2019
NIS millions

ETF‟s
Government Bonds
Corporate Bonds (*)

(*)

December 31
2018
NIS millions

-

15
8
1

-

15

Investments in corporate bonds rated at least "A" and at least "A2" by Maalot/Midroog, respectively.

Note 7 - Trade and Other Receivables
A.

Trade receivables

Open debts
Checks and notes receivable
Less – provision for doubtful debts
Credit card companies

B.

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

231
38
269
(23)
246
1,127

171
37
119
)11(
188
14156

1,373

141,,

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

Other current receivables

Advances to suppliers
Prepaid expenses
Receivables from leases (1)
Insurance assets
Trust deposits (2)
Accrued income
Advance payment to institutions (3)
Derivative financial instruments
Other receivables

40
26
17
11
6
23
14
23

,1
15
11
6
25
1,
4
1,

160

1,1
,,
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Note 7 - Trade and Other Receivables (cont’d)
B.

Other current receivables (cont’d)

(1)
(2)
(3)

See Note 29.
The balance in trust deposits is in respect of real estate sales of the Group.
On June 26, 2017, the Company received a monetary demand and assessment from the Israel
Land Authority in respect of property it leases in Netanya, by which the Authority is supposedly
entitled to payments as a result of the property being used for commerce and hi-tech instead of
for industry. According to the demand letter, an amount of NIS 42 million (before VAT) is
requested for the nonconforming use in prior periods. On November 23, 2017, the Company
received from the local committee approval to nonconforming use. On August 16, 2017 the
Company submitted an appeal on the amounts in the demand letter and on its underlying
assumptions. As at the reporting date, the Company has paid, under protest, the amount of
NIS 31 million. Moreover, the Company furnished the Israel Lands Authority with a bank
guarantee of NIS 11 million in the form of a bank guarantee). On May 17, 2018, a hearing was
held on the appeal with the Central Government Appraiser. On January 1, 2019, a decision was
reached by the Central Appraiser. In the Company‟s estimation, after performing an analysis,
the determinations in the Government Appraiser‟s ruling deduce a right-to-use fee amount of
NIS 17 million for the said demand. The Company filed a second appeal of this ruling on
February 14, 2019.

C.

Non-current receivables
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Receivables from leases (1)
Derivative financial instruments
Accrued income
Prepaid expenses

(1)

December 31
2018
NIS millions

75
15
18
8

12
4

116

16

See Note 29.

See Note 33 on related and interested parties for information on trade and other receivables due from
related and interested parties.
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Note 8 - Inventory

Inventory of finished products
Less provision for impairment of inventory
Total inventory of finished products
Raw materials and work in progress and packaging

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

935
(28)
907
3

8,5
)18(
817
3

910

811

Note 9 - Other Investments
December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

Current investments
Debt instruments at amortized cost (1)

9

-

Non-current investments
Investment in shares (2)
Debt instruments at amortized cost (1)

8
88

9
-

96

9

105

9

(1)

An investment in securities that are debt instruments held for the purpose of collecting
contractual cash flows. For additional information, see Note 23.A.2.

(2)

An investment in non-marketable shares of Wholesale Market for Agricultural Produce in Tel
Aviv Company Ltd., which is accounted for as a financial asset measured at fair value through
profit or loss. For additional information, see Note 23.B.5.
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Note 10 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2018
Additions
Transfer from held for sale to
property, plant and equipment
Disposals
Revaluation of assets transferred
to investment property
Transfer from property,
plant and equipment to
investment property
Balance as at December 31, 2018
Classification to right-of-use
assets
Balance as at January 1,
2019 after initial application
of IFRS 16
Business combinations
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Depreciation and
impairment losses
Balance as at January 1, 2018
Depreciation and impairment
losses for the year
Decrease in impairment
provision
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2018
Classification to right-of-use
assets
Balance as at January 1,
2019 after initial application
of IFRS 16
Depreciation and impairment
losses for the year
Disposals
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Carrying amount
As at December 31, 2019
As at December 31, 2018
As at January 1, 2018

*

Buildings
and land
NIS millions

Leasehold
improvements
NIS millions

Equipment and
installations
NIS millions

Motor
vehicles
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

14935
68

14916
196

34171
313

95
8

74117
595

-

1
)11(

)15(

)8(

1
)3,(

6

-

-

-

6

)15(
1498,

14111

34379

95

)15(
74561

)317(

-

-

-

)317(

1,667
*27
1,694

2,102
196
(43)
2,255

3,379
278
(60)
3,597

95
11
(11)
95

7,243
*512
(114)
7,641

531

14131

143,1

59

,4161

3,

11,

159

11

319

),(
561

)11(
1413,

)1,(
14,85

)6(
65

),(
)31(
,43,6

),3(

-

-

-

),3(

519

1,234

2,485

65

4,303

32
551

125
(41)
1,318

178
(60)
2,603

12
(9)
68

347
(110)
4,540

1,143
14,11
14,13

937
868
786

994
89,
731

27
31
36

3,101
3411,
14956

Indicates an amount less than NIS 1 million.
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Note 10 - Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)
A.

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment on credit

The balance of liabilities payable in respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment, which
comprise leasehold improvements and equipment, is approx. NIS 50 million and approx. NIS 63 million
as of December 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.
B.

Agreements to set up automated delivery centers

On June 5, 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary entered into an agreement with Amot Investments Ltd.
("Amot"), by which the subsidiary will acquire 25% of Amot's lease rights in available land in the
industrial zone of Modi‟in, on which the parties will construct (as a joint venture) an automated delivery
center (building envelope and without the automation systems) of 40,000 square meters and an office
building of 6,000 square meters (together in this item – “the project”) in which the parties will have
undivided co-ownership at the rate of 25% for the subsidiary and 75% for Amot. The Company will
lease the delivery center from the joint venture under a long-term lease, and it will be used for the
Company‟s online activity as aforesaid.
Furthermore, on June 12, 2018, the Company entered into an agreement with a third party that will
supply and set up the automation activity for the project‟s new delivery center that the Company will
use for its online activity, and for the warehouse in Kadima (on a built area of 8,000 square meters) that
will also serve as an automated delivery center for the online activity.
The total investments in setting up the automated centers in Modi‟in and Kadima, as aforesaid, are
estimated as of the date of approval of the financial statements at NIS 650 million, with most of the
amount being in respect of acquiring and setting up the automated equipment, and will be spread over a
4-year period from the date of the agreement.
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Note 11 - Investment Property
Presented hereunder is the movement in investment property during the year (measured at level 3
of the fair value hierarchy):
Land and buildings
2019
2018

Balance as at January 1
Additions and changes in
fair value during the year:
Acquisitions and investments in
investment property and under
construction
Change in fair value
of investment property, net
Transfer from property, plant and
equipment to investment property
Total additions
Balance as at December 31

Investment property
under construction
2019
2018
NIS millions

Total
2019

2018

546

516

118

71

664

577

12

6

6

13

18

19

29

13

10

11

39

,3

41

11
,1

16

1,
,7

57

15
87

587

5,6

134

118

721

66,
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
A.

Change in fair value of investment property, net

Measurement of fair value –
The Group‟s investment property is measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The significant
inputs that were used to measure fair value are not observable in the market.
Rental properties for commercial and office uses –
1.
Discounted income technique - The fair value is estimated using a discounted income
technique: the valuation model is based on net annual cash flows, on the basis of the existing
and forecasted income from the property, discounted at a rate reflecting the specific risks
inherent in them and as customary in comparable properties. When actual rent agreements
include rent payments that are different from market rent, adjustments are made to reflect the
actual rent payments in the period of the contract. The valuations take into account the type of
tenants and the financial strength of the tenants that actually occupy the leasehold or are
responsible for fulfilling the rental obligations or may occupy the leasehold when available
property is rented out; distribution of the responsibility for the property‟s maintenance and
insurance between the Group and the tenant; the physical condition and remaining economic
life of the property, in those locations that these parameters are relevant.
2.
Significant unobservable inputs –
Market rentals per meter of between NIS 22 and NIS 147 (mainly between NIS 50 and NIS 90
per meter).
Cash flow discount rate of between 7% and 8.3% (mainly between 7% and 8%) (2018: 7.5%8.5%).
Investment property under construction –
1.
“Extraction method” – The valuation is based on extracting the estimated fair value of the
investment property after completion of its construction, based on net cash flows expected to be
received from the property at an appropriate discount rate, less the present value of the
estimated construction costs expected for its completion and less a reasonable entrepreneurial
profit when relevant, taking into account a discount rate adjusted for the property‟s relevant
risks and characteristics.
2.
Significant unobservable inputs –
Construction costs per square meter of between NIS 4 thousand and NIS 6 thousand per meter.
Entrepreneurial profit margin of about 15%-25%.
Cash flow discount rate of between 7% and 8.75% (2018: 7.2% and 9%).
Valuation processes used by the Group –
The fair value of the investment property is determined regularly by external, independent valuers
having appropriate recognized professional qualifications and experience in the location and category of
the property being valued. External valuations are performed regularly at the end of each year and are
reviewed by the Company‟s property department. In the rest of the reporting periods the Group
performs internal valuations using a similar methodology, in order to confirm that there was no material
change in the value of the property. An external valuer will perform the valuation also in the case of
changes occurring in parameters that affect the value of the property.
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
A.

Change in fair value and gain on sale of investment property, net (cont’d)

Valuation processes used by the Group – (cont’d)
The principal unobservable inputs are as follows:
a.
Entrepreneurial profit margin – The accepted margin for commerce and offices in new or longstanding properties. Guidelines for entrepreneurial profit margins based on guidelines of the
Government Appraiser.
b.
The rate of return on investment property – based on data of the Government Appraiser and the
rates of return of rental properties and a comparison to the rates of return obtained in similar
transactions, while adjusting for the elements of uncertainty risk and quality of the tenants, such
as the anchors, national chains, etc.
c.
Market rent – based on the rent actually paid for commercial and office rental properties and on
information regarding rentals in the same area.
d.
Costs of construction per square meter are based on the accepted costs in the industry for similar
buildings taking into account budgets determined by the Company‟s engineer in each project.
B.

Amounts that were recognized in the statement of income
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions

Rental income from investment property
Direct expenses arising from
investment property that generated rental
income during the year
Increase in fair value of investment property, net

2017

51

,9

43

(22)
39

)11(
,3

(21)
36

68

71

58
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
C.

Details on land rights considered investment property by the Group
End of
lease period*
Years

Freehold rights
Leasehold

*

2020-2060

December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

269
452

1,6
,18

721

66,

Including the option period.

Some of the freehold and leasehold properties in Israel have not yet been registered under the name of
the Group companies at the Land Registry Office mainly due to registration procedures or technical
problems.
D.

Details on lease agreements

The future minimum lease payments receivable under lease agreements over the period of the
agreement, without an option to extend the lease, are as follows:
Leasehold
assets
NIS millions

Less than one year
Between one and four years
Five years and more

E.

December 31, 2019
Freehold
Assets
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

28
24
9

11
17
6

39
41
15

61

34

95

Details on agreements

On April 26, 2018 a wholly owned subsidiary entered into a building services land combination venture
and a collaboration and joint venture agreement with Gav-Yam Bayside Land Corp. Ltd. (hereinafter –
the entrepreneur), a company that was indirectly controlled by DIC (the Company's former controlling
shareholder) until September 2, 2019 and as at the reporting date DIC is an interested party of it.
According to the agreement, the subsidiary shall sell to the entrepreneur 69.5% of the ownership over
8,800 square meters of land in Ra‟anana, in exchange for receiving the building services of the
entrepreneur. When the project is completed, the subsidiary and the entrepreneur will have undivided
co-ownership over the project at the rate of 30.5% for the subsidiary and 69.5% for the entrepreneur.
The agreement will come into effect subject to the following conditions being met within 24 months
from the date of signing the agreement: (a) the authorized bodies of both parties approving the
transaction and (b) a detailed urban building plan for the project having legal effect. On June 5, 2018 the
general meetings of the Company and entrepreneur approved the building services for land combination
venture agreement as well as the collaboration and joint venture agreement.
As at the publication date of the financial statements, the detailed urban building plan was not yet in
effect.
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Note 11 - Investment Property (cont’d)
E.

Details on agreements (cont'd)

Further to the aforesaid, on December 17, 2019 the Company's audit committee approved extending the
period for fulfilling the precondition to 30 months from the date of signing the agreement (April 26,
2018) instead of 24 months, and approved that the entrepreneur is permitted to begin the excavation and
plating work, after the rights of the Company have been guaranteed, including in the event of the
precondition not being fulfilled and the agreement being annulled.

Note 12 - Intangible Assets and Deferred Expenses
Goodwill

Cost
Balance as at January 1, 2018
Change in commitment to acquire
share in a partnership (**)
Withdrawal of profits by
partners in a partnership
Additions
Balance as at December 31, 2018
Change in commitment to acquire
share in a partnership (**)
Withdrawal of profits by
partners in a partnership
Business combinations (*)
Additions (***)
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Depreciation and amortization
Balance as at January 1, 2018
Amortization for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2018
Amortization for the year
Balance as at December 31, 2019
Carrying amount
As at December 31, 2019
As at December 31, 2018
As at January 1, 2018
(*)
(**)
(***)

Computer
programs
NIS millions

Other

Total

14137

393

11,

145,,

(19)

-

-

(19)

20
19
14157

,6
,39

22
136

20
87
14631

62

-

-

62

1
12
19
1,151

64
503

23
159

1
12
106
1,813

3
3
3

328
17
355
30
385

111
5
116
9
115

432
31
,6,
39
503

1,148
1415,
1,034

118
8,
65

44
31
13

1,310
14168
1,112

See Note 5.D
See Note 15.
Goodwill additions include mainly goodwill from the acquisition of branch operations.
The other assets additions include customer acquisition costs. The additions include purchases on credit
in the amount of NIS 3 million.
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Note 12 - Intangible Assets and Deferred Expenses (cont’d)
Goodwill
Goodwill is tested by management at the reporting business segment level, which reflects the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes (see Note 32 for information
regarding the Group's operating segments).
The following is summary of goodwill information of business segments:
December 31
2019
NIS in millions

Retail segment
Be segment

1,028
120
1,148

As at December 31, 2019, the Company, with the assistance of an external, independent valuer,
examined the recoverable amount of the retail segment and Be segment which constitute the lowest
level of the Group at which goodwill is monitored for internal reporting purposes. Furthermore, in
accordance with that stated in Note 32, prior to the change in segment reporting, the Company
examined the recoverable amount of the loyalty program credit card segment on a separate basis.
According to the examination's findings, the recoverable amount is considerably higher than the
carrying amount of the aforesaid operation.
The recoverable amount of the retail segment was measured at the fair value of the operation less costs
to sell on the basis of the comparison method. The principal parameters that were used in the valuation
are as follows:
•
The comparison method was applied using the multiple method.
•
The fair value of the retail segment was estimated as the multiple of the representative EBITDA
of the retail segment and a representative EV/EBITDA 8 multiple (in 2018: 8) that is derived
from the market value of similar public companies that operate in the retail industry.
•
From the fair value of this segment‟s operation an amount equaling 2.5% was deducted in
respect of costs to sell that the Company would incur upon the sale of the operation of this
segment.
The result of the aforesaid examination is that the recoverable amount is considerably higher than the
carrying amount of the aforesaid unit (even in the lower range of the valuation, the estimated value is
higher than twice the carrying amount of the unit) and therefore there is no need to record impairment of
the aforesaid goodwill.

5,

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 12 - Intangible Assets and Deferred Expenses (cont’d)
Goodwill (cont’d)
As an indication of the recoverable amount as aforesaid, the Group examined the value of the retail
segment on the basis of an amount that represents the value of the Group on the stock exchange as at
December 31, 2019, after adjusting the Group‟s marketable financial liabilities, less the fair value of the
investment property bases on external appraisals, and the working capital of Shufersal Real Estate, and
after deducting the fair value of the financing activity and the activities of the Be segment, which was
estimated according to an external valuation.
The recoverable amount of the Be segment was based on the fair value of the segment's activity using
the revenues approach, the discounted cash flow method. The principal parameters that were used in the
valuation are a nominal discount rate of 10.5% and a growth rate of 3%. According to the results of
examination the fair value of the Be segment is higher than its value in the Group's financial statements.
The fair value measurements described above were included within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Note 13 - Trade Payables
The Company‟s purchases from a major supplier amount to approx. NIS 816 million in 2019 and
approx. NIS 801 million in 2018.

Note 14 - Other Payables
December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Advances from customers
Employees and other salary related liabilities
Institutions
Accrued expenses
Customer loyalty plan (club points)
Derivative financial instruments
Current taxes
Payables from vouchers
Other

377
295
16
72
22
10
12
18
10

35,
196
1,
68
11
11
6

832

779

See Note 33 on related and interested parties for information on other payables due to related and
interested parties.
The Group‟s exposure to currency and liquidity risks related to other payables, and information on
linkage are disclosed in Note 23.B on financial instruments.
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Note 15 - Commitment to Acquire Partnership Interests
On July 19, 2006 an operating agreement was signed between the Company and Leumi Card Ltd. (currently
called - Max IT Finance Ltd.) (“Leumi Card”) pursuant to which Leumi Card operated Shufersal credit cards that
were issued by Leumi Card (“Leumi Card agreement”). As a part of the Leumi Card agreement and the
collaboration with it, Shufersal Finance, Limited Partnership (“the partnership”) was incorporated pursuant to a
partnership agreement from August 31, 2006 (“partnership agreement”) between the Company, Leumi Card and
Paz Oil Company Ltd. (“Paz”).
According to the partnership agreement, the Company has a call option to acquire the holdings of Paz in the
partnership beginning from one year after the date of signing the partnership agreement and for an unlimited
period of time based on a valuation performed by an agreed valuer. Exercising the options to acquire the holdings
of Paz will award also to Leumi Card, subject to regulatory restrictions, a right to notify whether it wants to
participate in the acquisition of Paz‟s holdings at the same terms, such that the holdings will be split between the
Company and Leumi Card on a pro rata basis according to their relative share of the partnership. The partnership
agreement also provides that in the event of termination of the Leumi Card agreement, the Company will have a
call option to acquire the holding of Leumi Card in the partnership and Leumi Card will have a put option to sell
its holdings in the partnership to the Company. The value of Leumi Card‟s holdings in the partnership will be
determined by means of a valuation that will be performed in respect of the partnership by an agreed valuer with
the valuation deduced from the value of Leumi Card‟s partnership holdings.
On July 11, 2017 the Company notified Paz that it is exercising the call option it has to acquire the holdings
of Paz in the partnership (20%). During March 2018, the Company paid NIS 117 million to Paz for 16% of the
partnership interests. During October 2018, the Company paid an additional NIS 29 million to Paz, for the
balance of Paz‟ interests (4%) in the partnership, since they were not acquired by Leumi Card.
On August 28, 2017 the Company notified Leumi Card that it was not renewing the Leumi Card agreement, and
accordingly the agreement ended on January 18, 2018. It is noted that as regards the existing credit cards that were
issued by Leumi Card, the cards will continue to be operated by Leumi Card and their holders will be permitted to
use them until the expiry date indicated on them.
On April 24, 2018 Leumi Card filed a claim against Shufersal, the partnership and the general partner as
formal defendants and against the partnership‟s auditors (Kesselman & Kesselman, CPAs), and on May 28,
2018 the parties agreed to transfer the disputes between them to mediation.
On December 31, 2019 a mediation agreement was signed between the parties that was approved by the
parties' bodies on January 15, 2020, and received judicial force on January 16, 2020 (hereinafter – "the
mediation agreement"), by which the partnership relationship between Shufersal and Leumi Card will be
terminated such that all the holdings of Leumi Card in the partnership and in the general partner will be
transferred to Shufersal, and Shufersal will hold 100% of the partnership and general partner. Furthermore,
the claims that were filed by Leumi Card will be dismissed, and each party will relinquish its allegations
against the other parties (except for certain exceptions specified in the agreement). In consideration for all
the parties' commitments in the agreement and solely for compromise purposes, it was agreed that Leumi
Card would be entitled to an amount of NIS 73 million (which includes its accumulated share of the
partnership's profits as known on the date of signing). The aforesaid has no effect on the results of the Group.
As at the date of approval of the financial statements all the rights have been transferred to the Company.
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Note 16 - Provisions
December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Onerous contracts (1)
Customer claims (2)
Provisions for claims and legal proceedings (2)

(1)

4
21
18

6
11
16

43

51

Onerous contracts
Presented hereunder is the movement in onerous contracts:
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

6
(6)
4

15
)19(
-

Balance as at December 31

4

6

Presented in current liabilities
Presented in non-current liabilities

4
4

,
1
6

Balance as at January 1
Initial adoption of IFRS 16*
Provisions used during the year
Provisions made during the year

*

(2)

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the
transitional method elected, comparative figures have not been restated.

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings
In the ordinary course of business, various legal claims have been filed or are pending against
the Group companies (hereinafter in this section: “legal claims”).
In the opinion of the managements of Group companies, which is based on, inter alia, legal
opinions regarding the chances of the legal claims, adequate provisions have been included in
the financial statements, where such provisions are required, for covering the exposure from
such legal claims.
Motions to certify claims as class actions that do not indicate the precise amount of the claim
are pending against the Company and in their respect the Company has an additional exposure.
It is noted that since until May 8, 2018, filing a motion to certify a class action did not require
the payment of a fee based on the amount of the claim, the amounts of the claims may be higher
than the real exposure from the aforesaid claims.
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Note 16 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)

a.

Description of Group’s contingent liabilities in effect as at December 31, 2019

1. Description of liabilities classified into groups having similar characteristics:
Claim group

Class actions

Claims of
employees

Suppliercustomer,
authorities and
general

Customer claims
for damages
Total

*
**
***
****

Nature of claims

Mainly motions to certify class actions
that allege illegal collection of funds
and damages from services or products
provided by Group companies
Mainly legal claims of present and
former employees of the Company
involving labor laws including
demands to include various salary
components in the calculation of
various payments to the Company‟s
employees
Legal claims involving commercial
disputes with suppliers of services
and/or products and legal proceedings
on the part of the State, government
bodies and State authorities including
in respect of proceedings concerning
regulation applicable to the Company
and various monetary disputes
concerning the Company‟s payments
to authorities.
Claims for damages that are handled
by the insurance company

Exposure
in respect
of claims
whose
chances
cannot be
assessed
as yet
NIS millions

Balance
of
provision

Amount of
additional
exposure

Total

12

**659

***426

1,097

1

4

4

9

5

24

10

39

21
39

7
694

*440

28
****1,173

Indicates an amount lower than NIS 1 million.
Including claims against the Company and other defendants in the amount of NIS 75 million in
which the amount claimed from the Company is not specified.
Including claims against the Company and other defendants in the amount of NIS 280 million
in which the amount claimed from the Company is not specified.
There are additional claims against the Company in which the amount of the claim is not
specified, in respect of which the Company has additional exposure.
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Note 16 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)

a.

Description of Group’s contingent liabilities in effect as at December 31, 2019 (cont’d)
2.

Presented hereunder is a breakdown of the number and amounts of the Group’s
liabilities according to the amount of the claim:

Amount of claim
Up to NIS 100 million (including claims against the
Company and others that specify the amount
claimed from the Company)*
From NIS 100 million to NIS 500 million
Claims that do not specify an amount claimed
Claims that do not specify the amount claimed from
the Company and others
Claims against the Company and other defendants
together in which the amount claimed from the
Company is not specified
Total

Number of claims

Total amount claimed
(NIS millions)

710
2
5

333
479
-

2

-

11
730

361
1,173

*

As at December 31, 2019 there are 589 customer claims for damages totaling NIS 28 million.

b.

Information on class actions

During the period, motions to certify class actions were filed against Group companies in the total
amount of NIS 148 million. On the other hand, motions to certify class actions against Group
companies in the amount of NIS 780 million were rejected and dismissed with the approval of the court.
Furthermore, two motions to certify consumer claims as class actions against the Company, one in the
amount of NIS 19 million and the other with no specified amount, were concluded in compromise
agreements by which the Company paid a total amount of NIS 1 million.
c.

Claims of employees, subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and others

In the ordinary course of business, various claims have been filed against the Company by employees,
subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and others which deal mostly in claims for breach of provisions of
the law governing termination of employment and obligatory payments to employees, claims for breach
of agreements and compulsory payments to authorities. As at December 31, 2019, the amounts that are
claimed from the Company under the said claims total NIS 48 million.
In 2014, a claim was filed against the Company, the former Executive Vice President of Operations and
Supply Chain and four other managers of the Company (who are not officers) (hereinafter: "the
managers"). The claim alleges violations of the Hours of Work and Rest Law – 1951 (“the law”), with
respect to employees working more overtime hours than that permitted by the law.
On August 1, 2019 a ruling was handed down by the court that acquitted the managers of the violations
attributed to them whereas the Company was convicted of the violations attributed to it. On September
29, 2019 the court ruled on the Company's punishment, by which an immaterial fine was imposed on
the Company. Furthermore, the Company undertook to not perform the violations indicated in the claim
for a period of 3 years, or else it will be required to pay the maximum fine stipulated in the law.
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Note 16 - Provisions (cont’d)
(2)
c.

Provisions for customer claims, claims and legal proceedings (cont’d)
Claims of employees, subcontractors, suppliers, authorities and others (cont’d)

On September 15, 2019 the State of Israel, which is the claimant, filed an appeal with the national labor
court in which it requested to annul the ruling and convict the Company's managers of the violations
attributed to them in the claim. On November 12, 2019 the claimant filed another appeal with the
national labor court on "leniency of the punishment" that was imposed on the Company. In the hearing
on the appeals the State withdrew the appeal against the four managers that are not officers. On March
3, 2020 the court denied the appeals the State had filed on the acquittal of the managers and on the
imposing of an immaterial fine on the Company as punishment.
In addition, on April 24, 2018 the Shufersal Finance Limited Partnership (“the partnership”) received a
claim that had been filed by Leumi Card together with a motion requesting interim orders, against the
Company and against the partnership‟s auditors (Kesselman & Kesselman, CPAs), the partnership and
the general partner (the last two as formal defendants). On December 31, 2019 a mediation agreement
was signed between the parties that was approved by the parties' bodies on January 15, 2020, and
received judicial force on January 16, 2020 (hereinafter – "the mediation agreement"). See Note 15 for
further details regarding the mediation agreement.
d.

Information on claims subsequent to the reporting date

1.

Two motions to certify consumer claims as class actions against the Company and other
defendants, of which an amount of NIS 6 million is attributed to the Company. The chances of
the claims cannot be assessed at this early stage.

2.

A motion to certify a consumer claim as a class action against the Company in the total amount
of NIS 305 million was settled with the Court‟s approval.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit
This note provides information regarding the contractual terms of the Group‟s bonds. Further
information on the Group‟s exposure to interest and liquidity risks is included in Note 23.B on financial
instruments.
December 31, 2019
Stated
interest rate
on date
of issue
NIS millions

(1) Terms and composition
of the bonds
CPI-linked bonds
listed for trade on
the stock exchange:
Bonds (Series B)
April 2005
Bonds (Series B)
November 2005
Bonds (Series B)
March 2006
Bonds (Series B)
February 2007
Bonds (Series B)
December 2010
Bonds (Series D)
October 2013
Bonds (Series F)
September 2015
Bonds (Series F)
July 2016
Unlinked bonds
listed for trade on
the stock exchange:
Bonds (Series E)
October 2013
Bonds (Series E)
November 2016
Bonds (Series E)
January 2018
Bonds (Series G)
January 2019

Less current maturities

Effective
interest rate
on date
of issue
NIS millions

December 31, 2018

Par value (*)
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

Par value (*)
NIS millions

Carrying
amount (**)
NIS millions

5.20%

5.24%

-

-

1,

18

5.20%

5.02%

-

-

8

11

5.20%

5.02%

-

-

5

7

5.20%

4.30%

-

-

11

16

5.20%

2.81%

-

-

9

11

2.99%

3.12%

295

297

315

315

4.30%

4.44%

317

320

317

318

4.30%

4.50%

601

605

611

613

5219%

5213%

280

281

318

319

5219%

,251%

356

369

391

,17

5219%

1211%

396

459

,36

511

3.52%

3.69%

555

557

-

-

2,800
235

2,888
(***)267

14,17
193

1453,
)***(119

2,565

2,621

1413,

14315
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(1)

Terms and composition of the bonds (cont’d)

(*)
(**)

The par value balance of bonds is in nominal values, unlinked..
The carrying amount of linked bonds
The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest
rate on the date of issue, and linked to the Consumer Price Index, as at the reporting date.
The carrying amount of unlinked bonds
The carrying amount of the principal plus interest discounted according to the effective interest
rate on the date of issue, without linkage to the CPI, as at the reporting date.
Includes accrued interest payable in the amount of NIS 30 million (2018: NIS 27 million).

(***)

(2)

In January 2018, the Company issued NIS 476 million par value of its existing Series E bonds
by way of an expansion, for a total net consideration (after deduction of issue costs of NIS 5
million) of NIS 563 million. The effective interest rate is 2.12%.

(3)

According to a shelf offering issued by the Company on January 16, 2019, the Company issued
bonds, by way of a new series (Series G), at a total par value of NIS 555 million. The bond
principal will be repaid in eighteen (18) unequal semi-annual payments (with the principal
repaid as follows: six are payments of 2% of the principal, two payments are 3% of the
principal, two payments are 6% of the principal, two payments are 7% of the principal, four are
9% of the principal and two are 10% of principal), commencing on February 20, 2022 through
August 20, 2030 (inclusive). The bonds bear annual interest of 3.52%, to be paid on the unpaid
principal balance in semi-annual payments commencing on August 20, 2019 (for the entire
period from the issue date) until August 20, 2030 (inclusive). The bond principal and interest
thereon are unlinked. The net issue proceeds (after deducting issue costs of NIS 6 million)
amounted to NIS 549 million. The issue was executed at an effective annual interest rate of
3.69%.

(4)

The Company‟s Series D, E, F and G bonds (hereinafter together – “the Bonds”) include a
mechanism adjusting the interest rate to changes in rating, as well as various financial
covenants as described hereunder (it is noted that the Series B bonds, which ended on March
31, 2019, did not include financial covenants):
Interest rate adjustment mechanism from change in the rating of Series D, E and F bonds
According to the terms of the Bonds, Series D, E and F, in the event of a change in these
Bonds‟ rating to one notch lower than ilA (or a comparable rating), the annual interest rate (“the
base interest”) shall increase by 0.25%. In any event of an additional lowering of the rating the
annual interest rate will increase by an additional 0.25% in respect of each notch. In any event,
the addition to the interest rate that is due to the lowering of the rating shall not be more than
1% above the base interest; all subject to and as detailed in the terms provided in the trust deeds
of the Series D, E and F Bonds.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(4)

(cont’d)
Interest rate adjustment mechanism from change in the rating of Series G bonds
According to the terms of the Series G bonds, in the event of a change in these Bonds‟ rating to
two notches lower than ilAA (or a comparable rating), the annual interest rate (“the base
interest”) shall increase by 0.5%; if the rating will be three notches lower than ilAA, the annual
interest rate shall increase by an additional 0.25%, so it will be equal to the base interest rate
plus 0.75%; if the rating given to the Bonds will be four or more notches lower than ilAA, the
annual interest rate shall increase by an additional 0.25%, so it will be equal to the base interest
plus 1%. In any event the incremental interest rate due to all the lowering of the rating shall not
be more than 1% above the base interest; all subject to and as detailed in the terms provided in
the trust deed of the Series G Bonds.
Cause for immediate repayment in the event of a lowering of the rating; right to early
redemption at the Company‟s initiative
According to the terms of the Series D, E and F bonds, if Bond rating is less than “BBB-” (or a
comparable rating) and the rating is not raised within 60 days, this will constitute cause for
immediate repayment. According to the terms of the Series G bonds, if the rating for the Bonds
is lower than “BBB-” (or a comparable rating), this will be cause for immediate repayment.
The terms of the Series D, E F and G bonds also grant the Company the right to initiate early
redemption all or part of the Bonds at its own initiative, all according to the terms provided in
the trust deeds under the terms of which those series of bonds were issued.
Commitment to comply with financial covenants, commitment to not create a current pledge;
cross default
In the framework of the Series D, E, F and G bonds, the Company undertook to comply with
financial covenants as follows (it is noted that the definitions of the terms "net debt" and
"annual EBITDA" that are quoted hereunder in this note are as they appear in the Series G
bonds. The Series D, E and F bonds include definitions with the same meaning but with slightly
different words):
1.

The ratio between the Company‟s net (financial) debt (as defined in this context as the
balance of the loans (long-term liabilities and current maturities) to banks, other
financial institutions and bondholders, after deducting cash and cash equivalents, shortterm deposit and marketable securities) and the Company‟s total balance sheet, based
on the reviewed or audited consolidated financial statements, as applicable, as at that
report date, shall not exceed 60%.

2.

The Company‟s total equity (including non-controlling interests), based on the
reviewed or audited consolidated financial statements, as applicable, as at that report
date, shall not fall below NIS 550 million with respect to Series D, E and F, whereas the
limit for Series G is NIS 800 million.

The Company shall be considered to be in breach of the aforesaid commitments only if it does
not comply with the relevant financial covenants for two consecutive calendar quarters.
As at December 31, 2019, the Company is in compliance with all the aforesaid financial
covenants.
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(4)

(cont’d)
According to the terms of Series G bonds, commencing from the Company‟s financial
statements for the second quarter of 2019, in the event of a change in the accounting standards
applicable to the Company in comparison with the accounting standards by which the
Company‟s consolidated financial statements for the first quarter of 2019 will be prepared
(“standards as at the first quarter of 2019”), and this change has a material effect on the
result of the calculation of any of the financial covenants or the dividend distribution limitation
(as aforesaid), the Company will examine that covenant according to a pro forma statement of
financial position and statement of income, in a summarized format that includes only
significant and relevant footnotes, reviewed (but not audited) based on the standards as at the
first quarter of 2019, and will publish them together, or as part of, the Company‟s financial
statements. In this context, “material effect” means a change of at least 7.5% between the real
result of the relevant criterion according to the updated accounting standard imposed on the
Company and the result for the criterion according to the standard as at the first quarter of 2019.
The examination of the effect of the change in the accounting standards applicable to the
Company, compared with the standards as at the first quarter of 2019 will be performed by the
Company on the date the Company publishes its financial statements, and disclosure will be
provided in the Company‟s directors‟ report, quarterly or annual (as applicable), in any event of
material effect, as noted;
It is noted that the Series D, E and F bonds provide different guidance in this matter, according
to which insofar as the Company does not comply with any of the said financial covenants or
distribution limitations (as aforesaid), and this non-compliance is a result of material changes in
accounting principles applicable to the Company and/or a result of new accounting policies or
new accounting standards that will be adopted by the Company and/or material regulatory
changes related to the format of financial statement presentation, all in comparison with the
situation on the signing date of the trust deeds of the bonds, i.e., were it not for those changes,
the Company would be in compliance with those terms and limitations, then the said changes
will not be taken into account for the purpose of examining the Company‟s compliance with the
financial covenants and limitations on making distributions.
Within the framework of the trust deeds, the Company committed not to create a floating lien
on all of its assets in favor of any third party, except under the terms provided in the bonds.
It is also noted that among the causes for immediate repayment that are included in the Bonds is
also the event of another debt of the Company (that is not a debt to holders of any of the
Company‟s series of Bonds) to a bank or any financial institution (including an institutional
body) being called for immediate repayment, providing that the total amount called for
immediate repayment as aforesaid is higher than NIS 300 million; an additional cause is another
outstanding series of Bonds issued by the Company being called for immediate repayment (not
by the Company). The trust deeds of the Series D and E Bonds only limit the last cause and
state that the amount of the other outstanding series called for immediate repayment must be at
least NIS 40 million, all subject to and as detailed in the trust deeds of the Bonds.
Restrictions on dividend distribution
In the Bonds, the Company undertook to not distribute a dividend to its shareholders and/or to
purchase its own shares and/or to make any other distribution per its definition in the
Companies Law:
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Note 17 - Bonds and Credit (cont’d)
(4)

(cont’d)
1.

Insofar as the result of such a distribution is that the Company‟s total equity (including
non-controlling interests) according to the Company‟s most recent consolidated
financial statements, reviewed or audited, as applicable, as at the distribution date is
less than NIS 750 million with respect to Series D, E and F, while for Series G the limit
is NIS 1,000 million.

2.

Insofar as following such a distribution the ratio between the Company‟s net (financial)
debt (per its definition above), according to the most recent audited or reviewed (as
relevant) consolidated financial statements of the Company issued before the date of the
distribution, and the Company‟s annual EBITDA (per its definition hereunder), taking
into consideration such a distribution, is higher than 7 with respect to Series D, E and F,
while for Series G the limit is 5.
In this context, “annual EBITDA” is defined as the cumulative amount over a period
of the last four (4) calendar quarters preceding the distribution date of the Company‟s
operating profit (before other expenses and income), plus depreciation and
amortization, calculated according to the data included in the Company‟s reviewed or
audited (as relevant) consolidated financial statements for the last four (4) quarters
preceding the date of the distribution.

3.

(5)

Insofar as on the date the Company‟s Board of Directors decided on the aforesaid
distribution according to the provisions of the law, the Company is in breach of any of
its commitments to comply with the financial covenants required from it in the trust
deed or any of the causes provided in the trust deed for calling for immediate
repayment has occurred (while for Series G it was provided that the period of
negotiations toward resolution in the trust deed will not be taken into account). For
Series G additional distribution limitations were provided, including that no distribution
will be made if on the date of the Company‟s board of directors‟ resolution on the
distribution, the Company does not comply with any of the material obligations with
respect to the Series G bonds.

The Company has agreements with three banking institutions (with each one separately) to
receive a guaranteed two-year credit facility for the Company of up to NIS 100 million from
each banking institution that will end between March and May 2021 and may be utilized by
short-term credit withdrawals. As at December 31, 2019 an amount of NIS 93 million of this
facility has been utilized. As at the report‟s issuance date, the facilities are not utilized. As at the
date of approval of these financial statements, the Board of Directors gave management of the
Company approval to increase the Company's secured credit facilities so that they would
amount to a total of NIS 800 million. Actual execution of the increase is subject to approvals by
the authorized bodies of the relevant bank entities and the parties signing the appropriate
agreements. These facility agreements include financial covenants and restrictions on dividend
distributions similar to the covenants and limitations in the Company‟s Series G Bonds
discussed above. Likewise, the facility agreements include a commitment to not create a
current pledge. It is noted that the causes for immediate repayment that are included in those
framework agreements also include that of a change/creation of control in the Company. This
cause is not found in the Company‟s bonds.
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits
Post-employment benefits include benefits for retirement bonuses, gifts for retirees and future retiring
employees (for the years after their future retirement) and sick leave.
As regards post-employment employee benefits, the Group has defined benefit plans for which it
deposits amounts in individual severance pay funds and appropriate insurance policies.
Furthermore the Company has a defined contribution plan in respect of part of its employees who are
subject to Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law – 1963.
As regards share-based payments see Note 22 and as regards benefits to key management employees
see Note 33.D.
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
Composition of employee benefits:
December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

41
28

40
27

226

18
211

295

296

145
32
51
20

116
28
38
17

248

199

6

-

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

510
(262)

443
(244)

248

199

124
70
30
38

116
65
18
35

262

244

Presented under current liabilities – other payables:
Liability to employees for paid vacation
Liability to employees for recreation allowance
Liability to employees from managers
retention program
Liability to employees for salary

Presented under non-current liabilities – employee benefits:
Severance pay
Retirement bonus
Gifts to retirees and employees after retirement
Redemption of sick leave

Presented under non-current liabilities – other liabilities:
Retention program
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans

Composition
Total present value of obligations (1)
Less fair value of plan assets (1)
Total net liability recognized in respect of
defined benefit plan
Plan assets (insurance policies and central funds)
comprise as follows:
Government bonds
Corporate bonds
Equity instruments
Cash
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans (cont’d)

(1)

Movement in defined benefit liabilities (assets) and in their components
Defined benefit
obligation
2019
2018

Balance as at January 1

Fair value of
plans assets
2019
NIS millions

2018

Total net liability recognized
in respect of defined
benefit plan
2019
2018

443

463

(244)

(303)

199

160

28
15

19
1,

(8)

(8)

28
7

29
6

41

(6)

-

-

41

(6)

10

)11(

-

-

10

(22)

-

-

(12)

47

(12)

47

Other movements:
Benefits paid
Withdrawals (contributions), net

(27)
-

(35)
-

13
(11)

14
6

(14)
(11)

(21)
6

Balance as at December 31

510

443

(262)

(244)

248

199

Expense (income) recognized
in profit or loss:
Current service cost
Interest costs
Recognized in other
comprehensive income:
Actuarial losses (gains) from
changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains from
changes in demographic
assumptions
Other actuarial losses (gains)
Actual return less interest
income

(2)

Actual return
Actual return on plans assets was 9% in 2019 (2018 - 1%, 2017 - 5%).
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
A.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined benefit plans (cont’d)

(3)

Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis
Principal actuarial assumptions (expressed as weighted averages):

Real discount rate as at December 31
Nominal discount rate as at December 31
Real future salary growth rate

2019
%

2018
%

2017
%

0-1.6
1.4-2.9
0-3.0

12,-121
128-,26
0-3.0

0.9-2.5
1.9-4.2
0.5-3.0

The calculations are based on demographic assumptions as follows:
1)
2)

The assumptions regarding future mortality rates are based on published statistics and
mortality tables.
Employee turnover rates are based on an analysis of historical data.

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding
other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts
shown below:
December 31
One percentage point increase
One percentage point decrease
2019
2018
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Future salary growth rate
Discount rate

39
(46)

33
(38)

(37)
51

(31)
42

A change in 10% in the turnover rate would not have a material effect on the defined benefit
obligation.
(4)

Effect of the plan on the Group’s future cash flows
The Group expects NIS 12.5 million in contributions to be paid to the funded defined benefit
plan in 2020.
The Group estimates the plan‟s duration (based on weighted average) to be 10.64 years at the
end of the reporting period (2018: 10.38 years).
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Note 18 - Employee Benefits (cont’d)
B.

Post-employment benefit plans – defined contribution plan
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Amount recognized as expense in
respect of defined contribution plans (*)
(*)

44

,,

2017
NIS millions

43

The Group has defined contribution plans in respect of part of its employees who are
subject to Section 14 of the Severance Pay Law – 1963 with respect to a certain part of
the obligation. The Group‟s contributions in respect of defined contribution plans that
are deposits in respect of employees who are subject to Section 14 are recognized as
expenses in the statement of income.

Note 19 - Other Liabilities

Liability for betterment fee and to the Israel Lands
Administration in respect of investment property
Long-term deferred income
Liability in respect of put option to purchase
non-controlling interests in subsidiary (see Note 5.D)
Derivative financial instruments
Liability to employees in respect of managers
retention program
Other

December 31
2019
NIS millions

December 31
2018
NIS millions

34
6

33
9

6
2

-

6
2

1

56

,3
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Note 20 - Equity
A.

Share capital
Composition of the share capital: ordinary shares of NIS 0.1 par value
2019

2018

2017

Authorized
Issued and paid-in
Balance as of January 1
Issuance for cash during the period (1)
Exercise of option warrants (see Note 22.C)

400,000,000

,1141114111

,1141114111

247,021,217
-

1,541714115
149514111

11141814311
1949894895
348994998

Balance as at December 31

247,021,217

1,741114117

1,541714115

8,864,801

8486,4811

8486,4811

Treasury shares
(1)

In 2017, the Company issued to the public and institutional investors 19,989,895 ordinary
shares of NIS 0.1 par value for total consideration of NIS 355 million (NIS 348 million net of
issue costs).

B.

Dividends
The following dividends were declared and paid by the Company:
Date of the
Board of
Directors’
decision to pay
the dividend

The amount of
the dividend
(NIS millions)

NIS per share

Payment date
of the dividend

In 2019:
Mar. 17, 2019

160
160

0.67 April 8, 2019
0.67

Mar. 25, 2018

160
160

1268 May 8, 2018
1268

In 2018:

All the aforesaid distributions were made in cash and did not require court approval.
See Note 34.D regarding the announcement of a dividend distribution by the Company‟s Board
of Directors subsequent to the reporting date.
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Note 21 - Earnings Per Share
The par value of shares and the profit that were used to calculate the basic and diluted earnings (loss)
per share are as follows:
Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share was based on the profit attributable to the Company‟s
ordinary shareholders divided by a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, calculated
as follows:
Year ended December 31
2019
2018

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders (in NIS thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousands of shares)
Balance as at January 1
Less treasury shares (see Note 20.A)
Add shares issued during the period (see Note 20.A)
Add options exercised into shares weighted
to the period
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in NIS)

2017

269,000

1654111

275,000

247,021
(8,865)
-

1,54171
)84865(
-

221,181
(8,865)
12,174

-

181

75

238,156

1364388

224,565

1.13

1211

1.22

Diluted earnings per share
The calculation of diluted earnings per share was based on profit attributable to the Company‟s ordinary
shareholders divided by a weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after adjustment for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:
Year ended December 31
2019
2018

Profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders (in NIS thousands)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
(in thousands of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate basic earnings per share
Add effect of restricted share units not yet issued
(see Note 22)
Add effect of share options not yet exercised
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share (in NIS)

2017

269,000

1654111

275,000

238,156

1364388

224,565

35
-

14136

2,451

238,191

1374,1,

227,016

1.13

1211

1.21
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Note 21 - Earnings Per Share (cont’d)
The average market value of the Company‟s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of
share options and restricted share units was based on quoted market prices for the period that the
options and restricted share units were outstanding.

Note 22 - Share-Based Payments
A.

General

On May 28, 2019 the Company's board of directors resolved to approve the “Shufersal Ltd – Equity
Compensation Plan 2019” (hereinafter – “the Plan") and to submit it to the Tax Authority, as well as to
approve the allotment of 5,075 thousand stock options (hereinafter – “the options”) and 310 thousand
restricted performance share units (hereinafter – “restricted share units"), non-marketable, to the
Chairman and CEO of the Company, subject to approval by the general meeting of shareholders, and to
seven other officers of the Company (hereinafter – “the offerees”). Out of the said amount, 554
thousand options and 34 thousand restricted share units were allotted to the Company‟s Chairman and
1,661 thousand options and 102 thousand restricted share units were allotted to the Company‟s CEO.
The options and restricted share units for the offerees are offered under the terms of the Plan and in
accordance with the provisions of the capital gains track prescribed in Section 102(B)(2) (“capital gains
track”) of the Income Tax Ordinance, and will be deposited with a trustee for the periods prescribed in
Section 102(B)(2) of the Ordinance. The options and restricted share units were granted for no
consideration. The grant date value of the options and restricted share units was estimated at NIS 27.8
million.
On July 16, 2019 the Company's general meeting of shareholders approved the allotment to the
Company's Chairman and CEO.
Type of
f instrument

Terms of the instrument

Number of
instruments (in
thousands)

Each option may be exercised for one 5,075
ordinary share, NIS 0.1 par value, at an
exercise price of NIS 25.97 (exercise price
will be dividend-adjusted). Exercise of the
option will be executed in the “net exercise”
format.
Restricted
Each restricted share unit will be 310
share units automatically realized for one ordinary
share, NIS 0.1 par value, with no exercise
fee, provided that the following two
performance conditions are met: [a]
Company‟s total revenues (from all
activities) in the last calendar year ending
before the relevant vesting date (hereinafter
– “measurement year”) are at least 90% of
the Company‟s revenues in the calendar year
preceding the measurement year; and [b] the
profit (after tax) attributed to the Company‟s
shareholders in the measurement year is at
least NIS 230 million for the year 2019 and
NIS 240 million for the other years.
*Commencing from date of board of directors‟ approval, May 28, 2019.
Option
warrants

Vesting terms*

Will vest in 4
equal annual
installments

Will vest in 4
equal annual
tranches

Contractual
duration
of the instrument*

4 years – first and
second tranches
5 years – third
tranche
6 years – fourth
tranche
Restricted share
units will be
realized
automatically on
the relevant
vesting date
(provided that the
performance
conditions are met)
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Note 22 - Share-Based Payments (cont'd)
A.

General (cont'd)

Presented hereunder are the parameters that were used to measure the grant date fair value in
2019 of equity-settled share-based payment plans:

Grant date fair value (in NIS)
Grant date share price (in NIS)
Exercise price (in NIS)
Expected volatility (%)
Average expected life (in years)
Risk-free interest rate (%)
Dividend yield of restricted
share units (%)
B.

Options to the
CEO and
Chairman of
the Board

Restricted share
units to officers
other than the
CEO and
Chairman of
the Board

Restricted share
units to the CEO
and Chairman
of the Board

4.02
23.75
25.97
21.60
4.75
0.84-1.21

4.24
24.44
25.97
21.20
4.75
0.66-1

22.16
23.75
2.5
-

22.85
24.44
2.5
-

-

-

2.83

2.75

Options to
officers other
than the CEO
and Chairman
of the Board

Information on fair value measurement of share-based payment plans

The fair value of the options and restricted share units, for the purposes of the Company‟s accounting
recognition, was determined on the grant date, in accordance with the following:
The fair value of the options is measured using the Black & Scholes method. The model‟s assumptions
include the share price on the measurement date, the instrument‟s exercise price, expected volatility
(based on the weighted average of the historical volatility in the Company‟s share price over the
expected option term), the expected life of the instruments (life of the option for all the offerees will be
based on the assumption that all the options will be exercised on the last day of the exercise period) and
the risk-free interest rate (based on shekel-denominated Government bonds, with a remaining life equal
to the expected life of the options). Service conditions are not taken into account when determining fair
value.
The fair value of the restricted share units is measured in accordance with the share‟s value on the
revaluation date, after deducting the dividend expectations until the vesting date of each tranche.
Service conditions and performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the fair
value of restricted share units.
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Note 22 - Share-Based Payments (cont'd)
C.

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options

Outstanding as at
January 1
Exercised during
the year (1)
Granted during the year
Outstanding as at
December 31

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2019

Number of
options
2019

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2018

-

-

11213

149514111

10.98

5,850,000

25.97

5,075,000

9255
-

)149514111(
-

10.23
-

(3,899,998)
-

25.97

5,075,000

-

-

10.23

1,950,002

Number of
options
2018

Weighted
average
exercise
price
2017

Number of
options
2017

(1)

The weighted average share price in 2018 for share options exercised in that year was
NIS 23.16.

D.

Salary expenses in respect of share-based payment arrangements
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Total expense recognized as salary
expense for share-based payments

8

1

2017
NIS millions

4
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments
A.
1.

Management of financial risks
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:




Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk (including currency risk, interest risk, linkage risk and other price risk)

This note presents qualitative information about the Group‟s exposure to each of the above risks, and
the Group‟s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Additional quantitative
disclosure is included in these consolidated financial statements, see Note 23.B.
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group‟s risk
management framework. The Company has an Investment Committee, which is responsible for
establishing the Group‟s financial risk management policies and for supervising and monitoring the
application of these policies by management.
The Group‟s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Group and to monitor these risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group‟s activities. The Group,
through its training and procedures, aims to develop an efficient control environment in which all
relevant employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Investment Committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes
both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are
reported to the Audit Committee.
2.

Credit risk

Trade and other receivables
The Group does not have significant concentrations of credit risk as a result of the Group‟s policy that
ensures that retail sales are usually made in cash or in credit cards, as well as the wide spread of the
Group‟s customers that materially reduces the credit risk.
The Group has a procedure for providing customer credit. According to the procedure the customer
provides documents that identify the customer, details of authorized buyers and receipt of personal
collateral such as security checks, a bank guarantee, personal guarantees or debt note or third party
security, if necessary. Obligo approval authorities are granted according to credit amounts from the
credit risk and collection manager up to the CFO, and credit customer aging is monitored monthly.
The Group establishes a provision for doubtful debts that represents its expected credit losses in respect
of trade and other receivables.
The main components of this provision are specific loss components that relate to individually
significant exposures. The Group does not test impairment of trade receivables on a collective basis
since such a test is immaterial to the financial statements.

76

Shufersal Ltd.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as at December 31, 2019

Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
A.

Management of financial risks (cont’d)

2.

Credit risk (cont’d)

Investments
As at the report date, the Company‟s securities portfolio is comprised of corporate bonds held for the
purpose of collecting contractual cash flows that are rated at least -AA.
The Company‟s investment policy, as was approved by the Company‟s Investment Committee in
January 2018 is as follows: [a] money intended for the repayment of bonds, investments and current
payments within a period of 6 months will be invested in bank deposits according to cash flow needs;
[b] money intended for such needs after more than 6 months will be invested according to a revised
investment policy that mainly provides as follows: up to 15% of the Company‟s investment portfolio
(and not more than NIS 30 million) may be invested in shares tracks as follows: ETF‟s/funds that track
share indices (mainly the TA 35 Index, TA 90 Index and TA 125 index) (it is noted that the policies
enable investment of up to 20% of the shares track in the investment portfolio in ETF‟s in the US and
Europe); at least 55% of the investment portfolio will be invested in government bonds, bank deposits
and short-term bills with the balance (up to 30% of the portfolio) being invested mainly in corporate
bonds rated A and higher.
Derivatives
The counterparties of the derivatives held by the Company are banks rated ilAA/Stable to ilAAA/Stable
based on the rating of S&P Maalot.
3.

Liquidity risk

The Group‟s approach to managing liquidity risks is to ensure, to the extent possible, that it has
sufficient liquidity to meet it liabilities when due. The Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on
demand to meet expected operational expenses, including the servicing of financial obligations. This
excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted
4.

Market risks

The objective of managing market risks is to manage and supervise the exposure to market risks within
acceptable parameters.
In the ordinary course of business the Group buys and sells derivatives, and also incurs financial
liabilities, in order to manage market risks. All such transactions are carried out within the guidelines set
by the Investment Committee.
Currency risk
The Group primarily operates in NIS. It manages its currency exposure that derives from fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates in respect of liabilities and cash flows denominated in a foreign
currency mainly with respect to imported goods denominated in dollar and euro. The Group took
actions to reduce the currency exposure by purchasing futures contracts. See also Note 23.B(3)
regarding forward balances.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
A.

Management of financial risks (cont’d)

4.

Market risks (cont’d)

Linkage risk
The Group is exposed to linkage risk mainly in respect of CPI-linked bonds that were issued by the
Group and CPI-linked rent payments. In order to reduce this exposure the Company entered into interest
rate swap transactions.
Forward contracts:
The Group sometimes hedges the risk inherent in CPI-linked bonds and CPI-linked rent payments by
executing hedging transactions as decided by the Investment Committee. As at the reporting date, the
Company does not have any balances of futures contracts that are CPI-linked forward contracts.
B.

Financial instruments

1.

Credit risk

(a)

Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amounts of the financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
December 31
2019
2018
Carrying amount in NIS millions

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Debt instruments at amortized cost
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other receivables (*)

(*)

55
300
97
1,373
37
30
174

161
151
15
141,,
37
31
71

2,066

14711

The balance of short-term and long-term other receivables does not include prepaid
expenses, advances to suppliers, advance payment to institutions on account of claim
and insurance assets in the amount of NIS 102 million and NIS 84 million as at
December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

1.

Credit risk (cont’d)

(a)

Exposure to credit risk (cont’d)
Composition of the Group‟s trade receivables:
December 31
2019
2018
Carrying amount in NIS millions

Credit card companies
Checks and notes receivable
Open credit and other, net

(b)

1,127
38
208

14156
37
151

1,373

141,,

Aging of debts and impairment losses
The aging of debts of trade receivables is as follows:
December 31
2019

Not past due
Past due 0-30 days
Past due 31 days to one year
Past due more than one year

*
**

2018

Gross
NIS millions

Provision for
impairment
NIS millions

Gross
NIS millions

Provision for
impairment
NIS millions

1,256
32
*39
**69

(2)
(2)
(19)

14111
11
16
18

)3(
)18(

1,396

(23)

14165

)11(

An amount of NIS 34 million was repaid subsequent to the reporting date.
An amount of NIS 50 million was repaid subsequent to the reporting date.

The movement in the provision for impairment in respect of trade receivables was as follows:
December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Impairment loss recognized
Bad debt recognized

(21)
(2)
-

)11(
)1(
1

Balance as at December 31

(23)

)11(
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

1.

Credit risk (cont’d)

(b)

Aging of debts and impairment losses (cont’d)
Doubtful debts and impairment losses
Doubtful debts are recorded against a provision for impairment. If the Group is satisfied that
there is no possibility of collecting the debt, the amount that cannot be collected is deducted
from the total amount of the impairment provision against the financial asset. Management of
the Group regularly monitors the customer debts, and the financial statements include
provisions for doubtful debts that appropriately reflect, in the assessment of management, the
loss inherent in debts the collection of which is doubtful.

2.

Liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities and financial instruments at
undiscounted amounts, including principal payments and estimated future interest payments (*).
December 31, 2019

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

(702)
(2)
(9)

(681)
-

(1,764)
26

(3,503)
(12)
9

(713)

(681)

(1,738)

(3,506)

Total
contractual
cash flow
NIS millions

Carrying
amount
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

Bonds (**)
Forward contracts
Interest rate swap

(2,888)
(12)
9

(356)
(10)
(8)

Total

(2,891)

(374)

December 31, 2018
Carrying
amount
NIS millions

Up to
one year
NIS millions

2-3 years
NIS millions

4-5 years
NIS millions

More than
5 years
NIS millions

Bonds (**)
Forward contracts
Interest rate swap

)1453,(
,
6

)311(
,
)11(

)661(
)7(

)619(
),(

)14513(
17

)34186(
,
6

Total

)1451,(

)318(

)669(

)613(

)14,76(

)34176(

(*)

1. Contractual cash flow includes the effect of the CPI at the reporting date.
2. Liabilities in respect of trade payables and other payables were not reflected in this table
since these credit balances are paid by the Company up to six months from the reporting
date.
3. A liability in respect of the acquisition of partnership interests, as mentioned in Note 15, in
the overall amount of NIS 73 million was not reflected in the aforesaid table.
4. See Note 29 for information on the contractual payment dates of lease liabilities.

(**)

Carrying amount includes accrued interest.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books
The Group‟s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows:
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Other investments
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Other receivables
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other investments
Investment property
Property, plant and
equipment
Right-of-use asset
Intangible assets and
deferred expenses
Deferred taxes

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

51
300
1,373
44
4
-

24
5
-

4
-

92
910

55
300
1,373
160
9
910

24
55
30
57
-

84
39
-

-

8
9
721

116
64
30
96
721

-

-

-

3,101
3,596

3,101
3,596

-

-

-

1,310
113

1,310
113

1,938

152

4

9,860

11,954
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books (cont’d)
The Group‟s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows: (cont‟d)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current liabilities:
Credit from banks
Current maturities in
respect of bonds
Current maturities of
lease liability
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for acquisition
of partnership interests
Provisions
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Lease liability
Employee benefits, net
Other liabilities
Deferred taxes
Equity

Net exposure (*)
(*)

December 31, 2019
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

93

-

-

-

93

124

143

-

-

267

1,974
383

341
-

1
81
10

439

342
2,055
832

73
43

-

-

-

73
43

1,543
4
248
13
-

1,078
3,268
-

6
2
-

41
132

2,621
3,278
248
56
132

-

-

-

1,914

1,914

4,498

4,830

100

2,526

11,954

(2,560)

(4,678)

(96)

7,334

-

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont'd)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books (cont'd)
The Group‟s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows:
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term deposits
Marketable securities
Trade receivables
Other receivables
Inventory
Non-current assets:
Investment in associate
Loan to associate
Other investments
Investment property
Property, plant and
equipment
Other receivables
Intangible assets and
deferred expenses
Deferred taxes

December 31, 2018
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

157
151
11
141,,
51
-

,
6
-

5
,
-

81
811

161
151
15
141,,
1,1
811

37
31
9
-

-

-

19
66,

56
31
9
66,

-

11

-

3411,
,

3411,
16

-

-

-

14168
5

14168
5

14711

11

9

5497,

74715
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

The exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk of assets and liabilities, including financial
instruments, as recorded on the books (cont’d)
The Group‟s exposure to linkage and foreign currency risk is as follows: (cont‟d)
Israeli currency
Unlinked
Linked
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current liabilities:
Current maturities in
respect of bonds
Trade payables
Other payables
Liability for acquisition
of partnership interests
Provisions
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds
Employee benefits, net
Other liabilities
Provisions
Deferred taxes
Equity

Net exposure (*)
(*)

December 31, 2018
Foreign currency
Mainly dollar
NIS millions

Non-monetary
item
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

117
14957
3,8

111
-

57
-

,31

119
1411,
779

11
50

-

-

-

11
51

14111
199
-

14115
-

-

,3
1
117

14315
199
,3
1
117

-

-

-

14956

14956

34791

14317

57

145,9

74715

)14191(

)14185(

),8(

34,15

-

The net exposure does not include off-balance sheet liabilities.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis
An increase in the CPI would have affected the equity and the profit or loss at the amounts presented
below. This analysis assumes that other variables remain constant. This analysis does not include offbalance sheet liabilities with regard to the Group‟s commitments.
December 31, 2019
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

(36)

Increase of 1% in CPI

December 31, 2018
Change in
equity
Pre-tax loss
NIS millions
NIS millions

(47)

)11(

)13(

A decrease in the CPI at the same rate as at December 31 would have the same effect, although in the
opposite direction, assuming that all other variables remain constant.
The Group‟s exposure to foreign currency risk in respect of the dollar/euro is immaterial.
Presented hereunder are the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2019:

Hedge description
Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
goods
Forward – hedge of imported
goods and property under
construction
Instrument serving as
accounting hedge:
Interest rate swap

Currency
receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Fair value
NIS millions

Dollar

NIS

104

Feb.- Dec.
2019

Jan.-Nov.
2020

(1)

Euro

NIS

301

June 2018Dec. 2019

Jan. 2020July 2022

(11)

-

-

600
1,005

Aug.-Nov.
2016

Oct. 2028

9
(3)
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

3.

Linkage and foreign currency risks (cont’d)

Presented hereunder are the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at December 31, 2018:

Hedge description

Currency
receivable

Currency
payable

Par value
NIS millions

Beginning of
transaction

Date of
expiration/
exercise

Dollar

NIS

97

May-Dec.
2018
June-Dec.

Jan.-Nov.
2019
Jan. 2019-

2

Euro

NIS

166

2018

Nov. 2020

2

Aug.-Nov.
2016

Oct. 2028

6
10

Hedges of foreign currency
linked transactions:
Forward – hedge of imported
goods
Forward – hedge of imported
goods and property under
construction
Instrument serving as
accounting hedge:
Interest rate swap

4.

600
863

Fair value
NIS millions

Interest rate risk
Interest profile
As at December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Group‟s interest-bearing financial liabilities are fixedrate financial liabilities.

5.

Fair value

Financial instruments measured at fair value for disclosure purposes only
The carrying amounts of certain financial assets and liabilities, including cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, other receivables, other short-term investments, derivatives, trade payables, other
payables and short-term and long-term loans and borrowing are the same or proximate to their fair
value. The fair values of the bonds and the carrying amounts shown in the statement of financial
position, are as follows:
December 31, 2019
Carrying
amount
Fair value*
NIS millions
NIS millions

Bonds (including accrued
interest)
Debt instruments at
amortized cost
*

December 31, 2018
Carrying
amount
Fair value*
NIS millions
NIS millions

(2,888)

(3,326)

)1453,(

)14756(

97

99

-

-

The fair value of the bonds and debt instruments at amortized cost is their value on the stock
exchange (level 1).
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

5.

Fair value (cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments measured at fair value
The table hereunder presents the financial assets that are measured at fair value, using a valuation
method.
The various levels are defined as follows:
Level 1: fair value measured by quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2: fair value measured by inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable, either directly or indirectly
Level 3: fair value measured by inputs that are not based on observable market data.
Level 1

Financial assets
Marketable securities
Interest rate swap
Forward
Investment*

Financial liabilities
Forward

*

December 31, 2019
Level 2
Level 3
NIS millions

Total

Level 1

December 31, 2018
Level 2
Level 3
NIS millions

Total

-

9
9

8
8

9
8
17

15
15

6
4
10

9
9

15
6
4
9
44

-

(12)
(3)

8

(12)
5

15

10

9

,,

An investment in non-marketable shares of Wholesale Market for Agricultural Produce in Tel
Aviv Company Ltd., which is accounted for as a financial asset measured at fair value through
profit or loss. In 2018, the Company received a dividend in the amount of NIS 5 million.

Financial assets measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
Presented hereunder is the development in the balance of the investment with respect to a financial
instrument measured at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Dividend received
Losses recognized in profit and loss
Balance as at December 31

9
-

16
)5(

(1)
8

)1(
9

Fair value sensitivity analysis of level 3 financial instruments carried at fair value
In the opinion of management, a reasonably possible change in one or more unobservable inputs would
not have caused a material change in the fair value.
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Note 23 - Risk Management and Financial Instruments (cont’d)
B.

Financial instruments (cont’d)

6.

Changes in financial liabilities whose cash flows are classified as cash flows from financing
activities:

Credit from
banks
NIS millions

Swap
transactions
NIS millions

Bonds
including
current
maturity and
accrued
interest
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1, 2018
Cash flows paid (received), net
Amounts recognized in equity
Amounts recognized in profit
or loss
Balance as at January 1, 2019

-

)8(
11
13

)14191(
)153(
17

(2,200)
(243)
30

-

(9)
6

)116(
)23514(

(115)
(2,528)

Cash flows paid (received), net
Amounts recognized in equity
Amounts recognized in profit
or loss

(93)
-

01
1

(236)
-

(319)
1

-

(8)

)008(

(126)

Balance as at December 31, 2019

(93)

9

)23888(

(2,972)

Total
NIS millions
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Note 24 - Revenues and Rental Fees
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Revenue from retail segment (*)
Rental revenue from investment property
Revenue from Be operations

(*)

12,603
51
706

12,246
,9
551

11,809
43
-

13,360

1148,7

11,852

Of which in 2019 a rate of 15% is from online sales (compared with 13.6% in 2018) and 25.2%
is from private label sales (including also online sales of the private label) (compared with 24%
in 2018).

Note 25 - Selling, Marketing, General and Administrative Expenses
A.

Selling and marketing expenses
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Salaries and related expenses
Rent, management fees and municipal taxes
Depreciation and amortization
Advertising expenses and sales promotion
Cleaning, maintenance and electricity
Credit fees
Transportation and motor vehicles
Security expenses and computers
Other expenses

1,176
234
653
164
345
89
58
55
110

14186
586
178
111
335
88
55
54
123

965
497
256
119
314
83
51
51
94

2,884

2,806

2,430
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Note 25 - Selling, Marketing, General and Administrative Expenses (cont’d)
B.

General and administrative expenses
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Salaries and related expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Maintenance and computers
Consultancy services
Other expenses

82
19
24
26
53

67
15
26
18
,6

57
15
23
30
41

204

182

166

Note 26 - Other Expenses, Net
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Expenses allocated to liability to institutions
Recovery of (decrease in) value of
property, plant and equipment
Capital gain (loss)
Rebranding expenses of the Be chain (1)
Other income (expenses), net

(1)

(1)

)6(

(11)

(1)
(1)

,
)3(
)13(
1

(9)
1
(1)

(3)

)17(

(20)

Mainly advertising, branding and design of the stores for the new brand and launching of
renovated branches.
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Note 27 - Financing Expenses, Net
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Interest expenses on lease liabilities
Interest and CPI-linkage expenses on bonds
Expense for option to acquire a partnership
Effect of discount of post-employment
benefits plan
Expenses on hedging transactions
Bank expenses and management fees
Other expenses
Total financing expenses before deduction of
capitalized borrowing costs
Borrowing costs capitalized to qualifying assets
Financing expenses recognized in profit or loss
Income from reversal of impairment on loan
to associate
Income from foreign exchange differences
and other investments
Financing income from installment sale
transactions
Interest income from employee benefits plan assets
Interest income on leases
Interest income and other
Financing income recognized in profit or loss
Financing expenses, net

(112)
(118)
-

)116(
-

(97)
(11)

(15)
(26)
(5)
(9)

)1,(
)7(
)5(

(15)
(13)
(7)
(9)

(285)
6
(279)

)131(
1
)131(

(152)
(152)

-

-

14

2

-

-

8
6
4
20

1
8
5
1,

1
10
3
28

(259)

)116(

(124)
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Note 28 - Income Tax
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Group

(1)

Corporate tax rate
Presented hereunder are the tax rates relevant to the Company in the years 2017-2019:
2017 – 24%
2018 – 23%
2019 and thereafter – 23%
On January 4, 2016 the Knesset (the Israeli parliament) plenum passed the Law for the
Amendment of the Income Tax Ordinance (Amendment 216) - 2016, by which, inter alia, the
corporate tax rate would be reduced by 1.5% to a rate of 25% as from January 1, 2016.
Furthermore, on December 22, 2016 the Knesset plenum passed the Economic Efficiency Law
(Legislative Amendments for Achieving Budget Objectives in the Years 2017 and 2018) –
2016, by which, inter alia, the corporate tax rate would be reduced from 25% to 23% in two
steps. The first step will be to a rate of 24% as from January 2017 and the second step will be to
a rate of 23% as from January 2018.
As a result of the reduction in the tax rate to 23% in two steps, the deferred tax balances as at
December 31, 2018 and 2019 were calculated according to the new tax rate specified in the
Economic Efficiency Law (Legislative Amendments for Achieving Budget Objectives in the
Years 2017 and 2018), at the tax rate expected to apply on the date of reversal.
Current taxes for the reported periods are calculated according to the tax rates presented above.

(2)

Non-application of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) for tax purposes
The Company prepares its financial statements beginning on January 1, 2008 in accordance
with IFRS.
IFRS differ from accounting principles generally accepted in Israel and accordingly, the
preparation of financial statements in accordance with IFRS may reflect a financial position,
results of operations and cash flows that are materially different from those presented in
financial statements presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Israel.
According to temporary provisions that were issued in 2010, 2012 and 2014 (hereinafter - the
temporary provisions), Accounting Standard No. 29 of the Israel Accounting Standards Board
regarding adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) does not apply to the
determination of taxable income in 2007-2013, even if IFRS was adopted in the relevant tax
years. The meaning of the temporary provisions is that IFRSs do not apply in practice when
calculating the income reported for tax purposes for the relevant tax years.
In 2014, an updated law memorandum was published in connection with the amendment to the
Income Tax Ordinance (hereinafter - the law memorandum) resulting from application of IFRS
in financial statements. Generally, the law memorandum adopts IFRS. However, it suggests
several amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance that will serve to clarify and determine the
manner of computing taxable income for tax purposes in cases where the manner of
computation is unclear and IFRS is incompatible with the principles of the tax method applied
in Israel. The legislation process involving the law memorandum has not been completed, and
is unlikely to be completed in the near future.
Taking into consideration the temporary provisions that apply to the 2007-2013 tax years and
the Company's assessment of the probability that they will be extended also to the 2014-2019
tax years, as aforesaid, the Company calculated its taxable income for 2008-2019 on the basis
of the Israeli accounting standards that existed prior to the adoption of IFRS in Israel, subject to
certain adjustments.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
A.

Details regarding the tax environment of the Group (cont’d)

(3)

Benefits under the Law for the Encouragement of Industry
Gidron Industries Ltd., a subsidiary, qualifies as an “Industrial Company” as defined in the Law
for the Encouragement of Industry (Taxes) – 1969 and accordingly it is entitled to, inter alia,
higher rates of depreciation.

B.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

The movement in deferred tax assets (liabilities) is attributable to the following items:
Vacation
and
recreation

Fixed
Employee
benefits

and other
assets

Tax
losses

Investment
property

Leases (*)

Other
items

Total

NIS millions

Balance as at January 1, 2018
Changes in 2018
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized directly in equity
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2018

13

,1

)96(

11

)5,(

-

)11(

)96(

3
-

3
-

9
-

)1(
-

)11(
-

-

),(
),(

)11(
),(

-

,

)1(

-

-

-

)3(

-

16

,8

)88(

11

)75(

-

)13(

)111(
5
)117(
)111(

Presented within assets
Presented within liabilities
Total
Balance as at January 1, 2019
Changes in 2019
Recognized in profit or loss
Recognized directly in retained
earnings (*)
Recognized in other
comprehensive income
Balance as at December 31, 2019

16

,8

)88(

11

)75(

-

)13(

)111(

2

-

(6)

47

(12)

10

4

45

-

-

-

-

-

37

-

37

-

9

-

-

-

-

2

11

18

57

(94)

57

(87)

47

(17)

(19)

Presented within assets
Presented within liabilities
Total
(*)

113
(132)
(19)

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method
elected, comparative figures have not been restated.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
C.

Composition of income tax expense
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Current tax expense (income)
Current year
Adjustments for prior years, net
Deferred tax expense (income)
Deferred taxes for prior years
Deferred taxes, net
Total income tax expense
D.

86
(3)
83

81
1
81

23
6
29

(31)
(14)
(45)
38

11
11
94

(4)
60
56
85

Deferred taxes in respect of other comprehensive income
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions
NIS millions

Components of deferred taxes in other
comprehensive income
Effective portion of change in fair value of
cash flow hedges
Revaluation reserve for property, plant and
equipment
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Total

(2)

3

(2)

(9)

1
),(

(4)

(11)

-

(6)

9,
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
E.

Reconciliation between the theoretical tax on the pre-tax profit and the tax expense
included in the statement of income:
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Profit before taxes on income, as
reported in the statements of income
Tax rate
Tax calculated according to the tax rate
Additional tax (tax saving) in respect of:
Utilization and creation of tax losses and benefits
from prior years for which deferred taxes were not
created
Neutralization of tax calculated in respect of the
Company‟s share in profits of equity accounted
investees
Change in temporary differences for which
deferred taxes were not recognized
Adjustments in respect of previous years, net
Current year tax losses and benefits for which
deferred taxes were not created
Other
Income tax expense in the statement of income

2017
NIS millions

306

359

360

23%

13%

24%

70

83

86

(31)

),(

(4)

(2)

)1(

(1)

2
(3)

1
1

(1)
6

2

13
1

(2)
1

38

9,

85

F.

Tax assessments

(1)

The Company has final tax assessments up to and including the 2016 tax year, and all the
amounts the Company is required to pay according to these assessments have been paid in full
until the date of signing the financial statements.

(2)

The Company has final deductions assessments up to and including 2014.

(3)

Subsidiaries have final tax assessments up to and including the 2014 tax year, aside from Be
Drugstores Ltd. (up to and including the 2015 tax year) and Gidron Industries Ltd. (up to and
including the 2016 tax year). All the payments owed by the companies according to these
assessments have been paid in full.
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Note 28 - Income Tax (cont’d)
G.

Carry-forward tax losses

Subsidiaries have a cumulative business loss for income tax purposes in the amount of NIS 210 million
(2018: NIS 135 million) for which the Group created, this year for the first time, deferred tax assets in
the amount of NIS 47 million. Likewise, the Group has a cumulative capital loss of NIS 45 million, for
which a deferred tax asset of NIS 10 million was recognized (as at December 31, 2018, the Group had a
cumulative capital loss of NIS 44 million, for which a deferred tax asset of NIS 10 million was
recognized).
In accordance with current tax laws, there is no time limitation for utilizing tax losses.

Note 29 - Leases
As from January 1, 2019 the Group applies IFRS 16, Leases. The Group's lease agreements mainly relate to land
and buildings it uses in its business operations. In addition, the Group subleases some of the land and buildings
that do not serve its business operations, usually at the same terms as the original lease.
A.

Receivables from leases
Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Receipts of principal and interest
Interest income
Additions*
Other**
Balance as at December 31
*
**

85
(15)
6
15
1
92

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.

Maturity analysis of receivables from leases
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Up to one year
One to five years
More than five years
Total contractual cash flow

17
50
35
102
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
B.

Right-of-use assets
Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Depreciation
Additions*
Other**

3,578
(359)
367
10

Balance as at December 31

3,596

*
**

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.

The Group leases from the Israel Lands Administration several lots of land that it uses as branches of
the chain for a period of 49 years. The Group has options to extend the period by an additional 49 years.
Some of the lands leased in Israel have not yet been registered under the name of the Group companies
at the Land Registry Office mainly due to registration procedures or technical problems.
C.

Lease liabilities
Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Balance as at January 1
Repayment of principal and interest
Financing expenses
Classification to provisions for onerous contracts
Additions*
Other**

3,554
(437)
112
(4)
384
11

Balance as at December 31

3,620

Current maturities of lease liability
Long-term lease liabilities

342
3,278

Total lease liabilities

3,620

*
**

Due mainly to new agreements and modifications that were made in lease agreements, such as
extension of the lease term.
Due mainly to adjustments to the Consumer Price Index.
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
C.

Lease liabilities (cont'd)
Maturity analysis of lease liabilities
December 31
2019
NIS millions

D.

Up to one year
One to five years
More than five years

448
1,645
2,245

Total contractual cash flow

4,338

Additional information on leases
1.

Amounts recognized in profit or loss
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Variable lease payments not included in the measurement
of the lease liability*
Interest expenses on lease liability, net

(359)

Total expenses

(531)

*

(66)
(106)

Mainly expenses based on turnover and management fees that are recognized in the framework
of selling and marketing expenses.
Year ended December 31
2018
2017
NIS millions
NIS millions

Minimum lease payments recognized as an expense
(including additional provision for onerous contracts)
Income from sublease

(456)
23

(395)
33

(433)

(362)
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Note 29 - Leases (cont'd)
D.

Additional information on leases (cont'd)
2.

Amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows
Year ended
December 31
2019
NIS millions

Cash inflow from leases

15

Cash outflow from leases

503

Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
A.

Agreement with Israel Credit Cards
On November 2, 2017 the Company and Israel Credit Cards Ltd. and Diners Club Israel Ltd. (together –
“ICC”) signed a term sheet that was updated in September 2019 (“the term sheet”) for the issuance
and operation of non-bank credit cards that will be issued by ICC to the Company‟s customers (the
operation). The operation was launched on January 18, 2018 (the last date of the Leumi Card
agreement). It was also provided that the parties would act to sign within 6 months a detailed agreement
that arranges all the matters between the parties with respect to the aforesaid operation, while up to the
date of signing the detailed agreement the term sheet will bind the parties. As at the report date, the
detailed agreement had not been signed and the parties continue to operate according to the term sheet.
The agreement will be in effect from the date of its signing until December 31, 2027, this period being
extended each time for periods of two years each, unless one of the parties notifies of its wish to not
extend the agreement for an additional period by providing notice at least 12 months before the end of
each period. According to the term sheet, the Company is the owner of the data base of card holders,
and it will have all the proprietary rights in the data base, with ICC being only the holder of the data
base. In the term sheet ICC undertook with respect to each of the years 2018, 2019 and 2020 that if the
Company group‟s revenues from the operation, as defined in the term sheet, in each one of the years, is
lower than the amount set forth in the term sheet (about NIS 67 million), ICC will pay the Company the
difference until the end of the first quarter of each year compared to the previous year, all subject to the
conditions provided on this matter in the term sheet. In 2018 and 2019 the Company's revenues from
this operation were higher than the amount set forth in the term sheet. The term sheet further provided
that subject to achieving the operational targets, as prescribed in the term sheet, ICC will pay two
bonuses to the Company, of NIS 35 million each at the end of the fourth and eighth year of the
agreement (until the date of this report the Company has recognized NIS 17.5 million as accrued
income, in respect of the contingent payments). Additionally, ICC paid the Company an amount of NIS
30 million in respect of the benefits the Company gave the holders of its customer club‟s credit cards
(NIS 10 million in the reporting period and NIS 20 million in 2018).
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)
B.

Provisions of the Food Law and provisions of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law

In March 2014, the Law for the Promotion of Competition in the Food Industry – 2014 (“the Food
Law”) was published on the Official Gazette. The Food Law includes three sets of provisions: (a)
provisions regulating the activity of suppliers and retailers, including the activity of a large retailer, (b)
provisions regarding geographical competition of retailers, and (c) provisions regulating price
transparency. The law also includes a chapter on enforcement, punishment and monetary sanctions.
The provisions of the Economic Competition Law – 1988 (“the Competition Law”) and the Food Law
may have an effect on the activity of the Shufersal Group mainly as to the possibilities of acquiring
retail operations in the future and regarding the trade arrangements between Shufersal and its suppliers.
Upon the Food Law coming into effect, the trade arrangements between Shufersal and its suppliers are
regulated in detail in the Food Law, which constitutes a special law on the promotion of competition in
the food industry and in the consumer goods market, and in the rules published by the Commissioner
pursuant to the Food Law. In December 2015 the Commissioner issued an opinion regarding the
parallel scope of the Restrictive Trade Practices Law (as it was called at the time) and the Food Law.
The opinion provides cases to which only the provisions of the Food Law shall apply and no additional
regulation shall be required in accordance with the Competition Law: arrangements or actions that are
exempt in accordance with Section 7(B) of the Food Law or in accordance with rules that were
established in accordance with Section 7(C) of the Food Law (Shelf Stocking), are not a restrictive
arrangement according to the Competition Law and the regulatory framework in the Food Law as
regards shelf stocking is a comprehensive regulatory framework; directives regarding the unnecessity,
in certain circumstances, of submitting a merger notice to the Commissioner when opening a new store
or acquiring an existing store. As at the reporting date, taking into consideration the structure of the
retail market and the legal restrictions that apply to Shufersal, and in view of the provisions of the Food
Law, Shufersal is of the opinion that there is a low probability that the Company will grow by means of
acquiring a significant body in the retail market. Furthermore, the provisions of the Food Law regarding
geographical competition of retailers may affect the ability of the Company to expand by opening new
branches in certain areas, and in certain circumstances the Company may be required to close down
active branches (it is noted that at the reporting date the Company has not been required by the
Competition Commissioner to close down any of its branches).
In October 2018, the Company received a notice from the Competition Authority about catchment areas
of the large stores of the Company ("the catchment area notice"). The catchment area notice referred to
97 large stores, with calculated rate of more than 30% but less than 50%, and 39 large stores with
calculated rate of over 50%. The notice was accompanied by maps of catchment areas of those stores. It
is noted that after reviewing the catchment area maps that were enclosed in the catchment area notice,
the stores that may be exposed to actions under the above temporary provision are as follows: 15 stores
in the Haifa area and 3 stores in the Zefat area. It is noted that as of the date of this report, the Company
had not been required, under the temporary provision, to close any of its stores.
As at December 31, 2019, implementation of the Food Law did not have any material impact on the
business of the Company.
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Note 30 - Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (cont’d)
C.

Indemnification and insurance of officers

According to the Company‟s articles, the Company insures and indemnifies officers in respect of their
liability subject to the provisions of the law and other restrictions.
D.

Guarantees

As security for the liabilities of the Company and subsidiaries to various parties, the Company provided
bank guarantees totaling NIS 38 million.

Note 31 - Liens
The Company has a deposit of NIS 6 million pledged against a swap transaction.

Note 32 - Segment Reporting
The Group implements the instructions of IFRS 8, Operating Segments, in accordance with the
accounting policies presented.
The Group has three reportable segments that are strategic business units. The strategic business units
offer different services and products and the allocation of resources and evaluation of performance are
managed separately.
The reported segments are:
•
The retail segment
•
The real estate segment
•
The Be segment
It is noted that the results of the aforesaid segments do not include the effects of IFRS 16, Leases
(hereinafter – the standard). The effects of the standard are not reviewed regularly by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker for measurement of segment results, since management is of the opinion that
the operating results excluding the standard‟s effects, is the most relevant measurement for assessing the
segment‟s results. In accordance with the aforesaid the segment results below reflect rental expenses
according to the standard that was in effect prior to the adoption of IFRS 16.
Until the date of this report the Company reported four operating segments, with the results of
operations of the loyalty club credit card management segment, which is an integral part of the retail
segment, also being presented separately from the retail segment. In view of that stated in Note 15
regarding a liability to acquire rights in a partnership and in Note 30.A regarding an agreement with
ICC, the Group changed the structure of its internal organizational reports. Pursuant to the change, the
loyalty club credit card management segment is not reported as a separate segment and the retail
segment includes, like in prior periods, the results of the loyalty club credit card management segment
that is an integral part of the retail business operation. The comparative information for 2018 and 2017
have been restated so as to reflect the aforesaid.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
The retail segment
This segment includes the retail marketing of food and other products in the Company‟s branches and
the manufacture of frozen and fresh baked products that are sold mainly in the Company‟s branches
(hereinafter – the retail activity).
As at December 31, 2019, the Company‟s retail segment activity is carried out in 295 stores having a
wide geographical spread.
During the reporting period the Company operated four different formats in the retail segment,
including an on-line format “Shufersal Online” and organic food stores, throughout the country, with
the aim of satisfying its customers and providing them a buying experience that differs and varies in
each of the formats operated by the Company.
The Company has a mix of varied products organized in a number of sales departments and subdepartments in each store, including, in the health areas that were placed in part of the Company‟s
branches, and it includes, among other things, products sold under the private label of the Company,
with the view of offering the consumer a quality product, strengthening price perception (a quality
product for cheaper prices than similar products in the same category), developing consumer loyalty and
improving profitability of the categories in which the private label is sold.
The area of manufacturing frozen and fresh baked products is operated by a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. This activity is integrated into the retail marketing and its sales are mainly to the
Company stores.
In order to obtain a broad perspective of the system, the review of the segment‟s performance includes
the exclusive discounts and campaigns granted to credit card holders as part of management of the
customer club and also the revenues arising from such activity.
The real estate segment
This segment includes various types of freehold and leasehold properties including commercial centers
and other properties. The properties include those leased to external parties and also those leased for the
activity of the Company‟s branches (it is noted that these branches are classified in the Company‟s
consolidated financial statements as “property, plant and equipment” and not as investment property,
whereas in the books of Shufersal Real Estate they are classified as investment property).
The segment‟s revenues include rental revenues based on actual amounts that the real estate segment
charged the retail segment, and the operating profit of the segment includes also management fees that
were charged to the subsidiaries of the real estate segment.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Be segment
After completion of the transaction to acquire Be Drugstores Ltd. (hereinafter: Be) on December 20,
2017, the activity of the Be segment constitutes a reportable segment.
As at December 31, 2019, Be operates in the drugstore sector through 83 branches that sell mainly
cosmetics, convenience and toiletry products, medicine and food supplements.
Reconciliation to consolidated statements
The reconciliation to consolidated financial statements mainly involve neutralizing rental revenues and
expenses of the branches leased by the real estate segment to the retail segment and also adding the
depreciation expenses and reversing changes in the fair value of these branches which altogether
amount to NIS 81 million. In addition, the reconciliation to consolidated comprises the effects of IFRS
16, Leases, which as aforesaid are not are not reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision
Maker for measurement of segment results.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Information regarding the results of the reportable segments is included below:
For the year ended December 31, 2019:
Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Be segment
NIS millions

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

Total external revenues
Inter-segment rental revenues

12,603
-

51
131

706
2

(133)

13,360
-

Segment revenues

12,603

182

708

(133)

13,360

397
(3)
394

150
97
247

(70)
(70)

44
(58)
(14)

521
36
557

Operating profit (loss) before other
income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit (loss) after other income
(expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Share in profit of equity accounted investee
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

(279)
20
8
(38)
268

11,
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2018 (*):
Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Be segment
NIS millions

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

Total external revenues
Inter-segment rental revenues

12,246
-

49
128

552
-

(128)

12,847
-

Segment revenues

12,246

177

552

(128)

12,847

360
(4)
356

144
58
202

(29)
(26)
(55)

(22)
(12)
(34)

453
16
469
(130)
14
6
(94)

Operating profit (loss) before other
income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit (loss) after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Share in profit of equity accounted investee
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

(*)

265

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method elected, comparative figures have not been restated.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
For the year ended December 31, 2017 (*):

Retail
segment
NIS millions

Real estate
segment
NIS millions

Reconciliation
to consolidated
NIS millions

Consolidated
NIS millions

Total external revenues
Inter-segment rental revenues

11,809
-

43
125

(125)

11,852
-

Segment revenues

11,809

168

(125)

11,852

350
(9)
341

136
49
185

(23)
(24)
(47)

463
16
479
(152)
28
5
(85)

Operating profit before other income (expenses)
Other income (expenses), net
Operating profit after other income (expenses)
Financing expenses
Financing income
Share in profit of equity accounted investee
Taxes on income
Profit for the year

(*)

275

See Note 2.G regarding the initial adoption of IFRS 16. In accordance with the transitional method elected, comparative figures have not been restated.
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Note 32 - Segment Reporting (cont’d)
Information regarding products
Presented hereunder are the Group‟s sales revenues from each group of similar products in the retail
segment in NIS millions, before discounts and without VAT.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

“Grocery” products which include various food products but not milk and dairy products and
beverages.
“Beverages”.
“Dairy” products which include milk and dairy products.
“Meat and frozen” products which include fresh and frozen meat and fish products and products
sold at meat counters.
“Vegetable and fruit” products which include various fruits and vegetables and dried fruits.
“Pharmacy” products which include, inter alia, cleaning and paper products, medicine,
cosmetics and baby products.
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Grocery
Beverages
Dairy
Meat and frozen
Vegetables and fruit
Pharmacy

34116
773
14661
14787
14911
14,,1

3,218
808
1,732
1,851
1,958
1,488

2017
NIS millions

3,022
731
1,598
1,726
1,830
1,384

Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties
A.

Balances with interested and related parties

Current assets and liabilities:
Other receivables – prepaid expenses (*)
Other receivables – insurance assets
Trade payables
Other payables – accrued expenses
Non-current assets and liabilities:
Right to reimbursement in respect of employee benefits
Defined benefit plan assets
(*)

December 31, 2019
NIS millions

December 31, 2018
NIS millions

12
11
(21)
(6)

3
11
)18(
)1(

43
1

31
1

The highest balance during the reporting period (on the basis of monthly closing balances) was
NIS 13 million.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
B.

Loan granted to associate company

As at December 31, 2019, the balance of a loan to an associate company amounts to NIS 33 million
(NIS 3 million of the loan‟s balance is included in the receivables balance). The loan will be paid in 68
equal quarterly payments as from January 1, 2018 until October 1, 2034, and bear interest at the
minimum rate required in the Income Tax Ordinance (New Version) and the regulations issued under it
(Section 3(j) of the Ordinance) that will be paid quarterly. Financing income in the amount of NIS 2
million was recognized in respect of the loan in 2019 (like in 2018 and 2017).
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties

In the ordinary course of business the Company and its subsidiaries execute transactions at market terms
with interested parties, including transactions of the types and characteristics indicated hereunder:
The Company‟s principal interested party groups are, inter alia, the IDB Group and the companies held
by it and by DIC.
1. Presented hereunder is a general description of the transactions executed with interested parties of
the Company:
Year ended December 31
2019
2018
NIS millions
NIS millions

Revenues (1)
Expenses (2)
Financing income from loan granted to associate

11
(279)
2

13
)11,(
1

2017
NIS millions

13
(142)
2
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties (cont’d)

(1)

Composition of revenues:
IDB Group
NIS millions

Other
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

11

*-

11

For the year ended
December 31, 2018:
Revenues from vouchers‟ activity

13

*-

13

For the year ended
December 31, 2017:
Revenues from vouchers‟ activity

13

*-

13

IDB Group
NIS millions

Other
NIS millions

Total
NIS millions

For the year ended
December 31, 2019:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

129

84

213

66
195

84

66
279

For the year ended
December 31, 2018:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

86

46

132

71
158

46

71
204

51

18

81

61
11,

18

61
1,1

For the year ended
December 31, 2019:
Revenues from vouchers‟ activity

*

Represents an amount lower than NIS 1 million.

(2)

Composition of expenses:

For the year ended
December 31, 2017:
Cost of sales
Selling, marketing, general
and administrative expenses

Throughout the year the Company executed a large number of transactions with interested and related
party suppliers and service providers from the IDB group. The transactions included purchasing food
and other products at market terms. The prices and credits terms are determined with all the suppliers
and service providers in negotiations and in the ordinary course of business and according to the
Company‟s procedures.
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Note 33 - Interested and Related Parties (cont’d)
C.

Transactions with interested and related parties (cont’d)

2.

For information on the Company‟s guarantees to related and interested parties, see Note 30
regarding contingent liabilities and commitments.

3.

See Note 11.E for information on the collaboration and joint venture agreement.

D.

Salary, management fees and benefits to key management personnel (including directors)

In addition to their salaries, the Group‟s to key managerial personnel (including directors) and executive
officers that are employed by the Group are entitled to non-cash benefits (such as a car, etc.), and
contributes to a post-employment defined benefit plan on their behalf. Certain executive officers have
been allotted options to shares of the Company (see Note 22 regarding share-based payments).
Salary, management fees and benefits to key management personnel include as follows:
2019

Short-term salary, management
fees and benefits to key
management personnel
Share-based payments

Number
of people

NIS millions

2
2

6
4

Year ended December 31
2018
Number
of people
NIS millions

3
1

5
1

2017
Number
of people

NIS millions

1
1

5
1

6

10

6

Directors‟ fees – without the present chairman of the board:
2019
Number
of people

NIS millions

9

2

Year ended December 31
2018
Number
of people
NIS millions

7

2

2017
Number
of people

NIS millions

10

3
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Note 34 - Material Subsequent Events
A.

For developments related to legal claims subsequent to the reporting period, see Note 16(2)d.

B.

On March 19, 2020, subsequent to the reporting date, the Company's board of directors decided
to distribute a dividend in the amount of NIS 80 million, representing NIS 0.34 per share. The
dividend will be paid on April 27, 2020 to shareholders of record on April 19, 2020. The
financial statements do not include a liability in respect of the aforesaid dividend.

Note 35 - Group Entities
December 31, 2019
Rate of
ownership
Voting rate
%
%

Active subsidiaries
Be Drugstores Ltd. (formerly New Pharm Ltd.)
Katif Ltd.
Gidron Industries Ltd.
Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.
Orvani Investment Co. Ltd.*
Shufersal Properties Ltd.*
Hanetz Exporters and Importers Ltd.*
Hyper-Kol Ltd.*
Four Species Ltd.
Shufersal Bailsol Investments Ltd.*
Shufersal Travel Ltd.
Bela Online Ltd.**

December 31, 2018
Rate of
ownership
Voting rate
%
%

011
011
011
011
011
011
011
011
011
011
53
51

011
011
011
011
011
011
011
011
011
011
53
51

111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
53
-

111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
111
53
-

Consolidated partnerships
Shufersal Finance, Limited Partnership***

84

84

8,

8,

Associate
Lev Hamifratz Ltd.*

17

17

37

37

*
**
***

Held by Shufersal Real-Estate Ltd.
Held by Be Drugstores Ltd.
See Note 15

All the companies were incorporated in Israel.
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